Committee:

Date:

Venue:

Time:

BETSA CITY COUNCIL

@ (1.9

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

CABINET
TUESDAY, 5 NOVEMBER 2013
MORECAMBE TOWN HALL
10.00 A.M.

AGENDA
Apologies
Minutes

To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 8 October 2013
(previously circulated).

Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader

To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the
agenda the item(s) are to be considered.

Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in
the Council’'s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.

Public Speaking

To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny
None

Reports



6.

10.

11.

12.

Future of the Assembly Rooms (Pages 1 - 30)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Barry)

Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

This is to give further notice in accordance with Part 2, paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 that whilst the following report is public it contains an exempt
appendix and it will be necessary to exclude members of the press and public should

Members need to refer to the information in the exempt appendix.

Chatsworth Gardens - Outcome of Developer Competition and Consideration of the
Private Sector Led Proposal (Pages 31 - 79)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson)
Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration & Planning) - (Appendix 2 to follow)
Parking Strategy (Pages 80 - 135)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hamilton-Cox)
Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

Delivering New Council Housing in the District (Pages 136 - 146)
(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Leytham)
Report of Chief Officer (Health & Housing)

Service Review- Management of Parks / Open Space / Public Realm (Pages 147 -
149)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Smith)
Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

Outline Proposals For Service Review: Salt Ayre Sports Centre/Leisure Services
(Pages 150 - 154)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Sands)

Report of Chief Officer (Health & Housing)

Outline Proposals for Service Review: Regeneration & Planning Service (Pages 155
- 159)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson)

Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration & Planning)



13.

14.

15.

16.

Corporate Plan 2013-14 - Half-yearly monitoring (Pages 160 - 168)
(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire)
Report of Chief Executive

Exclusion of the Press and Public

This is to give further notice in accordance with Part 2, paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 of the intention to take the following item(s) in private. It
should be noted that the report for item 15 is public with an exempt appendix and it will
only be necessary to exclude members of the press and public should Members need to
refer to the information in the exempt appendix.

Cabinet is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the following
item(s):-

“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business, on the
grounds that they could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”

Members are reminded that, whilst the following item(s) have been marked as exempt, it
is for Cabinet itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in
public. In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and also whether the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. In
considering their discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council
Officers.

Corporate Performance Monitoring 2013/14 (Pages 169 - 219)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Blamire)

Report of Chief Officers (Governance) & (Resources)

The Storey (Creative Industries Centre) (Pages 220 - 247)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson)

Report of Chief Officers (Resources) & (Regeneration & Planning)

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i)

(ii)

Membership

Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), Jon Barry,
Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands and David Smith

Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email



ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk.
(iii) Apologies

Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on Thursday, 24 October, 2013.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 6

CABINET

FUTURE OF ASSEMBLY ROOMS
5 November 2013

Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek Cabinet’s approval to develop a business case for the future use of the Assembly
rooms

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date of notice of forthcoming key decision 7 Oct 2013

This report is public

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

(1) That Cabinet approves the development of a business case for an alternative
trading use for the Assembly Rooms based on the findings of Appendix A.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Work has been taking place to establish whether the current use of the ground
floor of Assembly Rooms as an indoor market is sustainable. Fooftfall is not
increasing, turnover of new traders is high, there are several vacant stalls and
income generated by the Council is minimal. (Note the upper floor is currently
leased to Ludus).

1.2 The market sells a range of eclectic items that have a very niche audience.

1.3 The building itself is a historical listed building and is located in between the
Castle and the City Centre, albeit on the outer side of the ring road.

14 In its current usage it is hard to attract visitors even more so spending visitors.

1.5 Because of its location between the city centre and the Castle and because of
the historical nature of the building it does seem that there are other opportunities
for trading from the building that could be explored.

1.6 To assist in this regard specialist consultants were commissioned to undertake
independent consultation, provide advice and research best practice.

1.7 The results of the work are outlined in appendix A.



Page 2

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1 As can be seen from Appendix A, it is clear that there are actually significant
opportunities offered from using the Assembly Rooms in a different way.

2.2 Clearly this would have an impact on existing traders within the Assembly
Rooms. The Council charges minimal rents for stalls and currently there are a
number of vacant stalls. Traders are issued with Licences which mean the
Council can serve notice on traders at any point.

2.3 At this stage the proposal is to seek an in principle decision from Cabinet for a
possible alternative trading use for the Assembly Rooms as a tea room / food
emporium. This would then provide the mandate for officers to develop a
sustainable business case which would then be brought back to Cabinet for
further consideration.

3.0 Details of Consultation

3.1 In undertaking the work in Appendix A consultation was undertaken with a
number of stakeholders including existing traders relevant Councillors and
Officers. Existing traders have been made aware of the proposals.

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 Option 1- to approve the principle of the proposal which will allow a detailed
business case to be developed

4.2 Option 2- to not approve the principle of the proposal. This will mean that for the
time being the Assembly Rooms would continue to operate as at present,,
which based on the amount of vacant stalls, lack of spending customers
and the minimal rent charged by the Council is unsustainable for the long
term.

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)
5.1 The officer preferred option is option 1
6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The report seeks agreement to the development of a sustainable trading use for
the Assembly Rooms

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Economic Growth — Develop the Festival, Charter and Assembly Room markets to help
support their sustainability and viability

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

The development of a business case will include relevant impact assessments

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Legal have been consulted and have no comments to add at this stage




Page 3

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

For information, the latest draft estimates include the following amounts in relation to the
Assembly Rooms :-

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Revised Estimate Estimate
£ £ £
Expenditure — Premises Costs 16,100 16,700 16,700
Income — Rent Income (20,000) (20,000) (20,000)
NET INCOME (3,900) (3,300) (3,300)

* The above figures exclude amounts for capital charges and internal recharges

The preferred option will potentially result in a change of usage for the Assembly Rooms so
therefore any recommendations arising will be reported to Cabinet and budgets updated as
appropriate.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

NA

Information Services:

NA

Property:

Structural work to the value of £160,000 is scheduled to take place in this financial year
following the Council’s condition survey of its building.

Property matters for the whole building, not just the ground floor, will be factored into the
development and appraisal of the business case.

Open Spaces:
NA

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments




Page 4

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Davies
Telephone: 01524 582401
E-mail:mdavies @lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:

none




Page 5

|1PUNO0) >u._U Jojseouen

‘; >nvm:o_mm_EEou
m‘f._,_x__.,f_:;_.:,,_”._: .
SINO0Y VAT ; : 1 ‘ 4

LNV,

SOIqR1D[ [0

,é, ‘.m‘ €T0Z das
,:: gl 5
(e =

suondQ ainin4
248359y JownNsuo) wooy A|quassy

] ctdu



Page 6

*J2}0 UOI3eUIISAP JapIM SuISIBWS BYI YUM 11} PUe ‘||BJ1004 dSIWIXew 0} pJiemuoy Sulo8 pauoilisod ag pjnod swooy A|quiassy ay L
MOUY J0} SUOIIEPUSWWOD3J dYBW PUE ‘YdJeasaJ PUB UOIIBWJIOLUl UOIIBUIISIP SUIISIXS YHM 3Ul|-U]I SPUDJ] I3 PUB JAWNSUOD SUIISIXd MIIARY ‘T
S19)Jew JaWNSuU0d SullSIXd SH PUB ‘4340 13¥Jew swooy Ajquiassy Sullsixa 3yl JO ainjeu ayl MaIARY ‘T

:03 |19UN0) A1) J93sedue] Ag pauoIsSSIWWOd sem Adueynsuo) uJied siyy yum djay o] ‘swooy A|quiassy syl 404
ue|d uonejusws|dwi pue A3a31e43s e 3uipsoddns 4oy suesaw jelidosdde ue suiwIdIIP 0} pue asn |ejpuazod Ajlausapl djay o1 paJinbau s ydueasay
jaug yoieasay

‘SPaau J13Y} pue s1apeJl a4niny pue SulISIXd ‘PUe ‘S1a3JeW JAWNSUOD 34NNy [elauaiod pue SullsIxa Jo Uy el aq IS JUN0JDY

J21seoueT 4o Ad 3y} 404 4240 UoIIeUIISapP JPIM B Joddns 03 J4om ued swooy A|quiassy 9yl MOH '
‘|IEIUD S3XJEW JOWNSUOD
9S9Y3 JO 24N3EU BY} IBYM pUE ‘||BJ1004 J2184S 10BIIIE A||NJSSDI0NS 03 All|I0R) 13)Jew e se pauolisod ag pjnoys swooy Ajlquiassy ayi MoH T

19UIWJSIIP 01 S35 |1PUN0) A1) J31seoue] a3ueyd dais Siyl |14n} o] "uondeslie Ayjenb e Sulwodaq Aq 48)40 uoireullsap
91410351y JIpIM S J331seoue] Joddns pue Ajljigeln jeuoliesado anoadwi 03 swooy Ajquuassy 9yl o) papasau si a3ueyd dais e 1ey) passde uaaq sey
aining - swooy Ajquiassy

‘|lley SuipeJy 19yJew e se swooy A|quiassy ay3 o AMjIgeIn wia)

-8uo| ay3 01 ysu a4niny |elaualod e Sunnuasaidal ‘siapedty asay3 Jo ANAS8UO| Y3 SUSIBIIYL MOU ||BJ3004 SUI|PUIMP ‘SS92YIBUON "SS32INS dWOS
Y3m sJapeJy mau Suioediie ‘payoune|-al Suip|ing ayi pue ‘Suip|ing ay3 0 JOLIIUI Y] 0} APEW U dABY SIUSWSA0IAWI DAIIEI0IDP }sapow
‘Aj3U23J 1SO|A| "SJapeJ Jo Aljenb pue Jaguinu 3y} 01 S3sS0| JUaNbasgns pue ‘||e41004 01 S3SSO| 3|BJBPISUOI PAJUBLIAAXD Sey 13¥Jew dy3 SIeah
JU923J U| "pooy dpewawoy ul||as 9ed e os|e s| a1ay] ‘saliddns Agqqoy pue Suiwes Jem ‘eljigesowdW Wil/A} PUB S}00q JIWO0D ‘dJ1Y SWNISO0D
‘s9140ss900€ pue Aa||amal ‘Suiyro|d 0J1aJ pue agejulA Suipnjoul SPOOS 4O XIw 21303]93 ue Sul|3S 1934w JOOPU] UE S| 133JeW SWOooY A|quiassy ay |
uo1enIs JuUaLIn) — swooy Ajquiassy

: jalg ¥ punoibyoeg



Page 7

sdais 1xaN ‘v 28eas

$1032B4 SS920NS |BJIIID
9211081 d 1599

SpuaJ] |1e19Y JUBAD|SY
S19yJe|A 1984e]
Suipueug Ja31seduen

AAAAA

uondo 1sog ay3 Suidojanaq ‘g 98e1s

SUOI}EPU3WWOIAJ] PUB SUOISN|DUOD N0 MeJp 03 SSulpul} YdJeasad asAjeuy

uolyisodoud pue eapl 1593 03 suaddoys ,1934e3, ym ASAINS paulyap S40w PNPUoI - (g Xipuaddy e Adod) sAsains g aseyd

uolysodoud pauoy e dojanap o} pue suoirdo moudeu 03 SASAINS 3sAjeuy

Juswanoidwi 40} seapl 1@ anss| ‘uolreAiow ‘Aduanbauy ‘93esn

Ajnuspi o1 AyupiA ay3 uiyum siaddoys And pue suiaddoys wooy Ajquiassy ‘siapeJy 3unsixa yum (T xipuaddy 1e Adod) sAsains T aseyd

<
<
<

<

‘uay e} sem yoeosdde Adaauns aseyd-g v ‘swooy Ajquuassy ay] JO ALUIIA 3y}
ul siaddoys |esaua3d Jaylo pue siaddoys ‘siapeJy swooy A|quiassy SullSIXa Y3IM pa1dnpuod Sem ydaeasad aAllelljenb yidap-ul jo sjdwes |jews v
y24e353Y Jawnsuo) ‘g aseis

SJ3WNSUO0I YHM 3593 03 SU01IdO JO 1S1|10YS 3348y
sa1unyoddo 13 suoi3do AJI3UapI pue 49440 JUDIIND MBIASI 0} WE) SNl YIM dOySHIOM
UOI}BWIOJUI pUE BIEP SUIISIXd MIINDY

<
<
<

suonndQ aining aiojdx3 1@ 4940 Su1SIX] MaINRY ‘Tasdels

> yoeouddy uiien



Page 8

suondp aJnin4
alo|dx3 ® Jal O bunsixg mainay




Page 9

1JIM ON "J93uIm Ul Suileay Jo yoeq SYIIN

S9131|19e4 Uy Jood ‘Alsnw ‘w3 s13)101 ‘A1lel ‘anoAe| sood :iolR3u| 3ulp|ing 40 JU0J} e ealy
9SIJIAPE 03 3 NJIHIP 1 SONBW — SISPE.I] JO JSAOUIN] 3 SDIDUBIBA sJieisdn snpn
P3SI1JDAPE ||9M 10U ‘||BJ1004 J00d (panojun pue pasnun AjjuaJind) pJeA 14nod pue uapJed pasojous Jesy
MO[} JOWO03SNI SIPIAIP ‘peod Asng ojuo Juol4 92eds uado 3i1g
19)Jew 3984e3 Jo 3)1404d JSWOISNI Je3|d ON s3uip|ing 21401S1Y 43Y30 Jeau ‘@43uad A
Sjueual sawos Aq Suipedy JejngaJdl pue JulsIsuodu| 3uip|ing 2140351y ‘@3euay ueldi099
Suiaulun ‘Suiwod|aM JON "J940 PASNIUOD ¢ ¢M SI IBYM 1UBJ34}1p Suilyswos
‘SM3IAJIDUI

SUO 03 dUO JI9Y31 Sulnp sJapeJ} 3y} wodj osje pue doysyiom ayi Sulnp weal s3axJew 3y} WoJdj paulelqo 9Jam Ja4jo Sunisixa ayy a4 suoluido
SASSIANMIVAM B SHLONIYULS - 43440 DNILSIX3T

“UMOP Pas0|d 13)JeW PO0y} 3yl USYM JIAO PIAOW OYM SI3PEJ} SWOS J0) JUSIUSAUOD SBM PUB SIIBISUMOP
paysi|qe1sa sem 1ayJew  *(800¢ Ul pausis 10eJ3u00 JeaA QT) sdieisdn uj paAow oipnis aduep snpn oSe sieaA 7 'asnoy SWolsnd e Uaag 30UO dAeYy 03
1ySnoys os|e sem 3| 'sa11AI0e [e100S pue Supuep Suipnjoul Ajgissod ‘SjuapisaJ 9SNOH sWy J0j ddeds [BI20S B SB pasn Uaaq aAeY SWo0oY A|quiassy ayl

$3SN LN3S3Ydd B 1SVd

"XIw pue 193w 39jdoad aiaym ade|d |e1d0s e se pash g 01 Ajjeap|

UOI1BJ3UD3 SNUBNSYe

UOI1BUIISDP JOPIM 3Yy3 Sspoddns 1ey3 49440 93e3149Y S,491SEIUET SJUBYUD O] e

Ajainb g ayaiu — uagjo Ayijenb e yiim uoioedyie ageyluay Ay e awW023Q O]«
:piemio} 3ul03 swooy Ajquuassy 3yl Jo4 pa3J3e a1aM S9AI33[q0 SuiMo||of 3y L
SAAILO3rdo

's9ded OM] 1XaU Y3 U] PaUI|IN0 3Je S3ulpuUl) Ulew 3y 9IudlIadX 3 93pa|Mou)|
|e20] J19y3 Suisn seapl pue 1y3isul ulelqo 03 Pale}|Ide) SeM SI0||12UNO0I |BI0] 934Y3 Sulpn|dul Weal S1ayJew |19uno) Jaisedue] ayl yum doysyiom yf

JaJO bunsixg — wea| siayie|\ YlIM MaIADY



Page 10

WN3SN|A Uelgi0aD SUIAIT  °S
1o eW sa|qeP9| ooy ‘¥
,2Jiyseouen

Ul 9peA, SISIHE / S1ayew [BO0] UO SN204 SU0J3S B Y)M AIS|[ES SJEID pUBSHB UY  °E

,Jlyseauer

ul ape|A, spoosd Ayjenb ysiy pue sieonpoud |e20] uo 3uisSnNd0) 13YJBW POO} Y ¢

wooJeal ueigioan Ayjenby 't
8unsa] Jawnsuo) o) suondp

(paeA

14N02 ‘WOo0J Xdeq ‘s33]103) sanssi AljIqISSa20Y
s3uip|inqg a3ejday

J9Y30 Aq papunoJJins eaJe uoI}eAISSUO)
guip|ing paisi || dpeln

(p231e81359AUI 9q 01) ¢ IUBUDAOD

és8ulp|ing 227

J9Y30 - pasnoy-a4 ¢ 03} pasau siapedy 3ulisixy

9AI30BJ1IE dEW 0} palinbai dueuly Juediusis 1\V4
32015 dojaASp 01 swil}
9AI1B2JD pUB W} 0IPN1S PISU OS|e OYM SISILe
pue su3yew 03 d9AI10RJ11E 10U S| }29M Aep Gy

3s1 A3undas |enuajod — iy A 9 syes) g Uy

Syes) 13 pood

1SIX9 —aJiyseaueq

ApeauJje s1911n0 pooy 9310 pue siayJewdtadns VA 8 u| apeiN

woo0.ed} asejuip

Ja4j0 / ueidioan

JUSJDJIP B 9 ISNW — SWOoO0J 3} 49310 Auelpy 8 8 98ejoH

Sisid/sieayl

pedw)

Jlwouody

sannaalqo
Suinaiyoe
J0 pooyijayi

suondo
13dsoud 1sag

"WN3sNIA uei34099 3ulA|

e pue 19)Jew $3|ge1d3||0d e :sasod.nd 3ui1sal 19xJew
404 151| 9Y1 01 pappe 24aMm suol3do Jaylo om] "J3)40
A112 21403151y JOPIM 3Y3 Y1M Ul S} 1Byl uoldeJlle Aljenb
A9y e 3ulw023q 40 dA1303[qo ay3 Suiaalyde Jo pooylay||
pue 10edw J1WoU023 pPaAIadIad 3yl uo paseq
‘pasiyiold auam (Y31 uo pale|ngel) suonndo aaiyl

SOWdP 13 $||B} — SIUBAT.
whnashw uei34039 SUlAlTe

éllem Ae|dsip — My

[1eJ} 93e1oHe

19)JeW $3|qe133||0De

3uiyzo|) a8ejuip.

po04 93ejuie

wooJeal agejulp/ uei3i0a9/o3e1u9He

pOO04 UeSI}ye

doys /1e |e20|/wo0Jes .

AJ9||ed syeu)d 3 suye

193JeW S1eJd 13 POOJ — dIYSeIU.T U] SPe|Ale

:$9Sh 24n3ny se pa1sa33ns auam seapl Suimo| o4 ayL
suondQ |ennuajod

'S$920NS INOYHM

1sed ay) Ul pal4} USSQ PeY SNUDASI SJUBUD] pue
||es1004 aseasdul 03 sydwanie Auew se uondo s|qisesy
e 10U SeMm Sy} 1eyl paasde sem 1 pue doypjaom ayl

1e passnasip sem |jey Suipesy 1aJew e se pagueyoun
ulewaJ 01 swooy Ajquiassy ay1 4o} uondo sy
uondQ ue 10N — dwes 3yl uleway

S}oMJeN UIM MBIASY



Page 11

ssulpuld
YIJBaSaYy JoUWlINSUO)



Page 12

1191SBOUET 9PISIN0 S3IYISIDAIUN 1k SulApnis Ajulew
‘9)dwes Jno ul syuapnis g 01 ods I\ dWIL WAL JO 1IN0 Pa1dNpuod sem 1dafosd ayl

"Spuy ||e Jo suoluido 3uoJis ay3 9duapluod yim Ajiuapl pue ‘ojdoad Ag p|ay smala
JO 93uels ay3 JoA02 AjulelIaD S} NSAJ 9Y3 pue ‘PIIONPUOI SIIM SMIIAIRIUI Y1dap-ul 28

9|dwes

"Z pue T xipuaddy 1e aie SASAINS Z pue T 3seyd "SI19p|oy ||e1S-XD ¢ 01 pay|e3} OS|e am
2oueyd Ag D3sS pue sagde Jo ueds poog e J0j pawile M SIYyl UIYUAA ‘Swooy Ajquiassy
9Y3 JO 92uelSIp SUI|141S UIYIIM J3U3D UMO] Y] punoJe pue ul 319M OYM SIONSIA

pue (sia)4om pue siaddoys) s|eao| Jo Xiw e ‘siaped) 4aiseoue] ul 9|doad pamalAIRIU| .

ASojopoyraN

9JN1NJ Y1 Ul pasn 11 33s 01 1] Iy3iw Asyl moy pue ‘Quasald 1e wooy Ajquiassy ayl
1noge mouy| pue julyl ajdoad jeym Jo Malnad aAIsuayaidwod Ajgeuoseal eapinoid o] .

2A1d3[q0

ABojopoyia|N R aAN0alqO yolesasay Jawnsuon)



Page 13

peoJ ay3 ssoud 0} 9|doad adeinodua 0} pue ‘si 31 Jeym mouy| 3jdoad
3ey3 0s 3ulp|ing 3yl UO pue ‘193431 3y} Wou) paudis 19139 3¢ 03 SPA3U }| .

\\ECM .NMS.\ m.s.w.‘
juawouw ay)
10 ‘up|d b 106

109}49 p0O03 01 Pasn } 93S 0} Juem pue ‘Suip|ing ay3 1| 9jdoad ** yiwiem
YHM JO 3y3noys si 1l ‘swooy A|quiassy Yyl Mouy oym asoyl 3sSuowy

yoeq 8ulo3 wayy dasy

S ﬁc\m w,l, 03 3uiylou pjay 1 3uipidap 240439 ‘92u0 ul uaaq aAey Ajuo Aew Asayi 1ng .
siipisdn Ajpuaoaus Ajpaeds ‘o3e
e aw1} 8uoj| e Ajpsow 1nq ‘apisul uaaq pey s|eao| Auew ey Supjluls sem .
snpni
poliad
pbYy 1043 J19y1 / s8uip|ing ay3 Jo aJinleu 2103sIYy ay3 pue ‘Ajiwixoud Jo asnedaq
muB\Q ayl, — As1031S 9Y3 pue swooy A|quiassy 9yl Uaamiaq pasnjuod ag ued awos .
«59U0}5191OM ‘u1p|INg 9yl Mouy| 1,Uplp ISOW pue ‘Dweu sy mouy A1ans Ajpiey SIOUSIA .
Sp
apIs awns 3y} aweu Agq 11 Mouy| SJUSPISaJ ||e 30U INQ SWOS .
uo m:.:.ot:Q "SI0}SIA M3}
aJlu 1oy}, INQ ‘syuapisal Auew o3} umouy si 3ey3 ulpjing e st swooy Ajquiassy ayL .

sBuipul} Ulep\ - MaIA Jualind ay |



Page 14

9sodJund 4o adesn auninj e 01 se way3 3sSuowe

SNSUISUOD OU SEM 3J3Y3 OS ‘SSaUISNC UMO J19Y3 0} JUBAD[SJ SEM Jey] 91nN0J 3y} painoAey siapell Sullsix] .
uo1rdo siyl asoyd uossad T Ajuo ‘qinbs dwep e sem wnasnw ueld1099 SuiAl| 3yl .
(¥T Ag usasoyo) Ai9)es

1jeJd pue sue ue pue ‘(2T Aq uasoyd) 19Jew sanbiiue / $91q13129]|09 e 404 1oddns swos sem auay | .
1S9491U| J9MO]
uoido siyy asoyd 1¢ —,,421sbaun ul 313y [|pYy poof b anpby 3,uop am, 1oddns pey os|e 19yJew pooyj ayl .
eap! siy3} pajioddns SMaIAIDIUl T8 4O 1IN0 g7 — SdUe)SIP dWOoS Ag ‘wood eal ay3 sem uolrdo Suluuim ay .
159491u] 1SON

wnasnw ue|31099 SUlAl| 'q

19)Jew S9|(1399]|0d B

,2J1yseaue ul apel|, 0S|e Sisile / siyew |ed0| Uo sndoy SuoJdls e yum Ais||es s 1jesd g suie uy ‘€

9|A1s ,2J1yseaue ul apew, spood Aljenb y3iy g su9onpoud |ea0| uo 3uissnd0j ‘1yJew pooy v T

wooJ e} ueidio0a9 Ayjenb vy ‘T

:9seyd malna4 ay3 ul paljizuapl sa1nod |ennualod g 3ulsal Agq palJels yaieasay .
sIdWNsSuo0) Yym paisa) suondo
wayl o3 |eadde pjnom eyl 3ulyldwWos 3snoy 03 pue ‘pasn ag 0131 Al plnom Asyyl .

¢buipjing ayj 0} uaddey 03 1] Asy} pjnom Jeypn -
S)jnsay MaIlAIBluUl | 8seyd



Page 15

(4eaA Jo sawiy Ay 1e Ajje1aadsa) 019 ‘Ausjjamal
‘syod ‘Auayoo4d — s343 Ajljenb |eoo| jo a3ueu jjlews Ajgissod puy €

(210 ‘119p ‘Auaxeq ‘aluassined) Aeme el g ul
1e3 0] ‘si@anpoud |edo| wod) poo} apewawoy ‘Aljenb poosd ||9s |jIMY ¢

uo11ed0| mau e ojul Aioisiy sil pue uaiseaue Jo A1ols ayl Supjel pue
3u1119S 21401S1Y S} JO 1Isow ay3 dupjew ‘Sulp|ing ueldio039 |niIneaq
9Y31 JO WOO0J 1uoJj 934e| Yl Ul 195 wood el Alljenb e stueay syily  °T

: , wnliodwa pooy, e Ajje1auassa se 31 Jo yuiyl 03 3uluuidaq pue

SMaIAIBJUI Z 8seyd Jo} uolnisodold e buluoH



Page 16

1Yy314 umo syl ul uoijeullsap e 3uiaq ‘A1 ayy ojul 9jdoad Suliq p|noysy .

A3ael 11 @ew p|nod eyl — '213 ‘sassalp Suo| ‘sded-dow ou — Lway),
ue|81099 e aAey 0} 10U uddy AJaA ase Asyl ‘Sulp|ing 21401SIY B Ul WOOJ B3] B SI SIYFIS[IYM o

uoladwod wodj

1ede 11 19s pue Suip|ing ay1 JO 1SoW ay3 yew pjnom Siyl 2313 ‘s||lem ayl punode sjaued ul
sdeyJad — 23s 01 Wayl 4o} a4ay3 aq ||Im Sulp|ing ay3 Jo AJ01SIY ay3 18yl eapl 3yl a1 osje Adyl

swooy Ajquiassy 21403s1y ay3 ul 3uiaq 3ulAolua pue ‘uoisedrdo

UO uey) aJow uo a3yl Sulod auidew ued Asyy ‘esapl ,wooud e3}, 9yl payjl| 9|doad 1SON

Jbuiwibyd
\\CO.NM.F\ NQ \U\BOQW .:\\
S11 2101Q3[32
01 9/qb aq

01 493spoup7 J0of
jJupbyiodwi s,1,

,SBuipuno.ins asiu T
us BupjuLp % 63D Jo 150W 3y3 oW
PUDIPIN Aolu3 03 sjupMm oYM ‘bulpjing ay3
243 03 06 03 auoAuD* ** ‘s3514N0Y *** yum 31f 03 3Way3
anby noA ‘aiay Spualif 193w 03 343y} 04124 / 2110151y
puno.o 10y3 0b pjnom a|doad,, ub aq pjnoys 1,

Yl a4aymAup

jous,a494l,, :POAIRJ3J ||]9M SeM B3PISIYL

:uol}Isodold wnlodw3 poo -
S]jNsay MalAIBIU| Z @seyd



Page 17

9493 1S|IYyM 9SMOU(Q
ued noA 1eys s18 anisuadxa 003 1ou / Alljenb sjqeuosea.
JO U0I11239|3S e 3ulAeY JO eapl 3yl paY| (|| 30u) dwos puy

Ayijenb poo3 g apew swoy ||e ‘p0ooj |eJ0|
‘ysad} Jo uoI13d3|3s e wous Ang 01 3|qe 3ulaq Jo eapl 3y 1| AsyL

[|ley S,uosuyly Janjuny 433unoA ayi pue ‘sajed |eao| AepAians
9Jow jo esoy3iad|d ay3 03 uosiiedwod ul duajque pue 3|Als
‘Ayijenb uo J|9s1l 91e11uaiaip pue ‘wayl yum 319dwod ueyl
J9y3ed Ajjeoo| sdoys eay jJo a3ued ay3 01 ppe ||Im 3 siyl Sulop Ag

(Ajpuanbauajul Auan 1nq ‘o3 ||13s Aew ajdoad J0) aalIsuadxa
Aj43n0 99 31 pjnoys Jayiau 1ng ‘deayd ag 01 siyl 1| 2eid
e 109dx3 1,uop 9|doad — ,3|qeuoseal, aq 03 pasu sadlud 1ng

219 syloog ‘SN O3 Jejlwis
‘Alljlenb poo3 aq 01 spaau 11 — aydiu anbiun umo s11 3ueas)

S$S920NSs 0] Ay aq ||Im Ajljenp -
S]|NsSay MalAIBlU| Z @skeyd



Page 18

92110B1d 1599 19 SPUI] ‘S1ayJEe|A
Jlawnsuo) ‘8ulpuelg Jaisedue’]

eap| wniiodw3 poo
:uondQ 1sag ayi suidojanag



Page 19

"IN Y3 Ul SP|OYasnoy uol|jiWgg WOy B}ep JOWNSUOD UO paseq aJe s3[1404d DIYSOIN «

Sujooq pue ojul — dUSHIM ‘Hd '8 elpawW |e1poS ‘SulleyJew-3

s|eap dn S3u1sl| SJUDAS-] S9US
SunayJiew 12a41q Suppoid g uismouq puads | |eanynd [ul :SUSGIAN |eloueuly ‘s3o|q ‘12uJaiu| Ainnoy
‘s|eap 01 SWI1 — SIDJNS JBA[IS | SQN|I [BIO| BIA SIBYINOA [saulzeSew g ssaud |eldueuly| g sjpuueyd
40} 19UJS1UI - USALIP SN|eA Sunayen
spualy ‘Ajiwiey < oN|eA pPappy ssed A« uonexe|al 13 AyjeaH <
a1uayIny « aA130e 3 AyljeaH « uonexejas 3 AyjesH <« Suipuoq Ajlweq4 «
uonexe|a. g AyyjesH <« s1sljednieN <« SIUAD 13 |eun}ND <« 2ouaiadxe
1noqy 3 10 « $159491Ul |BILI01SIH « Julp 13 pooy Ajljenp« $J100pIN0 AljenD « so8essa|N Aay
sim. oyl uonduasaqg
. s, | |ensip
e|1I9ys g siuuaqg su| g Asugny uAjoie) 3 weyeun uadowl| 13 suald saweN

|euolyped|
98e8pow ou awodul Mo
sjuaJedpueun
(ST/€T) +09 98Y
Ausianig umo] |jews :q

S1S1|eJN3euU 13 SI9Y|eM UIDY
sjyuaJedpueud andy
9]A15941| 9|qe1I04WO0)

(ST/vT) +99 93V
1UBWAJ1IRY BAIDY 3

:sdnouo JIYSON + doy ‘TDgy +0t ‘sdnoud /ss|dnod 3npy
93ueJ uolepowwodde ‘ syuesnelsad ‘ sieq ‘@4nynd ‘uiddoys ‘waeyd 1g assydsowse ‘o3ey s |eaddy

(yreg g a0\ 1| diyssaiwaud j0u) 91edouieH ‘491say)
2J1Yysedueq ul uolleuysap Ao 21403sIy ay L

|ednJ-lwas/ueqingnsg
Hojwo) |eldueuly
SJ93J4BeJ |NJSSaddNng
0/-TS 98y
Spiemay |euoissajoud :g

sawoy payoeiap ‘35
pa1eanpa ||9M ‘|euoissajoid
Ayyeam 1soN

69-05 98y
Aioyaia) eydyy iy

salisueyoeley)

:s39ydew j98ie)

:uonnadwo)
:8uiuonisod

"3|gejieAe Jou sem siaddoys pue sjuapisal Se Yons s3axJew JaY3o Joyj s|140.d
‘03 [eadde pjnoys swooy A|quiassy ay3 18y} s3aydew ay3 asijensia 01 djay [|im pue Ao ay3 ul stjuswdojanap
M3U yum juepodwi AjSuiseasoul aq 1M 9533} — MO[2q USAIS S| S3aJew JOISIA S,Jaiseoue Joj sajiyold LJIVSON

S}9)JE|A] JOMSIA

2ANUNSIq
AppusuonohiougAyredgpamymy
PIOS abejuay yd1y  AsioopingaAnesr)
[euoIssajoig 9[qeyseorddy juelb [ems
et 3JeuoIsSeq
u —.— juds reunauazdanuy
as1aAIqbunsasaju] Apmpueiqip
_EEsﬁ_ﬁm%..w&ﬁ Suongansniy

A0 JUBIgIA DlUBYINE UY <

Anjeuosiag

Adueuqip usapon

A

Aywixoid swnle <«
SumesouoisiH  «

AI01S
big b yum

Ay jjows,,

9JUoss]

"949Y paul[Ino ‘s}axiew

JO]ISIA Jajseouer] pue wc__ucm.hﬂ S, ol1sejuen

.

Y1Mm [|oMm s} eapl winuodw3 poo ayL

sjuauodwo) Suipueag Ay) 191sedueq

s)oyiel\ ¥ Buipuelg Jeyseoue]



Page 20

92110e1d 1599 1 SpuUaJ| ‘S1ovJe|N
Jlawnsuo) ‘8uipueug Jaisedue’]

eap| wnijodw3 poo
:uondQ 1sag ayi suidojanag



Page 21

>m_>_ _tom EEEI mc_umv_Lm_>_ %% YJ41EB3S9Y 1JIPISA 4
"(s@ig) swuasip
juawanosdwyi ssauisng ojul uisiuedio ale (4a3seaue Suipn|oul) seale Sujpedy [BI0| PUB SUMO} JO Jaquinu
Suimou3d e 190435 Y31y Suluipap ay3 Jo swajqo.d ay3 3equiod 03 J9pJ0 U "3no ui1ea si Sa13AIRoe 39341S Yy doy
J19Y3 4O U0 1ey3 Aes % € —192431s Y31y Y3 4O SH2UQ |BID0S 9Y3 Ul anjeA Ja31ead ade|d 03 seadde sjdoad swos
£%19911S YSiH s,uieing Sunoogq-ay

‘uaJp|1yd 404 Suipuads uo ydeq 1nd 03 ulj|im 3ou sualed yum ydiy uiewsad ||im sswed pue sAol ul SSWN|O e

's1onpoud pajerposse yum 3uoje ‘puali ayi dn 3upid siaddoys asow yim ‘saiemawoy
Ul 9240} 3ulAlIp e 9q ulede 19A ||Im sowwea3o.d A19000 UOISIAS|9] pue Supjeq awoy ‘Sui}00d Yd1eadS.

duljuo Ajldeinolped ‘sigjielad 01 dlydesdowap Jueliodw] ue awo2aq Ajduisealdul
[I!m saaddoys Japjo os ‘910z Aq uonieindod H N ay3 4O pJIyl-duo ueyl dJow Juasaldal |[Im +05 pasde siaddoysSe

‘Junowe awes
9y3 yonw Apaud Ang 031 asow Suipuads g [Im am ‘Ayijeas ul 1eyl Sujueaw ‘uollefjul 9o1d 031 painquiiie Ajpdue|
S140309S AJ92043 3 po0oJ Ul Yimous 1nq (%8°0) |1e124 pOOJ-uou 01 patedwod (%6°¢) |1e124 POOJ Ul Yimous JadieT.

ue3aq UOISSII3J Y3 9IUIS YIMmou3 Jo 93ed 1say31y 9yl — uq/ 00EF 0} ETOT Ul %8°T Aq moJ3 031 135 SI |1B1aJ Y Ne
+ET0T :doys ||!M )N 3yl moH

‘'SaJem 3upueyua-eal pue (911e| 9] UaaJ3) sanie| eydie|A ‘Alueindod eal uasu3 ‘eal usu3 Mmauq

p|02 ‘|1e1a4 B3] Ul Yyimou3 ‘eal Ajijenb :paijizuspl a1om spuall eal Ady XIS ‘¢T0oz 0dx3 ea] pHOAM Y1 IV "9T0T

Aq paroadxa seay wnjwaud Jo s9es |1e1ad ul yumouas 905 Yim-19110y 3u11393 pue 1oy S| a1 404 154141 JSWNSU0)
ea] AljenD ul yimouo

S| S,Ua1p|IYd pue asemawoy pue ‘3uidood awoy ‘eay Ayjenb
ul ymmoJ3 aJ sio3edipul a|genjea apiroad pue wnodwa pooy e o eapl 9yl oddns spuaJy |11 SUIMO||04 9y L

Suiwes ‘sHd
‘sauoyd ‘spoos |eusig«

salouedeA deds |1eyal
- sdoys Ajlaeyd 210N «

Suiddoys uieSieg «

Suiyizhiana

[|19S s19yJewsadns

) Suiddoys auijuo

- S|UUBYD IUBIUBAUOD) «

le1aJ asn/
uey3 JayieJ ‘sasualiadxa
9J4NSI9| Ul asealdu| «

}4N1s [e20)
10} 311S3P ‘@IUBUINOI] <«

swooy
Alquiassy 03 Juena|ay
SpuaJ] |1e19y |eJauan

P

m spual] |le1ay



Page 22

92110B.1d 1599 1 SpUaJ] ‘S1ovJe|N
Jlawnsuo) ‘8uipueug Jaisedue’]

eap| wnijodw3 poo
:uondQ 1sag ayi suidojanag



Page 23

"urejlg ssoJoe

S|910Y pue SWooJ e8] Ul suonjeubisse ea) UOOUIs)e aullsapueo

@y euspun siojoadsul ea) Ladxa Jo wes) e ‘YN 8y} ul eousliadxe
B8] ]S8UI} 8Y) 1IN0 X88s 0] Alsnpul es) 8y} JO SIEISQ 8Y] pPaIapIsSuod
ale spJemy pling Ba] S,[19UN0D B3] YN dYL ‘G86L Ul paysiigeis]

Jels buiwoojom«

B3] Jea| 8S00| Jo abuel BAISUBIXS «

Aeme sajiw Z uJi0oq Sem ||0LIe)) SIMaT

- pPaWay} pUBIBPUOAA Ul 821y - 1009p Bulwieyo«
adioal

S,0€61 papJenb Ajoso|o e wol) spew ‘Sauods S)l«

:10} UBAIB sem asleld ‘€10Z piemy aoe|d ea|

do] s,p|ino es] snoibnsaid ay) Buiuuim Jsye ‘es)
uoousaye Aolus 01 YN 8y} ul ade|d }saq sy} psweu
Sem allysay) ‘YoIMYLON Ul SWooy ea| uoduaae(

allysay) UdIMUON ‘wooy ea| s odusie(] -

aoljoeld 1seg



Page 24

"2l wool ‘asipueyotaw |easey
}e- ‘auljuo ‘[iejal ‘ajed :01|0j1J0d “HYN Ul MOU SaI0)s 9

‘918Yj) PaISOY 8Je S)JusAs pue
sBuluaA® [eoISN|\ "SWOO0J 8)e]S S Jaul| 8SINJO 8y} JO SUO
Ag paJidsul sem Wo0Y Juowjag 098P e JOOj) 1SJi) 8y |

"1oul| Ainxn| e pJeoge jjesinoA suibewl jsow|e ued noA
‘slolliw 8)eulo pue Buljjlpued poom jueba|d ‘SmMopuim
paAInd abny AQ papunouins s Apag ul IS noA sy

"}IoA ‘alenbg s .usjaH

1S Ul 8)ed Jueba|d ue ojul 810)s ainjiuiny payepide|ip

B uJn} 0} uswisyeld s Aiep\ usanp ayj pauoISSILILWIOD

ay 1ey} diys ayj Jo Jnopus|ds ayj Aq pajjelyjua

0S sem pue Aief\ usanp ayj Jo abeAo usplew

Ay} Uo pa|jeAel) ‘quowjeg Youspal4 Aq 9§61 Ul papuno

Swooy ea| s .Anag -
a9I1j0eld 1s8g



Page 25

"Quljuo ‘9jed ‘sdoys ‘|ley poo4

92IAI8G JBWo)sn)
JO splepue}g pauolyse p|O Bulpinoid <
aoNpoUd |e20 R Siawie [eooT buiuoddng «
sjonpold

Buluuipy piemy g siayoing Ja)selN Po|(INS <

:uojsueld diiyd

. pabueyoun ulewal sanjeA Aay suojsuel) inq
1Jed pue asioy siy pue sjoun jealb Aw Jo sAep
ay} aouls a|})1] e pabueyd sey ssauisng ay|,,

‘uojsuel) Asjuels Aq ¢1.61 Ul
BLquing ‘piemsodry Jo abej|ian Asjjlep uap3 ay)
ul paysi|geisa sem siayoing Alljenp suoisuel)

s.uojsuel? -

1

aoljoeld 1seg



Page 26

« SPUBLY yum pakolus
Uusaym Jajjaq UaAs auo

pue }eal) e ‘UoISBI00
ue s ‘buiddoys
ueyj ajow sI-**,

"@ul|uo ‘|Iejal ‘ljueinelsal ‘aje)d
‘'sAejdsiq sewisuyD «

Juswuedap ale) usples) «

doys wieq«

Bulisien «

Salj|1Ioe) pajqesip«

£10¢ 183\ 8] JO 8lJUS] UspJieg) uoheullseg«

'spleme 1soegq,

allyseoue] ‘ebuels uoueg

abuelo) uoueg je doys wie s||IomASuUOoH -
a9I1j0eld 1s8g



Page 27

JUSWBA|OAUI AJIlUNWIWIOYD)
(suljuo) sjpuueyad Jaylo g adued 1oNpoid — SWN|OA
3UDlld

wm jueriodwii
B Sulpuelq '@ aweu — (A112 3yl 01 UOI1DBUUOD) AJOIS B [|BL

92U3149dX3 JOWO0ISNI YOoIJ B 91B3SD)
9JIAJ3S JWO01SND 13 AJsAlap U34j0 AlljlenD .

SJ10)oB{ SS899Ng [B211l1D - wnlodw3 poo



Page 28

oIS yauneg  °qp

SY1S UM 10BJ3U0D 3 199|19S VT

S9sSauIsSN( 9|gelIns Jo 1si| Jopudl e dojaAaq ‘€T

SJ010B} SS920NS |BJIJD |JUl 431U JOPUIY UM “CT

suolldo j4oddns g sjueual SullSIXa Joj suoindo g Jolug ajedald TIT
9sodind Joj 11} apew 1S ‘0T

JUSWIISIAU| % Bulpund '

SsisAjeuy suondp AJanlaQ

9sodJnd Joj 31} 9ew 03 palinbau
2Jnlipuadxa |eyded 1 sadueyd 1no adoods - ue|d usawdo|anap g Aujiqisesd

Ayigiseay - Juswalels a3ejluaH

dnoJo Sulia9ls swooy Ajquassy ue dn 195
SJueUd) UIISIXD Y1IM 91edIUNWWO)

ue|d suonediuNWWOo usawa|dwl g 31IAA
9lepuew |ed1}l|od

Auo3s a3ensay syl dojanag

00

A NSO N

sdalg 1XeN



Page 29

3SOT0 ANV JINVHL
HOLISIA VD01  ¢éeaJe ayl 01 JOLISIA B NOA aJe 4o Aj|edo| aAl noA oQ

éswooy Ajquassy ayi 4o aininy ayiy anoge Aes 03 91| pjnom noA as|s SuiylAue aiays S|

dAYM ¢Jo1seoue jo adenuay 1@ AJ0ISIY Syl YHM 359q SH4 ulyl noA op uondo Yoy

éAYyM ¢ 01 08 01 9jdoad 1sow 1ded1e pINOM julyl NoA op uoirdo yaym

§UD140 MOY PUY §SUOISEII0 JeYyM UQ ¢343Y3 03 noA pjnopp

¢Aym pue 03 pjnom yuiyy noA op oym

¢TT uonsan 1e paisad3ns seapl Aue 03 auedwod 3 S90p MOH ¢Aym puy ¢ uonrdo aydnoAe) JnNOA I YaIym

WNasN|A UeIgIoaD SUIAIT  —

19JEW S9|QEPI[00 Y  —
,2J1ysedueT ul ape|A, S1s11e / siayew |eao| uo sndoy uodls e yum AJSj[eSSyerd pue speuy —
,Jiyseoue ul ape|A, spood Alljenb ysiy pue sisonpoud |e20| uo 3uISSNJ0) 193JeW POO} Y  —

WOO0JEd} Ueldioan Ayjenb v -
:INIANOJS3Y ¥NOA OL T ¥VI JAID dW033q p|nod 3ulp|ing ay) 1eyMm Joj suoirdo g aJe aJaH
§9W029q 3 P|N02 JBYAA ¢} Ul 935 03 91| 3SOW NOA pjnom jeym ‘4931803 ||e uoizouny s 98ueyd 03 asam Sulp|ing ays §|
sAYUM ¢03 NOA pjnom auaym / peaisul op NOA pjnom 1eym ‘moliowol paseaddesip Suip|ing syl ul s 1eym 4|
$9519 SulyrAuy ¢ panosdwl 99s 03 91| ISOW NOA pjnoMm 18y
$ U310 240w 03 03 NOA 33e4n0dUS 03 93ueyd 01 SABY P|NOM 1BYM
§15e3| 91| NoA op 1eYM puy
é3uasaud 1e ase Aayl se swooy A|quiassy ay3 Inoge 3saq 3y|1] NOA op 18y
¢9|doad 4ay1o yum Jo suoje 03 Aj3sow noA oQ
é949Y3 08 noA Aym uoseau uiew ay3 st 1Yy
¢03 noA op ua1j0 moy adesane uo puy
¢Aj3ua03J 3s0W 343y} NOA 249M UBYAA
TT NOILSIND OL A¥VMYUO4 dIMS ‘ON 41 ON S3A ¢3ulp|ing By3 03Ul US3Q JIAS NOA aneH
'3 1ySiw a4niny S31 1BYM pue ‘pasn aJe swooy A|quiassy 9y} Moy Jo M3IA3J e Supjeapun S [1ouno) Al Jalseouen

T 9seyd - ASAINS Jawnsuo) T Xipuaddy



Page 30

3SOT0 ANV )INVHL

YOLISIA VI01 ¢ EaJe 3y} 03 JOMSIA B NOA aJe 1o Aj|edo| aAl| noA og
éswooy A|quiassy ays Jo aininy ayl 1noge Aes 01 81| pjnom noA as|a SuiyiAue ausyy |
4014 / uanjdeaig / sso] £9NUANR )eJBUD (1Nl
S v € € T ¢UOI1BUIISAP B SE 19)J0 pue 38ejluay s Jaiseoue] adueyu (Il
S v € z T ¢49)J0 poo8 e yum uoideaie adelsay Aylinb pue aydiu e ag (1
99.8y AjBuouis — G / 9248y -7 / 9248es1Q 40 9348y JayuaN -¢€ / 9a48esiq -z / 9243es1qg AjSuons -T :pjnom winuodwa ay3 1ey) 9a43e noA op yanw moy ‘papinoid aaey noA siamsue ay) uo paseg
(so8p1y|as) anIsuadxa Aian 1nq Ayjenb SuipueisinQ — SuipueisinQ €
(syroog/asouniepn/spoo4 auld SIN) anisuadxa 1nq Ayjenb ysiH —y8iH z
(sAangsutes) anIsuadxa asow Apysiis ‘Ayjenb pooo —pooo g
(02sa] /epsy) sao1d Aep Alans yum Ayjenb jewuon - AepAsang T

¢9q wnuodwa ay) ul 43440 3yl pjnoys Aljenb jo |aAs] ey

£U91J0 MOY puy ¢SUOISEII0 1BYM UQ ¢3J43y3 08 NoA pjnopy  ¢Aym pue o8 pjnom yuiyy noA op oym

éhym M Aeay v /e /asia e/ ajiisia Ajjleay T

*J9)5edUeT Jo A103s 9y} ||91 03 sd|ay pue ‘suoijoeJlie d1103sIY J91SedueT Jaylo yum Suidasy-ul st 1eyl ‘@) pue joo| ueisi0a9 e yum pajuasald Sulaq wnuodwa ayl Inoge yuiyl NoA op 1eym
dAym M1 Ajjeay v/ A € / 1sid z /a11s1d Ajleay T ¢Assjjeamal pue syod ‘Ausxo0ud se yans syi8 Aljenb |e20] jo a8ueu [jews e Suipnjpul winuodwa syl Inoge juiyl NoA op 18y
éhum M Aeay v/ e/aMsiae/ ajlsia Ajjleay T

¢ Aeme axe} pue ul-1ea 03 ‘s12onpoud [BJ0| WOUY dpeW ‘swayl 1|ap pue Aidyeq ‘@uassized se yons pooy apewawoy uipnjoul wnuodwa Y3 3noge yulyy NoA op 1ey

dAum NI Alleay 1 / 911 € / asia ¢ /aM1sia Alledy T ¢ wooy-ea | ueiSi0a9 Ayjenb e Suipnjour wnuodwa ayy 1noge yuiyl noA op 1eym
éAym I Aljeay v / 311 € / a1sia ¢ /aM1sia Aljeay T ¢éAllesauas eapi siyy 1noge juiyy noA op 1eym
*J915e2UET 4O AI01S DY} |93 Sd|ay pue ‘SuoideJlle J1I0ISIY J91sedueT Jaylo yum Suidasy-ul Sl 1yl |99) pue 30| uelgioan vy (n

A1ajjamal pue syod ‘A1ax204d se yans syi8 Ayijenb [edo| jo a8ued |jews v

(swa1l 1]9p pue Aiadjeq ‘aliassized) Aeme aye31 pue ul 183 03 S19dNpo.d |BJ0] WO POO) IPEWSWOH (1
wooy-ea] ueldi0an Ayjenb y (1

:apnjpul pjnom siy ] ,;wnodw3, uei81095 e 3W023( 03} SWO0Y A|quassy ay} 40} S| eapl Jaylouy

¢Aym puy ¢uondo ayunoney JNoA s YdIYa

WIN3sN|A UeIS1099 SUIAN
191U S9[(e333([05 v

2aIysesue ul ape, s1siie / s19xew [eao] uo sndoy Suoays e yum AIS[[es s1yeld pue spe uy
~2Jiyseaueq ul apep], spoos Ayjenb ysiy pue siaanpoud |ed0| uo Suissndoy IIEUW POO) Y

WI00Jed) UeIS109D AMjenb v
INIANOJSIY¥ ¥NOA OL T Q¥VI IAID 3W033q p|nod Sulp|ing ay3 1eym Joj suoido g ale a4aH
¢Ja1seaue ul Sulp|ing 21403SIY PIsNUN Ue Ul 935 03 31| 1SOW NOA PINOM 1BYAA ¢3W0234 1 P|N02 1eym ‘4ay1ado) ||e uolouny sy a8ueyd 01 a4am Sulp|ing ay3 §|
¢pasdueyd Jo panosdwi 935 01 31| 1SOW NOA p|NOM 1Y\ ¢ U910 240w 03 01 NOA 33einodua pjnom Jeymn
¢343Y1 1uam/03 noA Aym uosead ulew ayi s 1IeYm
¢03 noA op usl0 moy adesane ug
9 NOILSIND OL AYVMYO4 dINS ‘ON 41 ON S3A ¢é8ulpjing 3y} 03Ul US3Q JAAS NOA dneH
'90 1YySIW 24n1nJ S 1BYM pue ‘pasn aJe sWooy A|quisssy syl Moy JO MalAaJ e Supjesspun st [1ouno) A1) Jsiseosue

Z 95eyd - ASAINS Jawinsuo) "z Xipuaddy



Page 31 Agenda ltem 7

CABINET

Chatsworth Gardens - Outcome of Developer Competition and
Consideration of the Private Sector Led Proposal

5 November 2013

Report of the Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning)

PURPOSE OF REPORT
To consider the outcome of the recent developer competition for Chatsworth Gardens, the
PlaceFirst proposal and the draft heads of terms for a detailed agreement. The options for
the way forward are compared, including the previously agreed council-led scheme to deliver
refurbished homes for sale.

Non-Key Decision . Referral from Cabinet D
Member

Date Included in Forthcoming Key decision notice 7 October 2013

This report is public, with the exception of Appendix 3, which is exempt from
publication by virtue of paragraph 3, of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act
1972.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR JANICE HANSON:

1) Cabinet approve the preferred Option 2, to secure an agreement with PlaceFirst for
refurbishment of council owned properties on Chatsworth Gardens to deliver new
homes for market rent.

2) The Clusters of Empty Homes Funding is reallocated from the previously approved
“council-led” scheme to Phase 1 of preferred Option 2.

3) On the basis of the draft heads of terms outlined in this report, and in conjunction
with PlaceFirst, officers draw up final contract documentation, consisting of an
overarching development agreement, building licence and grant agreement, for
delivery of Phase 1.

4) Subject to HCA lifting its charge on the properties, authority to sign off the
development agreement and building licence be delegated to the Chief Officer
(Governance), and authority to sign off the grant agreement be delegated to the Chief
Officer (Resources).

5) That Cabinet consider whether it is satisfied that disposal of the council’s interests
in the property will help the authority secure the promotion or improvement of the
economic, social or environmental well-being of its area, and, if it is so satisfied,
approve the disposal of the Phase 1 property for nil consideration, noting that,
subject to the outcome of the current independent property valuation exercise



6)

7)

8)

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

Page 32

confirming that the undervalue is less than £2m, the terms of the General Disposal
Consent will apply.

Members agree in principle to the delivery of Phase 2, allowing officers to work with
PlaceFirst on detailed proposals to be informed by the experience of Phase 1
delivery. Detailed proposals will be presented to Cabinet for Phase 2 seeking
authority to proceed.

Officers develop and submit a bid to the Department of Energy & Climate Change
“Green Deal Communities — Local Authority Fund” for energy efficient measures to i)
supplement the energy efficiency proposals specified in the preferred Option 2 and
ii) improve and roll out energy efficiency measures to properties in the West End
area. Authority to sign off the bid and accept any funding awarded be delegated to
the Chief Officer (Resources).

The Chief Officer (Resources) be authorised to update the General Fund Capital
Programme and General Fund Revenue Budget as appropriate, subject to there
being no additional call on the council’s resources.

Introduction

At April 2013 Cabinet were informed of interest in the Chatsworth Gardens regeneration
properties/site from private developer PlaceFirst Itd., and considered the developer’s
outline proposal for refurbishment through a managed private market rent tenure model.
and resolved to (minute reference:144):

¢ Conduct a new preferred developer competition to test all current private investment
interest.

e Agree Heads of Terms on a proposal which secures best consideration with respect
to the policy objectives of the council and the Homes and Communities Agency.

o The outcome of the developer competition, the recommended scheme and the initial
heads of terms proposed are reported to Cabinet for approval to proceed towards a
binding development agreement.

The renewed private interest emerged after the Cabinet decision at December 2012
Cabinet (minute reference 82) to a city council led contingency proposal for Chatsworth
Gardens which itself responded to the withdrawal of the original preferred developer
partner, Places for People, and the collapse of their demolition and new build
redevelopment scheme. Cabinet had resolved for the council to deliver a substantial
refurbishment project, accepting the contingent risks associated with construction, project
management and, importantly, end sales. It also allowed the council to use the £1.9M
Government Clusters of Empty Homes Funding (CEHF) previously secured for the area
which needs to be committed by end of March 2014 and spent by September 2014.

Without detailed information on the PlaceFirst proposal there was no guarantee their
scheme would ultimately be deliverable in the Chatsworth Gardens context. As retaining
the ability to spend CEHF resources was important Members also resolved at April 2013
Cabinet that (minute reference: 144).

o Officers continue with eligible preparatory and enabling works on the previously
approved council led scheme as a contingency against being unable to secure a
viable private developer proposal.



1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

23

24

25

3.0

3.1

Page 33

This report considers the outcome of the recent developer competition and the current
options for the regeneration of the Chatsworth Gardens site.

Background

Site Context and Ownership

It is useful for Members to be reminded of the site context. The Chatsworth Gardens
project objectives are outlined in the Relationship to Policy Framework section of this
report. The Chatsworth Gardens site consists of 2 property blocks split by Chatsworth
Road:

e Western Block: 4 terraces on Albert Road, Chatsworth Road, Regent Road and
Westminster Road.

e Eastern Block: 4 terraces on Albert Road, Balmoral Road. Chatsworth Road and
Regent Road.

The council owns (and currently maintains) 47 properties on the site (Appendix 1) bought
with HCA grant. Approximately £7M has been spent to date — around £5M on site
acquisitions and £2M on properties acquired elsewhere in the Masterplan area and other
associated costs including management and maintenance. Outside of the Chatsworth
Gardens area the council also owns a number of “non-project properties” (NPPs) across
the West End, also bought with HCA grant. The NPPs are earmarked for sale to provide
funding for the main Chatsworth Gardens project and ongoing significant revenue costs
associated with holding these properties.

Acquisition of 2 flats on Albert Road is currently underway and will utilise equal amounts of
HCA and CEHF moneys. This reduces the CEHF from just over £1.9M to £1.878M.

Developer Competition and Outcome

In early June officers issued an invitation to tender, detailed prospectus, scoring criteria
and supporting information to the HCA’s Developer Procurement Panel and Place First
with a deadline for submissions of 5 July. PlaceFirst was the only company to respond
with a formal submission. This confirmed officer advice as reported to April Cabinet, that a
traditional large scale private housing development on a difficult site in an area of low
demand/high risk and where major grant funding (over and above that currently secured) is
required was not feasible.

Following officer review and scoring of PlaceFirst’s initial proposal and, taking into account
clarifications received via structured interview, PlaceFirst were invited to work with the
council on a sole basis to further develop a proposal for Members’ consideration.

PlaceFirst’s Proposal

A summary document outlining PlaceFirst's proposal is attached in Appendix 2. The core
features and principles of the proposal are as follows:

" Non-Project Properties were acquired in 2004 when the Masterplan was in an embryonic stage and the HCA and LCC wanted
to make early progress with strategic acquisitions. 25 properties were acquired for £2.2M all located in what became the high

intervention Masterplan areas that would be brought forward under various projects e.g. Clarendon Road Remodelling, Adactus
Live/Work Units, Chatsworth Gardens, Marlborough Road, Bold Street, the ceased Central Park project and the Co-Op Building.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Page 34

Refurbishment Approach and Tenure Model

The proposal is for a comprehensive refurbishment approach across the 2 property blocks
described in paragraph 2.1. However, the development programme envisages 2 distinct
development phases, which is important to the overall financing structure described later in
the report:

o Phase 1: PlaceFirst will begin with refurbishment of the Western Block of 4 terraces
- where the council has almost complete ownership along Westminster and Albert
Road - with 46 units of accommodation due for completion by April 2015.

o Phase 2: Following completion PlaceFirst intends to move on to the Eastern Block
of 4 terraces, delivering around 46 units of accommodation by August 2016.

The council owned properties will be refurbished into a range of energy efficient typologies
including townhouses, duplex apartments, and hybrid apartment/maisonettes. The detail
for Phase 1 shows the delivery of:

3 x 1 bed homes

20 x 2 bed homes
13 x 3 bed homes
10 x 4 bed homes

The proposal works without the need to acquire any further properties. However, in order
to create a cohesive and attractive product a scheme for front and rear facelifts for the
properties not acquired is included in the scheme costs.

Phase 2 is similar in approach and intended to deliver a similar order of units. But, as will
be clarified below, more detailed work needs to be undertaken and many other factors
taken into consideration before the extent of intervention in Phase 2 can be confirmed and
implementation agreed between the parties.

The proposal is based on private market rental tenure. The market for this product has
arisen in response to the difficulties faced by potential home buyers in meeting large
deposit requirements of the mortgage market. The success of the proposal depends on
PlaceFirst partnering with a housing manager partner to act as landlord to the tenanted
properties. In its current schemes/portfolio this role is undertaken on a commercial basis
with local (i.e. active in the North West) Registered Providers. Although Placefirst are in
discussions with a Registered Provider partner for this proposal, one has not yet been
formally appointed/secured.

Planning permission is required and PlaceFirst are due to submit a planning application for
Phase 1, with outline permission for Phase 2, in November.

Financial Model and Funding

PlaceFirst’s financial model for Phase 1 (based on detailed drawings) and anticipated
outturn/delivery for Phase 2 (based on more generic assumptions) is attached in Appendix
3 (exempt from publication). It uses the discounted cash flow approach to development
appraisal which is suited to consideration of property development outcomes based on a
projected rental income stream, and is a standard industry model.

The delivery of Phase 2 is linked to the successful completion and financial stability
achieved following completion of Phase 1. PlaceFirst’s financing strategy involves transfer
of the council’s properties at nil value (refer to paragraph 6.9) and meeting the
refurbishment costs of Phase 1 from the following sources:



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Page 35

e The developer’'s and their investor's own money — the ‘equity’ on which they expect
to secure a reasonable market profit for the risk in undertaking the project.

o Debt finance (secured in-principle) from the HCA’s Build to Rent (BTR) scheme —
effectively a major loan which would be difficult to otherwise obtain from commercial
sources in the current financial climate.

e The council applying its remaining £1.9M secured CEHF resources as grant aid to
the developer to deliver Phase 1.

On completion of Phase 1, ownership of the refurbished properties will be transferred to
the developer at nil value and retained by them in perpetuity. Assuming reasonable
tenancy levels are secured, Phase 1 will have a substantial asset value based on the
potential future income generated from rents over a long term period. This value should
allow the company to secure a ‘refinancing strategy’ with a third party lender, turning the
income stream into a capital sum. This can be thought of as being similar in terms to a
home owner remortgaging to secure better terms. The refinanced capital sum
(representing a proportion of the asset value as the refinance capital loan/value ratio will be
less than the full value itself), is then apportioned, in order of priority, for:

I. Meeting the loan financing/repayment obligations to the HCA BTR scheme.
II. Return to the council a proportion of the CEHF grant aid applied to Phase 1.
lll. Return of PlaceFirst’s equity with required profit.

The intention is then to recycle the Phase 1 capital return into a similar exercise for Phase
2, that is, initial refurbishment (using developer equity, HCA second tranche loan and
council grant), completion/letting and refinancing to secure the desired capital return. On
completion of Phase 2 the developer profit across the whole scheme is ‘redeemed’ by the
developer.

PlaceFirst’'s target development appraisal also shows a projected surplus at the end of
Phase 2 - attributable to the input of CEHF ‘recycled’ grant. This will be available for
further housing/regeneration investment. However, until actual performance against the
predicted cost variables, asset value and refinancing negotiations are realised at Phase 1
end, the extent of Phase 2 (and any final residual surplus), is uncertain. Following their
initial return on Phase 1 the partner investors must also decide whether the outturn has
been successful enough to warrant the further equity contribution required for Phase 2.

All development appraisals depend on the accuracy of the underlying assumptions. The
complexity of the model and the market conditions means no analysis of cost/value/return
outcome (made at a single point in time), is an exact science - multiple variables impact in
many ways. The analysis should be regarded as a reasoned view of the likelihood of
achieving the desired outcome at a certain order of cost. However, the sensitivity in key
variables is important to understand as these variances will impact on the developer’s
ability to achieve the desired Phase 1 targets, and by extension, what can be achieved in
Phase 2.

Appendix 3, and the summary under Financial Implications (exempt from publication)
reviews:

I. The extent to which the developer has employed reasonable and prudent
benchmarks, value assessments, profit/return assumptions particularly around:

- Refurbishment costs / tendering benchmarks
- Rental pricing strategy and allowance for letting / voids /bad debts
- Appropriateness of developer profit requirement and applied appraisal discount



3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

Page 36

rate
- Apportionment of risk/reward at refinancing if return is less/more than
anticipated (and the impact on Phase 2 and final completion)

The company’s underlying financial strength and ability to deliver their proposal

The protection of the council’s interests and mitigation of the risks associated with the
above issues are to be managed through a suite of detailed contractual agreements. The
proposed structure of which is described below.

Proposed Legal Framework

As the phasing of the scheme is critical it has been proposed that the legal structure should
be based on the following principles:

A contractual agreement for delivery and completion of Phase 1 (with a commitment
to undertake further detailed work under an ‘in principle’ agreement to deliver Phase
2).

On Phase 1 completion, and following a reasonable period for letting, undertake a
joint review/assessment of the viability of proceeding with Phase 2.

Following the review, and If acceptable to all parties, the relevant authority to enter
into a further agreement for delivery and completion of Phase 2 is sought.

The contractual framework for each separate Phase will involve the following :

Development Agreement

Providing the Overarching Agreement to establish arrangements between the
developer and council for carrying out the development scheme and the ongoing
management of the development area. The draft Heads of Terms forming the
basis, structure and shape of the Agreement are attached in Appendix 4.

Building Licence

A supplemental document to be entered into in accordance with the terms of the
Overarching Agreement. Properties will not be transferred in title to the developer
until refurbishment is complete. In order for both the council’'s and developer’s
interests to be protected the Building Licence sets out the parties obligations and
responsibilities over the site, providing rights of entry and authority to carry out
works in accordance with an approved scheme and providing a basis for
certification of completion and transfer.

Grant Agreement

The council intends to use £1.9M CEHF funds in Phase 1 of the project. The
investment will be in the form of a grant and the conditions of the award will be
enshrined within a document with conditions to protect the council’s interests in its
eligible use. A mechanism will need to be defined by which the anticipated amount
of grant funding is returned at the point of refinancing at the end of Phase 1,
recycled into Phase 2, with a the final anticipated return due against grant (which
can be recycled into further housing/regeneration work). This will be achieved by
inclusion of an overage clause.

The council has experience of delivering complex development agreements with third party
developers and, in general, the provisions and clauses are standard industry formulations.
The fitness of the heads of terms and legal framework are further discussed in Legal

Implications section.



4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 37

Details of Consultation

Extensive consultation established the project objectives and principles. However, since the
collapse of the original Places for People scheme due the recession there has been too
much uncertainty on the way forward to make detailed consultation meaningful. Following
a decision at this Cabinet meeting it is intended to undertake further community
engagement and consultation on the practical details of project delivery with local residents
and property owners.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

A ‘do nothing’ option is not included within this report. Disposal of all properties with sales
receipts covering disposal fees was discounted due to Members’ consistent support for
finding a positive solution to Chatsworth Gardens. The option of ‘pulling out’ of the project
presents considerable risk in every way other than financial. It declines to use
approximately £1.9M CEHF funding currently secured and may also damage future council
HCA resource bids and partnership working. This option is therefore not considered in this
report. The viable options are detailed in the table overleaf.

Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

Option 1 is the ‘council-led’ scheme previously agreed by Members following December
2012 Cabinet (minute reference 82) and officers have continued work on this as a
contingency (see para 1.3 of this report). The proposal is detailed in a previous report,
listed as a Background Paper

As noted in previous reports the basis of the intervention strategy in Option 1, and the
ultimate underlying risk, lies is in securing sales for the houses remodeled. As
refurbishments are completed in particular terraces, ongoing sales are required to generate
further income to continue with further phases of intervention otherwise the project will stall.
The mortgage market is still difficult for first-time buyers, although the introduction of a local
mortgage assistance scheme and the recent launched new phase of the Government’s
Help to Buy policy may partially improve this situation. Members should be under no
illusion about the challenge of securing rolling house sales in the West End of Morecambe
in the current economic climate, and the very real risks this presents to delivering a project
with this tenure model.

Given the general risks attached to Option 1 the Place First proposal as described in
Option 2 merits serious consideration. The introduction of a market rent model allows a
much more flexible and potentially more extensive approach to be taken. According to the
council's own market intelligence and discussion with local agents, refurbished
maisonette/apartment property is difficult to sell on the open market — the council’'s scheme
did not therefore consider these house types. However, renting this type of property is less
of an issue for prospective tenants who are generally more concerned with overall
design/quality, management/landlord relations and security of tenure.



Option 1: Implement previously approved city council led
scheme for refurbishment of council owned properties on
Chatsworth Gardens to deliver homes for sale

Option 2: Secure an agreement with PlaceFirst for refurbishment of council
owned properties on Chatsworth Gardens to deliver homes for market rent
(Preferred Option)

oOmeE>»-—HZr»<0>»

Provides a positive and quality solution to the desired Chatsworth
Gardens regeneration objectives / outcomes.

Utilises existing Clusters of Empty Homes Funding (CEHF).
Brings empty homes back into use.

Clearly sets out council’s commitment to local residents and
owners in the area.

Demonstrates delivery to HCA boosting chances for future
funding.

Provides all advantages of Option 1 with a number of additional benefits:

Funding model and tenure allows greater capital investment/value to be generated out of
almost double the individual housing unit outcome.

Current appraisal, even with high level of sensitivity applied, appears to give a greater
certainty on the extent of intervention. At the current assessment all the council’'s empty
properties on Chatsworth Gardens are refurbished (in 2 phases) and a surplus is
generated on the initial public grant investment which can be recycled back into the
project or further housing/regeneration investment.

In terms of architectural approach the scheme provides a greater impact — moves the
project more towards ‘exemplar’ features originally envisaged in West End Masterplan.
Developer has specialism in, and seeks to deliver, higher environmental standards.
Developer has commitment to, and a commercial interest in good long term management
of the development and improving the wider area and context for their investment. Place
First see themselves as a potential council partner on future projects/developments.
“Open book” accounting allows council to accurately assess reasonableness of the
developer’s costs, returns etc.

Transfers construction and delivery risk to private sector. Moves from sales risk to a
relatively less risky rental model.

More control over and greater amount of private sector investment to enable draw down
of all CEHF.

OomEOP—-HZr<oOoO>»n-—0

Ideally requires co-operation from owner occupiers & landlords to
implement facelift element and deliver a cohesive scheme
Uncertainty of delivery outcome for Regent Road and extent of
progress is subject to the achievement of projected sales values
Misses out on potential to transfer development risk away from
the council.

Tenure model of sales to owner occupiers is high risk in current
market and location, even with the new Government Help to Buy
scheme.

Ongoing increasing management costs of properties as scheme
progresses, particularly council tax liabilities as majority empty for
more than 2 years

Ideally requires co-operation from owner occupiers and landlords to implement facelift
element and deliver a cohesive scheme.

Phasing of scheme and dependence on market conditions before Phase 2 can be
committed means the council is still liable for management costs associated with those
empty properties, although there is a similar burden for Option 1 (refer to Financial
Implications).

Under adverse market conditions and performance Phase 2 may be less extensive and/or
lower surplus return on public grant and may even prove unviable. However, similar
market risks are attached to Option 1 in terms of potential extent of intervention

g¢ abed



Option 1: Implement previously approved city council led
scheme for refurbishment of council owned properties on
Chatsworth Gardens to deliver homes for sale

Option 2: Secure an agreement with PlaceFirst for refurbishment of council
owned properties on Chatsworth Gardens to deliver homes for market rent
(Preferred Option)

OxXnNW—2

Involves the council taking on the delivery risks on a capital
housing development project.

The council will face a sales risk on the direct refurbishment
properties that needs to be mitigated by some form of mortgage
assistance scheme.

Limited control over private sector match required to access part
of CEHF grant.

Build costs and sales date/value can adversely impact project
(although a reasonable contingency is built in).

Failure to achieve sales rates/values adversely effects ability to
achieve full extent of project and could lead to an
underachievement of CEHF outputs and issues with the funder.

Uncertainty of delivery until development agreement is finalised and impact on deadlines
for meeting CEHF obligations. Similarly, the Developer not completing Phase 1 for
reasons beyond their control. Reversion to the council-led scheme as a contingency is
not practical after January 2014. However, the risk of not achieving agreement or
completion is considered low.

Securing tenants still represents a challenge and the developer has not formally secured
a Registered Provider as a managing partner at the time of writing.

The proposal is based on untested private tenure/management models and the developer
is a relatively young and rapidly expanding company, i.e. currently undertaking two other
similar schemes, one due to complete November 2014.

Failure to complete and/or achieve projected outturn from Phase 1 adversely effects
ability to achieve Phase 2 and could lead to an underachievement of CEHF outputs and
issues with the funder.

6¢ abed



6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 40

The costs of creating an individual refurbished house in Option 1 are high due to the
necessity for heavy intervention in the fabric of the large former guesthouses and HMOs.
There is still a need for expensive intervention in Option 2, but the costs of creating 2 or 3
individual dwelling units out of one property are not especially different from creating a
single unit.  PlaceFirst can therefore create more outturn value for the cost of
refurbishment. The development appraisal for Option 2 shows that all the council owned
properties are addressed with a projected surplus, part of which will be available to be
recycled back into the project or further housing/regeneration schemes. By contrast, there
is uncertainty in the extent to which the council-led scheme would generate enough capital /
resource to enable a comprehensive approach to be undertaken. Option 1 does not, for
example, provide a solution to all of the largest and most difficult Regent Road properties.

There are market risks within Option 2, and the sensitivity in the appraisal figures (refer to
Financial Implications) reveal how the movement in key variables could impact on the
extent of / ability to deliver Phase 2 and the level of outturn surplus the council could expect
to receive. However, Option 1 is also significantly subject to market factors - perhaps more
so given the rental market is generally accepted to be more stable in terms of demand than
the sales market. There is current debate by industry commentators that the Government’s
proposals to underwrite first time buyer deposits through Help to Buy could lead to
increased volatility in house prices in the short / medium term. The proposed break
following delivery of Phase 1 in Option 2 will also allow both parties to take stock. Within
pragmatic cost/outturn sensitivities applied to the appraisal figures an extensive intervention
in Phase 2 is still possible and probably has more certainty of outcome than Option 1.

The transfer of development risk, additional physical outcomes, and security of private
investment are the clearest benefits of Option 2 over Option 1. In terms of potential
regeneration impact/outcome the PlaceFirst scheme fundamentals bear comparison with
the council-led scheme, and in most areas represent a significant improvement. The
particular risks/mitigation attached to the PlaceFirst proposal centre on:

o Critical path to agreeing the detailed legal framework with PlaceFirst: The £1.9M
CEHF needs to be committed by end of March 2014 and spent by September 2014.
However, if contracts cannot be exchanged by the end of March the ability to use
CEHF (and deliver the project) will be lost unless an extension to the CEHF
commitment deadline is agreed with the Government. In addition, should PlaceFirst
and the council fail to agree detailed terms after January 2014 the council will lose
the comfort of being able to deliver Option1 as a contingency project, again unless
an extension to the CEHF commitment deadline is agreed. This is because it is not
practical to complete and commit CEHF resources by the end of March 2014 if
tendering on the council-led project starts after January 2014. However, officers
consider the risk of being unable to sign an agreement with PlaceFirst by the end of
March 2014 to be low. PlaceFirst’'s team has been working closely with officers for
a number of months, and both joint-working arrangements and detailed contract
negotiations have been proceeding well. There are no anticipated issues to
agreeing the detailed contracts in good time — officers advise that the documents’
content will be of a standard form to be completed under the heads of terms
(Appendix 4) which are considered acceptable. In order for the council to contract
with PlaceFirst the Homes and communities Agency (HCA) must also agree to lift
their charge on the properties imposed on the basis of their previous grant funding
sunk into the project for acquisitions. This is also considered to be a low risk (refer
to Legal Implications)

e Housing Manager Partner: The introduction of privately rented stock, if marketed
and managed correctly, is compatible with the overall regeneration objectives for
Chatsworth Gardens (see Relationship to Policy Framework) and is consistent with



6.7

6.8

6.9

Page 41

trends in the housing market. However, Members will be alive to the need to secure
tenants, ensure robust management protocols and enforceable legal agreements to
prevent reversion of properties to uncontrolled market rent in a regeneration area.
At the time of writing PlaceFirst have not formally secured a named partner
Registered Provider for this particular project. While it is still possible to develop
strong agreements on the managing agent protocols / underwriting of
occupancy/voids it is better for a named partner to be involved at the earliest
opportunity to ensure the controls enshrined in the agreement are practical for the
particular context.

e Capacity / Track Record: PlaceFirst is a young company and has been trading since
November 2009 operating in a relatively immature market for delivering large scale,
comprehensively managed private rent tenure. PlaceFirst has current working
agreements with other public authorities, and are on-site delivering a number of
similar projects. But the financial model is untested in the sense that no similar
project by the developer has reached a level of rental maturity or confirmed
sustainability in financial terms. While the financial/project structure could be
considered innovative, it is only novel in the context of a UK institutional finance
market wholly dominated by “building for sale”. Officers consider the quality of
PlaceFirst's development proposals to be high and, due to the developer’s
associated specialism in energy efficiency/sustainable development solutions, there
are interesting features / opportunities which the council would struggle to match
within the resources available in its own Option 1 scheme.

It is considered the council’s interests can be protected through detailed legal agreements
and the above issues resolved to secure CEHF commitment in good time. The model has
real regeneration potential and brings many advantages in terms of the transfer of the
majority of the Chatsworth Gardens development risk to the private sector. The developer
has sound financial structure, a long term approach to investment/return; a high degree of
competency and talent in design/delivery; a relatively simple investment model; and
enthusiasm for Morecambe/West End as a place. Their detailed proposition is a compelling
one, presenting a situation where the council is able to meet its regeneration objectives
without needing either to take on project/sales risk or bring additional public investment
over that currently secured via CEHF.

Option 2 is therefore the preferred option: Officers work towards securing an agreement
with PlaceFirst for refurbishment of council owned properties on Chatsworth Gardens to
deliver new homes for market rent. The agreement will be structured on the basis outlined
in paragraph 3.14 above.

Members should note that it is proposed to transfer the properties to PlaceFirst at nil value,
therefore the disposal means approving an ‘undervalue’. This is because the council’s
requirements remove the value which could hypothetically be achieved from selling the
former multi-occupied HMO property on the open market with no restrictions on future use.
Disposals for a consideration that is less than the best that can reasonably be obtained
normally require the specific consent of the Secretary of State (SoS) However, the
Secretary of State has given a general consent which applies where the difference between
the unrestricted value of the interests to be disposed of and the consideration accepted
(“the undervalue”) is £2M or less, and the authority considers that the disposal will help it to
secure the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being
of its area The outcome of the independent valuation exercise is pending and will be
known prior to Cabinet, thereby determining the scale of undervalue. However, it is
anticipated that the valuations over the projected phases of the PlaceFirst proposal will
show that the undervalue is less than £2M. Furthermore given the projected surplus (for
recycling back into the project or other housing/regeneration work), it could be considered



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

Page 42

the council has potential to recoup the undervalue to some extent in due course, although
there are no guarantees.

Supplementary Funding Opportunity

In July the Department of Energy & Climate Change (DECC) launched a “Green Deal
Communities — Local Authority Fund”, a capital based fund for delivery of energy efficient
measures. Funding is also only available to support work where the occupant or owner
makes a financial contribution to the costs of installing the measures, either through Green
Deal Finance or by meeting these costs upfront. Key fund parameters are:

e principal funding is for projects only, with a minimum threshold of £1m (and flexible
cap up to £3m);

e projects must deliver significant retrofits across whole streets/areas;

e bids must set out how energy bill payers will be engaged with and encouraged to
sign up to Green Deal Plans;

e bids must include evidence that Energy Company Obligation (ECO) funding will be
available to support the bid. ECO funding is required to be provided by the ‘big six’
suppliers — British Gas, EDF, E.ON, Npower, Scottish Power and SSE - to assist
‘hard to treat’ houses and vulnerable households access and implement energy
efficiency measures.

¢ funding is only to support work where a contribution to measures is made either
through using Green Deal finance or by self-funding measures;

e bids must demonstrate that strong partnerships have been established to support
delivery, including local community partners;

e _bids should address potential local barriers, e.g. how have planning issues been
addressed to support the bid and avoid delays;

e bids must demonstrate strong value for money;

e bids build in monitoring (including data collection) from the outset and commit to
working with DECC’s overall Green Deal evaluation and sharing learning including
case studies and open homes;

e comply with all state aid rule:

Bids are invited from local authorities by 31 December 2013 and must be from a minimum
of £1m up to £3m. The full criteria are provided in Appendix 5 for Members’ consideration.

Given the funding/eligibility criteria, officers think there is potential to secure additional
substantial funding for improvements in the energy efficiency measures proposed in the
preferred Option 2. In addition, there is potential to roll out the energy efficiency agenda
and practical approaches using Chatsworth Gardens as an ‘exemplar’ of local housing
types to owners across the West End. As previously mentioned, PlaceFirst’'s work in energy
efficiency/sustainable development solutions, and the transfer of properties into their private
ownership makes an ideal opportunity to add value to the Chatsworth Gardens project and
assist in contributing towards the council’s sustainability agenda.

Members are asked to allow officers to investigate and develop a bid to “Green Deal
Communities — Local Authority Fund” for energy efficient measures to i) supplement the
energy proposals for the Preferred Option 2 and ii) improve properties in the immediate
West End area. The bid is currently anticipated to be of the order of £1.5M to £2.0M.

It must be stressed that progression and implementation of the preferred Option 2 is not
dependent on securing this DECC funding. Any award received will enable wholly
additional improvements to the Chatsworth Gardens specification and practical



Page 43

incentives/approaches for private owners in the West End to implement energy efficiency
measures.

7.0 Conclusion

71 Officers have conducted a developer competition to test all current private investment
interest in the Chatsworth Gardens development opportunity. PlaceFirst have provided a
proposal which, if supported by the council’'s exercise of its powers under the Local
Government Act 1972 general disposal consent, will help the council to secure the
promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well being of its area
by the refurbishment of council owned properties on Chatsworth Gardens to deliver new
homes for market rent.

7.2 Members are advised to allow officers to secure an agreement with PlaceFirst based on
their proposal which both reduces the council’s risk burden and secures a better and more
certain outcome against its regeneration objectives.

Appendices:

Appendix 1 - Council Ownership on Chatsworth Gardens

Appendix 2 - Place First Proposal Summary Plans / Document

Appendix 3 — Review of PlaceFirst Financial Model/Appraisal (exempt from publication)
Appendix 4 - Heads of Terms

Appendix 5 - Green Deal Communities — Local Authority Fund Application Pack

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

In January 2011 council resolved that housing regeneration be included as a theme in its
corporate priorities. This was reaffirmed in the 2012-2015 Corporate Plan.

The Chatsworth Gardens Project is a key element of the West End Masterplan and was
ranked as a high priority by Cabinet as part of review and refresh exercise carried out on the
Masterplan in 2009. The council has been working with the Homes and Communities
Agency (HCA), formerly known (prior to December 2008) as English Partnerships, to deliver
the Chatsworth Gardens Housing Exemplar scheme. The objectives of the proposal are as
follows:

Attract families and long-term residents to live and work in and near the town
Create a more balanced community

Reverse the negative perception of Morecambe’s West End as a place to live
Reduce the number of HMOs (Houses in Multiple Occupation)

Kick-starting public/private investment in the area;

Creating confidence in the market — to show that family housing is possible and have
a catalytic effect (along with the other interventions)

Deliver quality housing stock

Address crime and social conditions in the area

¢ Act as a demonstration to the market in terms of the standard and quality of housing
that should be delivered in the Masterplan area

As 40% of the districts homelessness derives from failed private sector tenancies in the
West End, these schemes will help reduce homelessness, enable housing supply
imbalances to be corrected and help stabilise a transient community



Page 44

There is a relationship between bringing empty homes back into use and the allocation of
proposed sites for housing in the Local Plan. Empty property reuse is a significant element of
providing for the District’'s housing needs.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

The West End Masterplan has carefully considered issues of sustainability and is based on
sustainable principles. Any proposal received will need to be designed and built in
accordance with specifications/standards which ensure high quality urban design, including
safer by design and life time homes standards as well as high environmental standards.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal Services have been consulted and their comments inserted within the body of the
report where appropriate.

The legal implications of progressing with Option 1 are fully discussed in the
report/recommendations of 4™ December 2012 Cabinet (Minute 82).

The legal implications of progressing with Option 2 are as follows:

General Disposal considerations

The agreement between the developer and the council is effectively a disposal of land.
Legal Services officers confirm that the terms of the developer competition have been
conducted within, and the disposal will be taken forward under, the terms of the council’s
disposal procedures.

The proposal in Option 2 is to dispose of the council’s holdings at nil value.

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that authorities may not, without the
consent of the Secretary of State sell land for “a consideration less than the best that can
reasonably be obtained”.

However, the General Disposal Consent issued by the Secretary of State in 2003 provides
that the Secretary of State’s consent is not required for the disposal of an interest of land
which the authority considers will help it to secure the promotion or improvement of the
economic, social or environmental well-being of its area, where the difference between the
unrestricted value of the interests to be disposed and the consideration accepted (“the
undervalue”) is £2M or less. The council is currently revaluing the relevant properties to
confirm the amount of the undervalue, but the current assumption is that the undervalue is
unlikely to be more than £2M, and this will be confirmed at the meeting. Accordingly, the
council could dispose of the land without the specific consent of the Secretary of State,
provided that members are satisfied that the disposal will help to secure the promotion or
improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being of the area.

Legal Framework

The basis of the legal framework is to ensure the council retains control over this major
scheme and ensure that maximum consideration in terms of well-being benefits is received.
The agreement will be required to incorporate provisions for monitoring the performance of
the developer and the ability to grant disposals initially across Phase 1.




Page 45

As the phasing of the scheme is critical it has been proposed that the legal structure should
be based on the following principles:

e A contractual agreement for delivery and completion of Phase 1 (with a commitment
to undertake further detailed work under an ‘in principle’ agreement to deliver Phase
2).
On Phase 1 completion, and following a reasonable period for letting, undertake a
joint review/assessment of the viability of proceeding with Phase 2.

¢ Following the review, and if acceptable to all parties, the relevant authority to enter
into a further agreement for delivery and completion of Phase 2 is sought.

The contractual framework for each separate Phase will involve the following :

o Development Agreement
Providing the Overarching Agreement to establish arrangements between the
developer and council for carrying out the development scheme and the ongoing
management of the development area. The Agreement will cover: initial conditions /
events to be achieved prior to start on site; individual organisational and mutual
obligations; timing considerations and the rights of parties/investors. The final
agreement will be a complex contractual document with all necessary detail. The
draft Heads of Terms forming the basis, structure and shape of the Agreement are
attached in Appendix 4.

Building Licence

A supplemental document to be entered into in accordance with the terms of the
Overarching Agreement. Properties will not be transferred in title to the developer
until refurbishment is complete. In order for both the council’s and developer’s
interests to be protected the Building Licence sets out the parties obligations and
responsibilities over the site, providing rights of entry and authority to carry out works
in accordance with an approved scheme and providing a basis for certification of
completion and transfer.

Grant Agreement

The council intends to use £1.9M CEHF funds in Phase 1 of the project. The
investment will be in the form of a grant and the conditions of the award will be
enshrined within a document with conditions to protect the council’s interests in its
eligible use. A mechanism is defined by which the anticipated amount of grant
funding is returned at the point of refinancing at the end of Phase 1, recycled into
Phase 2, with a the final anticipated return due against grant (which can be recycled
into further housing/regeneration work). An overage clause and formula represents
the mechanism to apportion any reward surplus / risk deficit against anticipated
figures at the defined particular Phase completion, valuation and refinancing events.

Statutory Approvals / Partner Funding Agreements

Planning approval is required for the implementation of Phase 1 and Phase 2. While a risk
to timing of implementation there are no major issues anticipated or which have been
highlighted in detailed discussions with the city council’s planning officers. Similarly the
relevant statutory interventions (e,g in the highway and to utilities), are not expected to
cause major delays. Resolution of all statutory approvals will be made conditional on
starting on-site in the Development agreement.

The council was in default of the current HCA funding agreement for Chatsworth Gardens




Page 46

dated 21/12/2005 when its original private developer partner Places for People withdrew.
Schedule 2, Part 1 of the agreement states that the council will provide the Agency with its
detailed written proposals for the future management development and disposal of the
council site. In February 2011 a high level meeting with the HCA indicated that they will
support the council’s preferred approach if they consider it to be a viable and positive
regeneration solution, but at that time had no funding to support the council achieving this. In
February 2012 the HCA encouraged the council to apply for the Cluster of Empty Homes
Funding opportunity as a solution to Chatsworth Gardens.

In order for the council to contract with PlaceFirst the Homes and Communities Agency
(HCA) must agree to lift the charge on the properties imposed on the basis of their previous
grant funding sunk into the project for acquisitions. To lift the charge on the properties the
HCA need to agree to the disposal and this requires both a local and a national approval.
The ‘local’ approval is handled by the North West HCA office and could be achieved in
November with approval by the HCA Project Executive in London the following month. This
presents an overall scheme risk to implementation (and the potential for sign off to the
development agreement and by extension the commitment of CEHF funding). However,
officers anticipate this risk to be low as:

e The HCA have been kept informed of the council’s efforts to secure a contingency
solution. Officers followed the HCA’s advice in presenting the opportunity to the
open market before agreeing to work with PlaceFirst on the basis of their
submission.

The HCA has a separate interest in the project via its Build to Rent scheme.
PlaceFirst have secured finance partly on the basis of delivery on Chatsworth
Gardens. The HCA is fully aware of the merits of the scheme and have approved
funding after undertaking their own due diligence on the company. In order for this
finance to be released to PlaceFirst the HCA will need to place a new charge on the
properties, reinforcing the need/desirability of lifting the current charge.

The HCA has an interest in progressing CEHF spend as administrators to the DCLG
for the scheme and are fully committed to the objectives.

There is a great deal of support for the proposal from various sections within the HCA so it is
expected that HCA will agree to the lifting of the charge.

The acceptance of the Clusters of Empty Homes Funding (CEHF) offer is under a

separate agreement to the 2005 funding agreement. The CEHF needs to be committed by
end of March 2014 and spent by September 2014. However, if contracts cannot be
exchanged by the end of March the ability to use CEHF (and deliver the project) will be lost
unless an extension to the CEHF commitment deadline is agreed with the Government. In
addition, should PlaceFirst and the council fail to agree detailed terms after January 2014
the council will lose the comfort of being able to deliver Option1 as a contingency project,
again unless an extension to the CEHF commitment deadline is agreed. This is because it
is not practical to complete and commit CEHF resources by the end of March 2014 if
tendering on the council-led project starts after January 2014. However, officers consider
the risk of being unable to sign an agreement with PlaceFirst by the end of March 2014 to be
low. PlaceFirst’'s team has been working closely with officers for a number of months, and
both joint-working arrangements and detailed contract negotiations have been proceeding
well. There are no anticipated issues to agreeing the detailed contracts in good time —
officers advise that the documents’ content will be of a standard form to be completed under
the heads of terms (Appendix 4) which are considered acceptable.

The CEHF resources will be applied to eligible works on empty properties and public realm
as required by the terms of the fund. The spend will monitored and secured by provisions in




Page 47

the Grant Agreement between PlaceFirst and the council.

Supplementary Funding Opportunity

The report notes an intention for officers to develop and submit a bid for DECC funding
under the Green Deal Communities — Local Authority Fund. Should a funding offer be made
on the basis of this bid the delivery of any proposals will involve a formal grant agreement to
be made between the city council and the funder/accountable body. The outline terms and
conditions of the funding stream have been reviewed by legal services and the terms appear
standard for Government sponsored external funding streams. Any particular conflict in final
grant award terms with council policies/procedures raised in development of the more
detailed proposals or under any offer will be considered and reported to Cabinet as
necessary.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Financial Implications of progressing with Option 1 are fully discussed in the
report/recommendations of 4" December 2012 Cabinet (Minute 82).

In terms of the Financial Implications of progressing with the Developer’s proposal as
outlined in Option 2, these should be read in conjunction with the legal implications and the
figures and assumptions which are detailed in Appendix 3. It should be noted that
development appraisals depend on the accuracy of the underlying variables and as well as
experience on current ongoing schemes elsewhere, the Developer has employed
reasonable and prudent cost benchmarks and market value assessment informed by the
views of a leading construction consultant, published statistics on private rent, bespoke
market research and local agents, etc. Officers within Financial Services (Resources) and
Regeneration & Planning have also reviewed the assumptions contained within the financial
model upon which the Developer has based its proposal for Phase 1 and are comfortable
with the competency of the underlying data.

In comparison with Option 1, although Option 2 is the more expensive of the two to refurbish,
it is important to note that the Developer’s scheme is based on current prices, whereas the
council’s is based on prices over a year old, it includes the large ‘difficult to deal with’
properties on Regent Road, which the council’'s scheme is unable to afford in the short to
medium term and is based on a much higher environmental specification. In addition, it
removes the council from the burden of contingent risks in respect of construction,
refurbishment, VAT partial exemption liabilities, project management and future property
rental management or end sales and will further assist in reducing ongoing revenue
management costs associated with holding Chatsworth Gardens, e.g. significant council tax
liabilities for Phase 1 initially and ultimately Phase 2, subject to a viable business plan for
implementation of this next phase.

The Developer intends to form a specific Special Purpose Vehicle company (SPV) for this
proposal to meet funder’s requirements and provide transparency. This will also enable the
council to monitor scheme costs, cashflow and ongoing viability, etc. The refurbishment will
be delivered through a fixed price design and build contract through which costs will be
controlled. The main risk therefore arises through the future management of the property
portfolio and its ongoing viability, which will be shaped in the main by levels of rent that can
be achieved and overall levels of voids. It should be noted that at this stage although the
Developer is in discussions with a Registered Provider partner for Phase 1, one has not yet
been formally appointed.

Prior to entering into further contractual commitment with the Developer for Phase 2, it would



Page 48

be necessary for both parties to review the relative success or failure of Phase 1 to meet the
forecast costs, net rental income and ability to ‘re-finance’ based on future rental values to
inform the viability of the next phase of the project. This is not too dissimilar to what would
be required under Option 1, the main difference being that Option 2 in all likelihood has more
certainty of achieving a comprehensive approach compared with Option 1.

It is re-iterated that the principal financial risk arising under both options continues to be the
ability of the council to secure Clusters of Empty Homes spend, which needs to be
committed by end of March 2014 and spent by end of September 2014 and although not
without its risks, it is felt that Option 2 provides the most realistic solution in meeting these
deadlines.

The final position regarding total number of properties and actual CEHF to be included under
Option 2 will be reflected in the legal agreements should any further property sales be
actioned prior to commencement of the proposal, therefore based of the Heads of Terms
outlined in this report, it is proposed that final associated legal documentation, i.e. the
overarching Development Agreement, Building Licence and Grant Agreement continue to be
drawn up by Officers in conjunction with the Developer and that subject to HCA lifting its
charge on the properties, authority to sign off and enter into a formal contract be delegated
to the Chief Officer (Governance) and Chief Officer (Resources).

In disposing of the council’s property holding at nil value, it needs to be determined whether
or not there is an ‘undervalue’, therefore the council is currently in the process of having its
properties independently valued prior to commencement of the scheme. Although the
Capital Programme does not currently include a budgeted capital receipt for this scheme and
so there will be no bottom line impact upon transfer, regardless of whether or not the
Developer led scheme is approved, it is likely that the current carrying value (based on
original acquisition costs) on the council’s balance sheet (£2.7M for Phase 1 properties) will
need to be reduced in line with the expected revaluation. Further impairment / write off
would be required at the end of Phase 1 upon transfer to the Developer.

Supplementary Funding Opportunity

As outlined in the report the proposal to develop and submit a capital bid to the Department
of Energy & Climate Change “Green Deal Communities — Local Authority Fund” is for energy
efficient measures to i) supplement the energy efficiency proposals specified in the preferred
Option 2 and ii) improve and roll out energy efficiency measures to properties in the West
End area. Any funding award is wholly additional to the progression of the preferred Option
2. ltis anticipated that much of the implementation arising from any funding award will be
undertaken by PlaceFirst as the council’s delivery partner and involve officer resources,
principally from Regeneration and Planning, Partnership and Accountancy sections.

It is recommended that authority to sign off the bid and accept any funding awarded be
delegated to the Chief Officer (Resources).

The General Fund Capital Programme and Revenue Budget will need to be updated as
appropriate to reflect the financial implications of those recommendations approved (in part
or whole), subject to there being a nil impact on the council’s resources.

The progression of this scheme will impact to some degree on the council tax yield and New
Homes Bonus funding, although it is impossible to forecast this at present because of the
many variables and uncertainties. The impact is not considered a material consideration
however, and it would be picked up as future monitoring develops.




Page 49

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources:

The human resources required to deliver Option 1 are fully discussed in the report/ 4"
December 2012 Cabinet (Minute 82) report - these are principally from Regeneration and
Planning, although other services support is required, including Financial, Property and
Legal. Progressing with the Place First proposal in Option 2 will require input from Legal,
Financial and Property Services officers’ time in negotiating and drafting the detailed terms
of the underlying legal documentation. Ongoing input will be required over the lifetime of
the project managing properties prior to implementation of Phase 2, principally from
Regeneration and Planning although other services support will be required including
Financial, Property and Legal.

Information Services:

No Information Service implications.

Property:

The major implications for the involvement of Property Services are discussed in the body of
the report and Legal Implications section. The developer competition involves the disposal
and future development/management of refurbished residential and some commercial
property to the terms of the council’s Corporate Property and Disposal Strategies. The
progression of the project requires input from the council’s property services staff in
conjunction with Regeneration & Planning staff leading the project.

Open Spaces:

No Open Space implications.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Paul Rogers / Tom Brown
Cabinet Report 4™ December 2012, minute || Telephone: 01524 582326 / 01524 582334
ref: no.82: E-mail: progers@lancaster.gov.uk
Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday, 4th tbrown@lancaster.gov.uk

December 2012, 10.00 a.m. Ref:

Cabinet Report 23 April 2013, minute ref:

no.144:

Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday, 23rd April

2013, 10.00 a.m.

Winning Back Morecambe’s West End

Masterplan - available on Lancaster City

Council Website:

http://www.lancaster.gov.uk/planning/regener

ation/morecambe-s-west-end/




NG
pow (Y= !J%u

w.h“‘ v ww

iplicg

e

Spug

5 A R ; : = @ ..\.H., 2N
pauinboe Bujaq Apedoid [ |
- “sealyadoid :u:_m_oo |
./ seniedoid @E@:M =5

AR

~

saiadold psumQ |1ouno) Buimoys ue|d pue ue|d uoneooT susples) yuomsieyo - | Xipuaddy



Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 55

HEADS OF TERMS

REDEVELOPMENT AND TRANSFER OF PROPERTIES AT CHATSWORTH GARDENS,

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

23

24

25

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

MORECAMBE

PARTIES

PLACE FIRST LIMITED incorporated and registered in England and Wales with
company number 07071980 whose registered office is at Unit 5 & 6 The Stables
Parrwoods Lane, Didsbury, Manchester, M20 5PG (‘the Developer’)

LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL of Town Hall Dalton Square Lancaster LA1 1PJ (‘the
Council’)

PRELIMINARY

These heads of agreement are made between the parties whose names are set out
in part 1 above.

This is not a legally enforceable agreement and is intended only to set out the points
on which the parties will seek to conclude a legally binding agreement.

No party makes any warranty, undertaking or similar commitment in relation to any
matter of fact or opinion set out in this document and no party shall make any claim
based on any such warranty or undertaking.

These heads of agreement are subject to contract and formal ratification by the
Council and Developer’s respective formal procedures.

The conclusion of the agreement will be subject to satisfactory responses to enquiries
and searches by the respective parties’ legal representatives.

The conclusion of the agreement will be in accordance with a contract prepared and
agreed between the respective parties legal representatives, and shall be subject to
such other or amended terms they consider appropriate to a transaction this nature

THE OVERVIEW
The Council is the owner of certain properties at Chatsworth Gardens Morecambe
(‘the Properties’) which have been acquired by the Council through grant funding from

the Homes and Communities Agency (‘the HCA').

The Council wishes to redevelop the Properties and other properties in the vicinity of
the Properties and had invited tenders for the required works.

The Developer submitted a tender to the Council which was acceptable to the
Council.

The tender submitted by the Developer included an initial specification and proposal
for the redevelopment works for the Properties.

THE PROPOSED ARRANGEMENT

The intention of the parties is that the redevelopment is carried out in two distinct
phases.



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

4111

4.11.2

4.11.3

412

5.1

5.2

5.3

Page 56

Phase 1 (‘Phase 1’) would be the redevelopment (‘the Phase 1 Works’) of 46
residential units at land bound by Westminster Road, Albert Road, Chatsworth Road
and Regent Road.

Phase 2 (‘Phase 2’) would be the redevelopment (‘the Phase 2 Works’) of 46
residential units at land bound by Chatsworth Road, Albert Road, Balmoral Road and
Regent Road.

The Developer would intend to fund the redevelopment over the two phases.

The Developer confirms that it has funding available to it for the Phase 1 Works,
provided that the Council is able to provide the Developer with a grant of £1.9M (‘the
Grant).

The Developers funding for the Phase 1 Works will be from the HCA and its own
investment.

On completion of the Phase 1 Works the Properties contained in Phase 1 will be
transferred to the Developer for nil consideration.

The Phase 2 Works will be funded from the proposed re-finance or sale of Phase 1
following completion of the Phase 1 Works together with further funding from the
HCA, the reinvestment of the Grant and the Developers equity.

Following the completion of the Phase 2 Works the properties contained in Phase 2
will be transferred to the Developer for nil consideration.

Following the completion of each of the Phase 1 Works and the Phase 2 Works the
Properties will be managed by a professional landlord group that will be appointed by
the Developer.

The arrangements between the parties will be regulated by a series of agreements.
These will be;

A Development Agreement;
Building Licence Agreements; and
A Grant Agreement

For the purpose of the agreement to carry out the redevelopment works at the
Properties the Developer will create specific wholly owned special purpose vehicles
(‘SPV’). There will be a specific SPV for each of Phase 1 and Phase 2. Each SPV will
be a party to the agreements set out in paragraph 4.11.

THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

The development agreement (‘the DA’) will be the principal agreement that regulates
the arrangements between the parties for the redevelopment of the Properties.
Reference to the Developer in this section is to be treated as being a reference to the
relevant SPV.

The DA will be a conditional agreement.

There will need to be satisfied a number of conditions precedent before the works of
redevelopment can take place. The satisfaction of the first series of conditions
precedent will lead to the granting of a building licence agreement (‘BLA’) to the
Developer with respect to the Phase 1 Works.



54

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

5.5.3

554

5.5.5

5.5.6

5.5.7

5.5.8

5.5.9

5.56.10

5.5.11

5.5.12

5.56.13

5.5.14

5.56.15

5.6

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

Page 57

There will be further conditions precedent which would need to be satisfied before a
further BLA can be granted to the Developer for the Phase 2 Works..

Phase 1 Conditions Precedent

The conditions precedent for the commencement of the Phase 1 Works are as
follows;

The Developer is to provide evidence of funding for the redevelopment works (with
the exception of the grant funding);

Provision of grant funding by the Council;

The Developer obtaining funding (and being able to comply with any conditions
necessary for that funding) satisfactory in all respects to the Developer to allow it to
proceed with the Phase 1 Works;

Agreement as to the plan for the Phase 1 Works;

The provision of good title by the Council for the Properties in Phase 1;

Vacant possession being available;

The Developer obtaining where applicable planning permission satisfactory to the
Developer for the Phase 1 Works;

The Developer obtaining where appropriate traffic orders, stopping up orders or
footpath closure orders relating to the Phase 1 Works;

The Developer obtaining all relevant agreements for service media diversion,
disconnection or similar;

The Developer obtaining estimates for the cost of any remediation works satisfactory
to it to allow it to proceed with the Phase 1 Works;

Agreement being reached between parties as to the method for dealing with other
properties in Phase 1 not owned by the Council;

Agreement being reached between parties as to public realm treatment outside
curtilage of Properties;

Both parties to agree a strategy for community consultation;

Agreement being reached between parties as to timescales for completion of the
works;

The Council obtaining the consent of the HCA of entering into the agreement for
redevelopment of the phases with the Developer on such terms that are acceptable to
both the Council and the Developer.

Phase 2 Conditions Precedent

The conditions precedent for commencement of the Phase 2 Works are as follows;

The completion of the Phase 1 Works;

Satisfaction of conditions precedent in identical form to those contained in paragraph
5.5

Successful refinancing or sale of Phase 1 properties.



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.17.1

5.17.2

5.17.3

5.17.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 58

The DA will include provisions to deal with the determination of each of the conditions
precedent.

The DA will provide a mechanism to deal with the parties obligations regarding the
satisfaction of the conditions precedent including the provision of mutual assistance
as appropriate.

The DA will include provisions as to the time periods in which the conditions
precedent are to be satisfied. Failure to satisfy the conditions precedent by the
agreed time periods will lead to the determination of the DA by either party.

Satisfaction of the conditions precedent will lead to the granting of a BLA in a
prescribed form subject to alterations as may be required and agreed between the
parties.

Pending the satisfaction of the conditions precedent the Developer will be allowed
access to the Properties for the purpose of surveying and assessment for the
provision of the redevelopment works.

The DA will include provisions to deal with termination as a consequence of default
by either of the parties.

The DA will include a dispute resolution mechanism.

VAT will be addressed

The DA will include provisions to address Freedom of Information obligations,
Diversity, Confidentiality and publicity, Human Rights, Ombudsman Investigations,
Bribery and other similar statutory requirements.

The DA will deal with the future use of the Properties following the completion of each
of the Phase 1 Works and Phase 2 Works. These will include the provision for the
management and disposal of the Properties.

The DA will deal with financial arrangements between the parties in particular the
provision of the Grant by the Council for the Phase 1 Works and Phase 2 Works.
These provisions will include;

any required inter-creditor agreements with senior lenders;

distribution of an agreed margin to the Developer following the completion of the
Phase 1 Works;

the prospective re-finance of the Phase 1 Properties following the transfer of the
Phase 1 Properties;

the treatment of the proceeds of any completed re-finance

THE BUILDING LICENCE AGREEMENT

The BLA will be the formal agreement which will be entered into between the Council
and the Developer following the satisfaction of the conditions precedent for Phase 1

and thereafter Phase 2. There will be a separate BLA for each phase.

The BLA will be in a standard form which will allow for certain modification depending
on circumstances set out in the DA.

The BLA will be a conditional agreement. The condition precedent is the completion
of the redevelopment works in accordance with the agreed development plan within



6.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

6.5.6

6.5.7

6.5.8

6.5.9

6.5.10

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Page 59

the agreed time period. Satisfaction of the condition precedent will lead to the transfer
of the relevant Properties to the Developer for nil consideration

The BLA will grant a licence to the Developer to enter onto the relevant Properties in
order to carry out the redevelopment works.

The Developer will be required;

To complete the redevelopment works in accordance with the agreed development
plan within the agreed time periods subject to agreed events of delay;

To carry out the redevelopment works in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements;

To insure or procure that the Properties the subject of the BLA are insured for third
party liability;

To indemnify the Council as landowner against any injury, loss, or claim arising from
Developers occupation and use of relevant Properties;

Not to obstruct or deposit mud and debris on any highways adjoining the Properties;

Not to discharge solid matter from the site into any drains watercourses or sewers on
the Properties or in the adjoining streets;

Not to deposit soil, debris, waste or other matter onto the adjoining land of the
Council;

Not to sever, obstruct, or damage any sewers, drains, pipes, wires, cables, conduits
and the like belonging to Statutory Undertakers and service supply companies that
exist in the Properties for the benefit of adjoining land without making proper
provision for alternative supply, and to be responsible for the costs involved;

Not to cause nuisance or annoyance to adjoining owners or occupiers;

To be responsible for any rates or other outgoings on the Properties and indemnify
the Council accordingly.

The BLA will contain alienation provisions to restrict assignment during its existence.
The Developer will however be allowed to grant security to third parties providing
finance to the Developer.

The BLA will contain mortgagee protection provisions for third parties who have
provided finance to the Developer.

The BLA will contain provisions to deal with default and its consequences including
termination. Any termination provisions are to include repayment to the Developer of
the fair and reasonable value of works carried out to the date of termination subject to
the reasonable costs of the Council.

The BLA will contain provisions to deal with the evidence of the Councils title to the
Properties and the matters which they will be ultimately sold subject to.

The provisions to be contained in the transfer of the relevant Properties to the
Developer will be set out in an agreed form.

The Council will be allowed access to inspect the works on reasonable notice to
assess the redevelopment works.



6.12

6.13

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

7.5.3

7.5.4

7.5.5

7.5.6

7.5.7

7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Page 60

The BLA will contain provisions to deal with the completion of the redevelopment
works and the final sign off by the Council that the relevant conditions have been
satisfied leading to the transfer of the relevant Properties.

The BLA will contain relevant provision to deal with health and safety, the
Construction Design and Management (CDM) Regulations, VAT and dispute
resolution.

THE GRANT AGREEMENT

The Council will grant the Developer £1,900,000 which will be used to subsidise
eligible works within Phase 1.

The definition of eligible works is to be agreed and will be fully described in the Grant
Agreement.

The Grant will be paid in stages in such manner and at such times as are to be
agreed.

In principal the Council will allow a partial drawdown of the Grant subject to the initial
payments being matched by the Developers contribution of funding from its own
resources prior to the use of any senior funding obtained by the Developer.

The Grant shall contain provisions relating to;

The use of the Grant funds;

Any events which could lead to repayment of the whole or part of the grant, eg sales
in certain circumstances; the Council acknowledge that re-financing of the Properties
will not trigger repayment.

Provisions for consent by the Council for dealings with the Properties, to include
permitted dealings without consent and dealings which require consent which
consents are not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Any conditions precedent before drawdown can commence eg the satisfaction of the
conditions precedent for the commencement of the Phase 1 Works with the exception
of the condition precedent relating to the Grant.

The means that the Grant is protected, eg a legal charge over the Properties once
transferred to the Developer

Obligations regarding inter-creditor arrangements
Provisions regarding re-payment and future reinvestment

The Grant shall contain provisions relating to the use of the funding for the
redevelopment of Phase 2 and beyond

INITIAL PROPOSED TIMESCALES

Exchange contracts Mid November 2013

Developer to submit planning application October 2013

Licence to access properties for initial survey work — November 2013

Estimated satisfaction of conditions precedent for phase 1 - December 2013



Page 61

8.5 Longstop for contract to become unconditional — March 2014

8.6 Within one month of the unconditional date, the Developer will commence enabling
works and complete the same within 4 months

8.7 Within 5 months of completing the enabling works the Developer will commence the
main works and will complete the same within a minimum of 12 months

8.8 The Target date for completion of the main works is January 2015
8.9 The contractual long stop date for completion of main works June 2015

8.10  Long stop date for commencement on site for Phase 2 is 12 months after Practical
Completion of Phase 1

8.1 Occupation of the premises to begin July 2015

Signed by the parties as confirmation of the above but without any present intention to create
legal relations between them in relation to the matters set out above

Signed Date

Forand on behalf of......................

Signed Date

Forandonbehalfof.........................



2

Department

of Energy &
Climate Change

GREEN DEAL COMMUNITIES -
LOCAL AUTHORITY FUND

Application Pack

25 July 2013



DECC running header Page 63

Green Deal Communities Local
Authority Fund - Summary

Aim:

To maximise the delivery of Green Deal Plans across whole communities/streets
including to hard to reach sectors.

Outline:

DECC is inviting local authorities (LAs), working with their local partners, to apply for
funds of between £1m and £3m to help drive Green Deal energy efficiency
improvements in their area. LAs are asked to come forward with ambitious and
innovative proposals to deliver Green Deal Plans to as many properties as possible in
target streets/areas. DECC funding can also be used to support those who choose to
self-finance measures. Proposals which seek to reach areas which have not benefited
under previous schemes are particularly welcome.

Proposals will be judged on:

e the number and total value of Green Deal Plans that will be delivered;

e their sustainability in the long term (i.e. beyond the DECC funding);

e their credibility e.g. LAs will need to demonstrate that they have secured ECO funding to
complement Green Deal Plans under their Green Deal Communities bid, and to have
specifically identified the streets/areas targeted;

e their creativity in offering local incentives to drive demand for Green Deal Plans;

e consistency with state aid and procurement rules.

The full criteria are set out in section 3.5.

What DECC might fund:

Within the parameters at para 2.19, LAs will have flexibility in how to deliver Green Deal plans
with this capital funding. We would expect the following to be included:

e proposals to deliver ‘hard to treat’ measures to private households with a strong blend of
Green Deal finance/ECO subsidy;

e a comprehensive offer to as many households as possible: some households in a street
or area may fund measures by blending Green Deal finance and ECO, some may choose
to self-fund measures (either partly or in their entirety), while others may be eligible for
100% ECO subsidy;

e creative approaches e.g. local incentives, working with local community partners;

e open homes to launch activity in an area; and

e proposals that deliver long term public value e.g. publically available plans/templates for
how to retrofit local home types, or how to drive demand in hard to reach sectors.



Page 64

DECC — Green Deal Communities

Contents

Introduction 1-8 4
Section 2 — Detailed guidance notes - 5
Aims & objectives of Green Deal Communities 21-22 5
Eligibility 23-25 5
The DECC funding 2.6-2.15 5-7
Supply Chain programme funding 2.16 -2.18 7
Parameters for Green Deal Communities bids 2.19 7-8
What Green Deal Communities capital funding 2.20-2.22 8-9
might cover

Section 3 — Assessing bids & assessment - 10
criteria

The bidding process 3.1-3.3 10
Assessing bids & criteria 3.4 10
C_riteria and evidence that should be included in 35- 3.8 10-12
Igfr?her information 3.9-3.10 12
Application Form 13




DECC — Green Deal Communities Page 65

GREEN DEAL COMMUNITIES

Introduction

1 The Department of Energy and Climate Change is pleased to announce ‘Green Deal
Communities’ a £20m capital funding programme designed to support Local Authorities (LAS),
in conjunction with their community partners, to deliver the Green Deal to their residents. In
addition £1m of linked programme funding is available to support the development of the
Green Deal installer supply chain, particularly to support SME/micro installer organisations
and facilitate their entry into the market.

2 Proposals are invited from LAs, or consortia of authorities, for bids of a minimum of £1m
up to £8m to enable ambitious, large scale, whole street/area, or whole sector based Green
Deal projects. DECC funding would be provided to support the installation of measures paid
for using Green Deal Plans and ECO finance, or the occupants own finance. Improvements
funded entirely through ECO, without a contribution from the occupant or owner,
cannot be supported by DECC funding.

3  Applications may be submitted from September up to 31 December 2013 or when the
£20m’ of funding is exhausted, whichever is the sooner. Bids should be submitted
electronically (using the proforma at annex A) to: greendealcommunities@decc.gsi.gov.uk
Details on the bidding process are set out in section 3.

4  All the funding for projects would be allocated by 31 March 2014 through grants to the
lead LA under s31 of the Local Government Act 2003. However, delivery of projects may take
place over the next year with completion ideally by December 2014.

5 Once bids have been approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between DECC
and the LA or consortia of LAs would be agreed. Full payment of the grant funding (subject to
s31 of the Local Government Act 2003) will be made on receipt by DECC of the signed MoU.

6 Following the successful allocation of funding, DECC would be very keen to work with
successful LAs on communication plans relating to their Green Deal Communities’ programme
to assist in maximising its impact both regionally and nationally.

Enquiries

7  Any enquiries should be addressed in the first instance to:
greendealcommunities@decc.gsi.gov.uk

8 We plan to run a webinar session for enquiries on 12 September. Further details will be
made available shortly.

' DECC reserves the right to increase the funds available.

4



Page 66 DECC — Green Deal Communities

SECTION 2 — Detailed Guidance Notes

Aim and objectives of Green Deal Communities

2.1 The primary aim of the programme is to:

e enable LAs (and their local partners) to maximise the delivery of Green Deal plans across
whole streets/areas including to hard to reach property sectors?.

2.2  The key objectives of the programme are to:

e maximise delivery of Green Deal plans and create future demand for the Green Deal;

e create a strong link to deliver joint Green Deal and ECO activity;

e build a market for high impact, hard to treat measures, such as solid wall insulation; and
e drive a street/area/sector based approach enabled by Green Deal/ECO.

Supply chain programme funding element

e to support training initiatives which assist SME’s and micro-businesses, bringing them into
the Green Deal and providing them with an opportunity to maximise the benefits.

Eligibility
2.3 Green Deal Communities is open to LAs, or consortia of LAs, working with local

community partners such as voluntary organisations and community energy groups®. For
funding purposes a lead LA will be required.

2.4  Funding is being offered through LAs as, working with local partners, they are well placed
to ensure that any proposals link with and enhance key local priorities such as regeneration,
economic development and health. Proposals will also need to demonstrate how they support
and enhance the LA’s plans for area based delivery of energy efficiency measures as set out in
their 2013 Home Energy Conservation Act report.

2.5 Where a household takes out Green Deal Finance or self-funds the installation of
measures they will also be eligible for the cashback scheme, subject to the normal rules (e.g.
that cashback is limited to 50% of the amount the household contributes).

The DECC funding

2.6  To demonstrate the ambition that is being sought under the Green Deal Communities
programme bids from LAs must be from a minimum of £1m up to £3m, although we are open to
discussion of potentially larger bids. It is envisaged that similar levels of ECO funding would be
required to ensure that bids are credible and deliverable.

®Hard to treat sectors could include, for example, the private rented and non-domestic property sectors.
®For further information on developing local Green Deal schemes and partnerships see
www.planlocal.org.uk/pages/energy-efficiency-and-the-green-deal

5




DECC — Green Deal Communities Page 67

2.7 The primary funding for Green Deal Communities is capital funding and must
therefore be used in line with section 11 of the Local Government Act 2003, for example for
the creation of an asset or the modification or improvement of an existing asset. However,
given the scale of the projects envisaged it is recognised that there will be set up and on-
going costs to administer projects and enable the funding to be capitalised. Therefore bids
may include up to 10% of the total funding sought for this purpose.

2.8 The DECC capital funding is exclusively to support work that utilises the Green
Deal framework i.e. work that uses authorised Green Deal Assessors, Providers and
Installers. Funding is also only open available to support work where the occupant or owner
makes a financial contribution to the costs of installing the measures, either through Green
Deal Finance or by meeting these costs upfront. It is envisaged that the occupant or owner
would make a financial contribution equivalent to the amount of the plan that could be paid
for under the Green Deal golden rule. This contribution could be met either through a Green
Deal Plan (i.e. by taking out Green Deal finance and paying the contribution in instalments
via the electricity bill) or, where the householder chooses to pay their contribution upfront, an
Energy Plan.

2.9 While DECC Green Deal Communities funding can be used in conjunction with
ECO where a household is making a contribution it cannot be used to support the delivery of
measures to households where there is no financial contribution to the installation of
measures by the householder.

2.10 It is expected that projects will include streets or areas where there are also fuel
poor households who are eligible for the Home Heating Cost Reduction Obligation. While
such households would not be eligible for direct DECC funding there are likely to be wider
benefits envisaged by projects e.g. more cost-effective offers from the economies of scale
that can be realised from area based delivery. Such benefits might make individual
households more attractive for ECO support, or from support of related LA action in the
target area.

2.11 LAs may, in some instances, wish to make local finance available to occupants to
support packages in place of Green Deal finance. Green Deal Communities funding would
not be available to support projects which drew exclusively upon LA funding, as in line with
the aims and objectives of the programme, proposals will be judged based upon the overall
volume of Green Deal Plans they can deliver.

2.12 Also, in line with the objectives, DECC capital funding can only be used to support
household packages that include the installation of major measures in ‘hard to treat’
properties or sectors, although other measures might also be included as part of a package.
DECC is therefore seeking ambitious projects which can deliver ‘hard to treat’ insulation
measures at scale linking directly with ECO subsidy.




Page 68 DECC — Green Deal Communities

2.13 Bids will need to identify target streets/areas/sectors, including the potential number of
properties, and set out any potential planning issues and how these have been or will be
addressed.

2.14 Under the Home Energy Conservation Act 1995 (HECA) English LAs were required to
report to the Secretary of State by 31 March 2013 on the energy conservation measures that
LAs considered practicable, cost-effective and likely to result in significant improvement in the
energy efficiency of residential accommodation in their area. As part of this requirement LAs
were asked to set out the measures proposed that take advantage of financial assistance and
other benefits offered from central Government initiatives to result in significant energy efficiency
improvements (this would include Green Deal and ECO) and how these might be delivered on
an area based/street by street roll out.

2.15 The Green Deal Communities programme is therefore expected to support existing LA
plans and help develop new ones. Bids are therefore expected to set out how any funding would
develop and enhance plans in a LA’s 2013 HECA report.

Supply chain programme funding

2.16 Feedback from engagement with SMEs and micro businesses suggests there may be
barriers to investing in training at this time. Although such businesses may find it difficult to fund
training they could potentially be major benefactors in the Green Deal. Engagement with this
sector has confirmed that for many SMEs the potential costs of meeting the new Green Deal
standards may be a barrier which LA initiatives could help overcome.

2.17 As part of LA’'s Green Deal Communities bid, DECC are therefore keen to receive
programme funded proposals of between £100k and £200k that provide support for:

. SME and micro installer organisations through the Quality Management Systems part of
the Green Deal installer certification process;

. getting SMEs and micro businesses through certification;

. installers to make appropriate links to develop their delivery network.

2.18 Bids for support for SMEs and micro businesses are preferred which demonstrate a
connection with the measures that the LA capital bids are focussing on. This will ensure they are
targeted at installer organisations who might install particular measures to meet the local need.
As noted below, state aid rules must be fully considered and complied with when planning sector
specific funding.

Parameters for Green Deal Communities capital bids

2.19 To allow LAs as much flexibility as possible to develop innovative and creative capital
proposals within the objectives of the Green Deal Communities programme (see para 2.2),
DECC is setting broad parameters for bids. These are that:

e principal funding is for capital projects only, with a minimum threshold of £1m (and
flexible cap up to £3m);



DECC — Green Deal Communities Page 69

e projects must deliver significant retrofits across whole streets/areas;

e Dbids convincingly set out how energy bill payers will be engaged with and encouraged to
sign up to Green Deal Plans®;

e bids must include evidence that ECO funding will be available to support the bid;

e funding is only to support work where a contribution to measures is made either through
using Green Deal finance or by self-funding measures;

e bids must demonstrate that strong partnerships have been established to support
delivery, including local community partners;

e bids should address potential local barriers, e.g. how have planning issues been
addressed to support the bid and avoid delays;

e bids must demonstrate strong value for money;

e bids have a strong legacy component — enabling the Green Deal to be delivered across
the LA area after the DECC funding project is complete;

e bids build in monitoring (including data collection) from the outset and commit to working
with DECC’s overall Green Deal evaluation and sharing learning including case studies
and open homes;

e comply with all state aid rules (including state aid de minimis thresholds) and procurement
requirements.

All projects must use the Green Deal framework i.e. authorised Green Deal Assessors,
Providers and Installers.

What Green Deal Communities capital funding might cover

2.20 Green Deal Communities capital funds may only be disseminated to individuals
(occupants or owners) and in respect of Green Deal Plans (or the equivalent of Energy Plans
under the cashback scheme). Within these and the other parameters set out above, LAs are
free to develop innovative, local approaches to deliver projects. As an example funding might be
used to:

e subsidise a gap in funding solid wall insulation after the Golden Rule and ECO funding
have been taken into account;

e refund the cost of successful Green Deal assessments that lead to Green Deal measures
being installed;

® incentivise energy efficient ‘open homes’ — maximum one or two per street/area to launch
the project and promote activity;

e incentivise Green Deal packages — e.g. prizes/rewards, a link to local council tax,
payment holiday for first year etc;

* While applications will be judged principally on the number and value of Green Deal plans delivered, projects
may also support self-financiers where that enables a coherent offer.



Page 70 DECC — Green Deal Communities

2.21

2.22

offer to small businesses in a street (e.g. household above a shop) although it is
recognised that this will depend on the availability of finance to support non-domestic
premises

Residential buildings installing Green Deal measures would also be eligible for the
existing Green Deal Cashback scheme, subject to the rules of that scheme.

Activities that cannot be supported include:

Green Deal assessments that do not lead to measures being installed;

projects that cannot demonstrate how they will deliver Green Deal Plans or contribute to
future demand for energy efficiency improvements through the Green Deal - DECC
funding cannot be used to subsidise energy efficiency measures in households that do
not make a financial contribution to the measures;

projects with a significant focus on minor measures such as ‘lofts and cavities’; and
projects or initiatives that would constitute state aid.



DE

CC - Green Deal Communities Page 71

SECTION 3 — Assessing bids & assessment criteria

The bidding process

3.1 To support the development of creative bids Green Deal Communities is subject to
an open-ended bidding process. Bids can be submitted to DECC for consideration up to 31
December 2013° or until the funding is exhausted, whichever is sooner. To ensure
transparency in the process DECC will publish an ongoing list of successful bids and
amounts of funding awarded on its web pages at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/green-deal-communities as they are awarded.

3.2 A standing panel in DECC will endeavour to consider bids and either approve
them, or provide written comments for consideration and proposed next steps by email to the
bidder within 10 working days of the day of receipt of the bid. Depending on the
circumstances it may be preferable to organise telephone conferences to discuss bids but
either way DECC will endeavour to provide initial feedback within 10 working days of
receiving the bid.

3.3 This bidding process will allow the opportunity for feedback on bids and the
opportunity to develop bids before any funding is awarded. If both DECC and the relevant LA
are content with the bid a Memorandum of Understanding would be agreed (as with the
DECC Pioneer Places programme) between both parties. Once this is signed then all the
funding for the project will be awarded to the LA as one single grant payment. The project
could then be delivered over a period of time according to the bid. Ideally the work should
be completed by the end of December 2014.

Assessing bids & criteria

3.4 Proposals for funding will be judged by the DECC standing panel against the
criteria below rating the bid as follows:

e A —fully meets the criteria.
e B — could meet the criteria with some clarification/amendment.
e (C —does not meet the criteria.

to be successful bids will need to achieve the A rating.

Criteria and evidence that should be included in bids

(i) Delivering the Green Deal

3.5 To demonstrate this, bids will need to set out:

e the target streets/areas that have been identified;

°Itis expected that bids will take a minimum of 6-8 weeks to prepare and that those completing bids may want to
take advantage of the webinar on 12 September before submitting bids.

10



Page 72 DECC — Green Deal Communities

(1)
3.6

(iii)
3.7

11

the number of households that are being targeted;

how many Green Deal Plans are to be taken up, including best estimates of low and high
take up figures;

a best estimate of how much Green Deal finance might be required;

whether there is a working knowledge of the housing stock and measures required — if
not, is there a plan to address this and in what timescale;

whether a Green Deal assessor organisation or source of assessors has been identified
to deliver the proposals;

whether a Green Deal provider/s has been identified to deliver the proposals;

whether a source of ECO subsidy has been identified to support the proposals.

Innovative approaches with strong local partnerships in place
To demonstrate this, bids will need to set out:

a description of the delivery approaches being offered;

details of any proposed local incentives to help drive demand;

details of how the project will be able to make a comprehensive offer to as many
occupants in the target street/areas as possible;

how planning colleagues have been involved in developing the bid to address any
potential planning issues affecting the proposals;

if open homes are part of the bid - how many, how they will be utilised and how they will
be selected;

which local groups/partners have been involved in developing the bid;

which local groups/partners will be involved in delivering the bid and how;

how the proposals support existing and developing Green Deal supply chains;

how the proposals build on existing plans/work, particularly in relation the LA’s 2013
HECA report.

Value for money
To demonstrate this, bids will need to set out:

how the funding supports the LA’s aims for Green Deal and an outline of future plans, in
particular how this funding will lay the basis for future delivery without DECC support;

how much is being bid for under the Green Deal programme and a breakdown of how it is
to be utilised;

the level and sources of match/additional funding expected to be leveraged;

the level of ECO funding that might be expected to support each building;

how they demonstrate additionality i.e. how they will build on and complement existing
actions. Funding cannot be used to replace funding for an existing project, including any
projects to deliver statutory obligations, although they might be used to extend the
geographical coverage, scope or scale of an existing project;

how the DECC funding will enable creative delivery approaches;



DECC — Green Deal Communities Page 73

e the key milestones in the delivery of the proposal and identify the key risks to delivery and
how these will be addressed.

(iv)  Providing learning
3.8 Successful projects will be expected to:

e provide progress reports and data on the funding and measures installed at individual
properties (this will be covered in more detail in the Memorandum of Understanding with
successful bidders);

e commit to sharing learning from the project, including delivering completed case studies
showing before, during and after progress of work to promote a whole street approach;
and

e commit to providing DECC with a self-evaluation at the end of the project.

Further information

State Aid

3.9 Bidders will need to satisfy themselves and include a statement in the bid how their
proposals will comply with State Aid rules, both in terms of direct receipt of funds and
intended use/expenditure of those funds®.

VAT

3.10 Eligible Expenditure consists of payments by the grant recipient during the Funding
Period for the purposes of the Project. Eligible Expenditure is net of VAT recoverable by the
grant recipient from HM Revenue & Customs, and gross of irrecoverable VAT. This means
that all grants are outside the scope of VAT.

DECC Green Deal team

25 July 2013

® Further guidance on State Aid can be found at http://www.bis.gov.uk/policies/europe/state-aid

12



Page 74

DECC — Green Deal Communities

ANNEX A

DECC Green Deal Communities Local Authority Fund

APPLICATION FORM

Please note: completed bids should be submitted at the latest by 5pm on 31 December 2013 by
email to greendealcommunities@decc.gsi.gov.uk

SECTION 1 - OVERVIEW OF

PROPOSAL

1.1 Applicant Details

Lead Local Authority

Name of Local Authority

Name of contact within the
Local Authority

Address

Telephone number of contact

Email address of contact

Alternative contact name

Telephone number of contact

Email address of contact

Other participating Local Au

thorities (add rows as needed)

Name of Local Authority

Name of contact within the
Local Authority

Address

Telephone number of contact

Email address of contact

13



DECC - Green Deal Communities Page 75

1.2 Summary of the proposal
Briefly give an overview of the proposal, how it will be delivered and by when (max 300
words)

1.3 Stakeholder Engagement
Describe how your proposal has been developed and will be delivered with local
partners, including local community organisations (max 200 words)

14



Page 76 DECC — Green Deal Communities

SECTION 2 - MEETING THE CRITERIA

2.1  Delivering the Green Deal (see para 3.5 of guidance notes)

Which streets and/or areas
are to be targeted (please
provide details, including
postcodes)?

How many buildings
(households and/or
businesses) are being
targeted in total?

Please provide a range of
how many Green Deal
Plans are expected to be
entered into.

Please give a best
estimate of the range of
the total amount of Green
Deal finance that might be
required

Is there a good knowledge
of the housing stock in the
target streets, if not how
will this be addressed in
assessing the potential
measures required?

Has a source of Green
Deal assessors been
identified?

Is there one or more Green
Deal Provider/s in place to

deliver? If not, how will this
be addressed to deliver the
proposal?

Is an ECO provider in
place to deliver? If not,
how is ECO funding to be

15



DECC — Green Deal Communities Page 77

provided to support the
proposal?

Please describe how the
proposal will facilitate
ongoing Green Deal work
once this funding
programme has ended.

2.2 Innovation & partnerships (see para 3.6 of guidance notes)
Please set out a description of how the proposal will be delivered including details:

e of any local incentives to be offered;

e of how comprehensive is the offer in the target street/area;

e of the delivery options proposed;

e on the use of show homes, where appropriate;

e how local supply chain will be supported and developed;

e of any planning issues and how these have been addressed.

Maximum 1000 words.

2.3 Value for money (see para 3.7 of guidance notes)

How much funding from DECC is
being bid for?

Eligible expenditure is net of VAT
recoverable by the grant recipient from HM
Revenue & Customs, and gross of
irrecoverable VAT.

How will this be spent? (please
provide a detailed breakdown) e.g:
Measures £x

Incentives £x

Show homes £x

Set-up/Admin costs for project (max
10%)

etc

Please provide a breakdown of
match/alternative/ECO funding that
the proposals will attract?

16



Page 78 DECC — Green Deal Communities

How much ECO funding will be
available to support each household
as a %?

How do the proposals deliver
additionality?

Please provide a table of the key milestones to deliver the proposals and a brief risk register with
mitigation actions.

2.4 Provide learning

Please provide a brief description of how learning from the project would be collected and
shared (max 200 words).

2.5 Installer Training

If bidding for the separate installer training funding briefly give an overview of the proposal and
how it will support the development of the installer supply chain (max 200 words)

Further information

(i) Please explain how the proposals support and enhance the LA’s plans for area based delivery
of energy efficiency measures as set out in their 2013 Home Energy Conservation Act report.

(il) Please provide a statement of how the proposals have been considered against state aid
requirements.

17



© Crown copyright 2013

Department of Energy & Climate Change
3 Whitehall Place

London SW1A 2AW

www.gov.uk/decc

URN



Agenda ltem 8 Page 80

CABINET

Parking Strategy
5 November 2013

Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of the report is to consider an updated draft Parking Strategy and Action Plan

Non-Key Decision El Referral from Cabinet D
Member

Date of notice of forthcoming key decision 7 October 2013

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR HAMILTON-COX

(1) That Cabinet approves the publication of the draft Parking Strategy and
Action Plan for consultation with stakeholders and interest groups.

(2) That Cabinet considers any substantive changes arising from the formal
consultation at a future meeting.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Cabinet approved the first Parking Strategy for the district in 2008.

1.2 There are a number of potential developments in the district that will
significantly impact on parking. Furthermore, nationally the need to have a
strategic approach to parking provision has been highlighted. It is now
appropriate to fully update the strategy in light of these developments.

2.0 Proposal Details

21 The Parking Strategy provides a strategic approach to parking management
and provides the Council with guidance on how parking should be managed
to improve the service provided to customers while meeting the needs of
sustainability and amenity.

The district is approaching a period of great challenges and changes and the
strategy recognises these opportunities and provides guidance on how the
Council’'s important parking assets should be managed. This is a key part of



2.2

2.3

3.0
3.1

4.0

Page 81

supporting the wider aims and objectives and the need for guidance along
with flexibility to support these changing times is very important.

The strategy’s policy context is structured around the following policies and
documents:

National Planning Policy Framework

Lancaster Local Development Framework

Lancaster City Council Corporate Plan and Priorities 2013-14
Lancashire County Council Local Transport Plan 2011-2021
Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy 2011-14
Lancaster Canal Corridor North Development Brief
Morecambe Area Action Plan

The Parking action plan sets out aims, objectives and actions to be achieved
over timescales of short-term (up to 2 years), medium term (2-5 years) and
long-term (5-10 years). The Parking action plan also confirms the aims,
objectives and actions can only be fully achieved if the City and County
Councils work together to achieve success. (The County Council have been
involved in the development of the draft strategy).

Details of Consultation

Internal consultation has been undertaken to gather information and this has
been included in the updated strategy and will be subject to further
discussions. Formal consultation will be undertaken with stakeholders and
interest groups following Cabinet’s approval of the Draft Strategy.

Besides inviting comments from all via the Council website, the following list
of consultees is suggested:-

City Councillors (including Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
Lancashire County Council
Lancashire Constabulary

Chambers of Commerce and of Trade
One Voice-disability services
Federation of Small Businesses
Morecambe Town Council

Carnforth Town Council

Duchy of Lancaster

Taxi proprietors

Port of Heysham

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: To approve the Option 2: To not approve the
draft Parking Strategy for draft Parking Strategy
consultation. (Allowing for
any amendments Cabinet
may wish to make)




Page 82

Advantages | 1y will allow the Council to

carry out formal consultation
on the updated draft parking
strategy.

Any substantive changes to
the strategy can be reported
back to Cabinet before the
strategy is formally approved

This allows the Council to
develop its strategic
approach to managing
parking to face future
challenges and changes

Disadvantages This would not allow the

Council to review its strategic
approach to managing parking
to face the challenges and
changes

Risks

Resources are required from
both City and County
Councils to achieve the aims

The Council would not have
any updated strategy to guide
its future strategic approach to

and objectives of the managing parking
strategy
The Council would not have a
documented strategy to face
the future challenges and
changes on parking
5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 The officer preferred option is to approve the draft Parking Strategy and to
carry out formal consultation. The preferred option allows the Council to
develop its strategic approach to parking management to support its wider
aims and objectives and to be prepared for the challenges and changes it is

likely to face in the coming years.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Existing Parking Strategy.

The strategy support the Priorities included in the Corporate Plan of Economic Growth,
Health and Wellbeing, Green, clean and safe places and Community leadership.




Page 83

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

None specifically arising from the report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal have been consulted and have no comments to make

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications directly arising from this report.

The approved revenue budget for 2013/14 includes £2.347M income generated from parking
fees and charges, and the Capital Programme makes provision for various improvements.
The Strategy and Action Plan recommends a range of aims and objectives that will
potentially affect parking policies and management. These may affect the overall number of
charged spaces, charging policies and the off-street parking income currently generated
which could potentially impact on the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy and
Corporate Fees and Charges Policy. Any financial implications attached to the adoption of
the Strategy will be reported to Cabinet for consideration as appropriate.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:
None specifically at this stage.

Information Services:

None specifically at this stage.

Property:
None specifically at this stage.
Open Spaces:

None

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Davies
Telephone: 01524 582401

Parking Strategy E-mail:mdavies @lancaster.gov.uk




Page 84

Premoting City, Coast & Countryside

DRAFT PARKING
STRATEGY

September 2013




Page 85

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy
Contents
1. INTRODUCTION ettt e et r e e ee e e s e a e e s s etba b s s e s bran e e s 1
2. CROSS-DISTRICT POLICY CONTEXT ..ottt e 1
2.1.  National Planning Policy Framework ... 1
2.2. Lancaster Local Development Framework.............ccoooiiiiiiiiiieiienis e 2
2.3. Lancaster City Council Corporate Plan and Priorities 2013-2014 ... 3
2.4. Lancashire County Council Local Transport Plan 2011-2021 ..., 3
2.5. Heysham —MB LinNk Road ..........cocoiiiiiiiiiiii e 4
3. THE PARKING SERVICE.................... Fe - Y OO UU TPV 4
3.1. Management of the Parking ServiCe..........ccoi i e 4
3.2, Parking Enforc@ment. ... ... e 5
3.3, Parking SOCK ... 5
3.4. Future Levels of Parking StocK. ... s 6
3.5, Off Street Tariff SIUCHUNE ..o et 6
3.6, OnStreet Tanfl SIUCUNE ... e e g
3.7, PaIKSAIE et 9
3.8. Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy 2011-14.................. bt ee et e e annnee 10
3.9. Keylssues for the Parking Service..........coo v 11
3.10.  Parking for Specialist Groups.........oooi i 13
3.10.1. Residents..........cc.c.oooee USSR OPRRSPRP PRSP 13
3.10.2. Parking for the Disabled................c... i 14
3.10.3. Coach and Lorry Parking ..ot 15
3.10.4. Cycle and Motor Cycle Parking...........oooo i 15
3.10.5. TAXE RANKS. ...t e 15
3.10.6. Motor HOme Parking ... e 16
A, LANCASTER .. ..o e r e e e e ettt et e ek a e e e rdb e r e s a e 16
4.1, Policy CONEXt ..ot e 17
41.1. Lancaster Canal Corridor North. Development Brief (Supplementary Planning
Guidance Note No. 8 — Lancaster District Local Plan ... 17
A 2. K BY ISBUBS. .. oo et e e e 17
421, Parkand Ride ... e 17
4.2.2. City Centre Redevelopment ... 18
R T I« T4 £ - 1 o O OO OO PP UPPPPPRPRRRON 19 -
424  Fiiming in Lancaster District ........ccooooii e 20
425  PUbCREAIM . ... 21
4251, Lancaster SQUare ROUES.............ooiiiiiiiies e et 21
4252  Lancaster Pedestrian Zone .............ocoiiiiiiiiie i 21
4.2.5.3. Lancaster Business Improvement District (BID) ..., 21
426, Parking forthe Disabled ... 22
4261, O SIrEBL... et e 22
4282, ON SIEEL. .. e e 23
427, Coach Parking.......coiiiii e e 23
428, CarPark SIQNAgE ... c..ooviiie it .24

RTA Associates Ltd. September 2013



Page 86

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy
5. MORECAMBE ... e et e ettt e 25
5.1, PONCY CONEEXE .......ciiiiiiiiiii et s 25
51.1. Morecambe Area Action Plan ... 25

5.2, K@Y ISSUBS......iitii e e e 28
5.2.1. Variable Demand for Parking ............cooccociiiiic e 28
522, Redevelopment ... 29
52.3. Parking forthe Disabled .........cccccoiiii e, SRR 30
5.2.3.1. O SrEL. ..o e e 30
5.2.3.2. ON St .. et 30

5.24. CoachParking............ceoonnnnn, et eh e e e n e h e e et e a et 31
B.25.  CarPark Signage ..o oo e e 31

B, CARNF ORTH .ottt ettt et e e e 32
T HEY SHAM Lo et e et e e 32
8. RURAL AREAS ... ..ot oottt ee e s ettt eb e 33
9. PARKING STANDARDS ON NEW DEVELOPMENTS ... 33
ACTION PLAN - AP1-AP12

RTA Associates Ltd. September 2013




Page 87

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

A PARKING STRATEGY FOR LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL
1. INTRODUCTION

The City Council is aware that a comprehensive approach to parking management will
improve the service provided directly to customers whilst also meeting the wider public
needs of sustainability and amenity.

The first comprehensive review of parking was undertaken in 2003/04 and the outcome
of the review was approved by Cabinet in March 2004. In the years that followed the
Strategy has been reviewed, revised and updated, the latest version was agreed in
October 2008 and is now ready for updating. This new strateqgy is infended as a
guidance document which needs to be flexible and kept under review at all times.

Lancaster District contains the coastal towns of Morecambe and Heysham, the historic
City of Lancaster, the railway town of Carnforth and an extensive rural area. Its
population was estimated at 139,700 in 2012.

The District is approaching a period of great challenges and changes and this strategy
recognises the opportunities for the Parking Service to assist in the achievement of the
Council's key aims and objectives. The main challenges will arise from the following
new initiatives:

s The Heysham — M6 Link Road

* The new park and ride facility at junction 34 of the MG;

* The potential development of Lancaster Castie as a major tourist attraction,;
¢ The redevelopment of the Canai Corridor North site;

e The opportunity to upgrade Morecambe town centre through the Morecambe
Area Action Plan (MAAP).

2. CROSS-DISTRICT POLICY CONTEXT

2.1. National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework, published in 2012, sets out the Government's
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. It replaces a
number of earlier guidance documents.

There specific sections in the new guidance which are relevant to this Strategy:
s Ensuring the vitality of Town Centres;

e Supporting a prosperous rural economy;
*  Promoting sustainable transport.

September 2013



Page 88

Lancaster City Council ' Parking Strategy

The latter section of the guidance contains a specific reference to car parking in town
centres: '

“L ocal authorities should seek to improve the quality of parking in town centres so that it
is convenient, safe and secure, including appropriate provision for motorcycles. They
should set appropriate parking charges that do not undermine the vitality of town
centres. Parking enforcement should be proportionate.”

2.2. Lancaster Local Development Framework

The Local Development Framework Core Strategy (2003-2021) was adopted in July
2006. The Strategy outlines a spatial vision of a sustainable District whose quality of life
and- standards of development will lead the North West, comprising a prosperous
knowledge-based City, a regenerated Coast and a conserved Countryside. It also
explains where new homes and jobs will be located, which areas will be regenerated and
which areas will be conserved. It will be complemented by more detailed documents
dealing with land allocations and development policies. ‘

The Core Strategy includes specific policies relatlng to Transportation. Policy E2
includes the following objective:

“The Council will work with partners to profnote the following transportation measure:
e Integrating the provision and management of car parking and park and ride in
Lancaster and Morecambe and managing parking (including disabled parking) in
association with development:”

The Council has prepared a number of Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes. Some
Guidance strengthens policy issues in relation to specific areas — for example:

e SPG6 ~ Lancaster City Centre Strategy (2004)
e SPG11 - Morecambe Town Centre Strategy (2004)

Other Guidance relates to the redevelopment of land which contains car parking and
seeks to preserve the provision — for example:

» SPGB8 - Canal Corridor North Development Brief (2004)
e SPG9 - Canal Corridor South Development Brief (2004)
o SPG17 — Morecambe Central Promenade Development Brief (2005)

Some of these SPGs are being replaced, by up to date Development Plan Documents.
This strategy recognises the policies and constraints imposed by the Guidance.

September 2013




Page 89

Lancaster City Council ' Parking Strategy

2.3. Lancaster City Council Corporate Plan and Priorities 2013-2014

The Corporate Plan contains a revised vision for the Council which was approved by the
Cabinet on 17 July 2013. it reads:

"A sustainable self-contained and varied group of communities, comprising:

Morecambe and Heysham — a confident community with a regenerated living,
working and leisure environment;

Lancaster — a prosperous historie city with a thriving knowledge economy;
Carnforth — a successful market town and service centre for North Lancashire
and South Cumbria; and

A conserved, enhanced and diversified Coast and Countryside with a network
of vibrant rural communities;which will lead the north west in its quality of fife and
environmental and design standards and within which sustainable housing,
economic and retail development to meet local needs will be supported.”

The Plan includes four priority areas — Economic Growth; Health and Wellbeing; Green,
Clean and Safe places; Community Leadership — and identifies actions to progress each
of the areas.

2.4. Lancashire County Council Local Transport Plan 2011-2021

The Local Transport Plan includes as one of its priorities the need to “improve access
into areas of economic growth and regeneration”.and includes the following objectives:

Introduce Park and Ride sites serving major employment areas or supporting
city centre development, principaily in Preston and Lancaster.

Promote sustainable travel options to important visitor destinations.

Work with district councifs to deliver adequate parking to allow access to
services and ensure that it is priced and managed to support strong reftail
economies within our fowns and cities whilst ensuring that public transport is a
viable alternative for many journeys. '

The Local Transport Plan Implementation Plan for 2012/13 — 2014/2015 recognises that
Lancaster District is one of Lancashire's key economic centres and Lancaster City
Centre has been identified as having the capacity to generate substantial growth and
new jobs in the professional and service sectors.

Under this Implementation Plan, Lancashire County Council will invest £47.38 miII{ion oh
highways and transport services in Lancaster, with £21.840 million of capital funding and
£25.54 million of revenue support. This will be targeted at: -

September 2013



Page 90

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

» reducing congestion and delay to strengthen Lancaster's economic
competitiveness, improve connectivity to Heysham Port and tackle Morecambe's
relative isolation

e supporting the District's achievements in encouraging a culture of cycling and
walking

» supporting Carnforth's role as a local transport hub to accessing Lancaster's
hinterland.

2.5. Heysham - M6 Link Road

This new road will complete the iink between the Port of Heysham and the M6 motorway
at Junction 34 and will run to the north of Lancaster and Morecambe. Funding has been
approved and work is due to start in the autumn of 2013 with completion in 2015.

The new road is intended to;

« reduce traffic flows in Lancaster city centre

» reduce delays on journeys to the Port of Heysham,;

» support the local economy;

e improve access to business areas north of River Lune;

e take through traffic out of residential and commercial areas;

» reduce road casualties and improve air quality;

o allow reallocation of highway space to walking, cycling, public transport and the
public realm.

The scheme also includes the provision of a 550 space park and ride car park adjacent
to junction 34. This is intended to serve both commuters and visitors to Lancaster.
Details of the bus routes into the city centre have yet to be finalised. The site will require
motorway direction signs at both junctions 33 and 34.

3. THE PARKING SERVICE

3.1. Management of the Parking Service

The Parking Service is managed by a team based in the Council's Environmental
Service and is responsible for the management, operation and enforcement of the
Council's public car parks in the District. This includes asset management, condition
surveys, repairs and maintenance, improvements and ensuring the assets are fit for
purpose. The team also administers residents parking schemes within the District and
provides some other on-street services for Lancashire County Council.

September 2013




Page 91

l.ancaster City Council Parking Strategy

In addition to working closely with Lancashire County Council and Lancashire Parking
Services the team has a number of other key pariners including St Nicholas Arcades,
Parksafe and the current parking enforcement contractor and the Police through the
Partnership Plus partnership arrangements.

The termination of the Lancashire Highways Partnership resulted in ali highway service
provision being centralised and the loss of both highway and parking staff and expertise
to the County Council. Whilst this may still have an adverse affect on delivering some of
the proposals contained in the strategy and the action plan the two Councils remain
committed to working closely together to try to ensure a seamless provision of the
overall service whilst also contributing to the wider management of parking and traffic in
the District.

3.2. Parking Enforcement

The County Council is responsible through Lancashire Parking Services for the
enforcement of on-street parking regulation orders. The City Council has contracted
with Lancashire Parking Services for the enforcement of parking on the Council’s off-
street car parks. Lancashire Parking Services also undertake some of the back office
administrative operations relating to the issue and progression of Penaity Charge
Notices (PCNs). The parking team deals with formal representations in relation to PCNs
and appeals submitted to the Traffic Penalty Tribunal. The team aisc reviews and
maintains the Council's Off-Street Parking Places Order that underpins the formal
enforcement arrangements.

Aim1:

To have suitable and effective parking enforcement arrangements for the City Council's
car parks

¢ To maintain proportionate parking enforcement compatible with the Council's Off-
Street Parking Places Order '

3.3. Parking Stock

Details of the current stock of off-street parking spaces is given in the table below:

September 2013



Lancaster City Council

Parking Strategy

Charged City
Settlement Council Private Free Council Total
S/s | LS Permit

Lancaster 799 | 444 924 1281 45 3493
Morecambe | 440 | 1045 472 1237 30 3224
Carnforth 0 0 82 318 0 400
Heysham 0 176 0 24 0 200
Totals 1239 | 1665 1478 2860 75 7317

3.4. Future Levels of Parking Stock

[t is likely that a number of the existing surface car parks will be identified for
development over the next few years. These. possibilities, which are likely to increase
demand for parking facilities, are discussed in more detail in the sections on Lancaster
and Morecambe.

Aim 2:

To maintain existing levels of short-stay parking to support shoppers, businesses,
visitors and residents. '

« Retain an appropriate stock of short stay car parking in central locations.

e Where practicable seek replacement short-stay public car parking space as
part of the redevelopment of existing car parks.

e To only consider changes in short stay car parking space linked to
redevelopment foliowing full impact analysis and due consideration of overall
parking and traffic management issues.

« Monitor the use of existing parking places to ensure the best use of space.

3.5, Off Street Tariff Structure

LA

Parking charges are a useful mechanism for assisting with the control of demand for
parking space. However, a careful balance needs to be found. If charges are too high
then spaces will be underused but, conversely, if they are too low demand for spaces
will increase to a level which makes them more difficult to find and increases congestion.
Charges shoulid also reflect the importance of shoppers’ and local business needs and
their high priority within the parking service.

September 2013




Page 93

Lancaster City Council N Parking Strategy

The income from the parking service will aiso be adversely affected if the balance is not
satisfactory. The revenue from parking is important for the Council as it assists with the
continuing improvement of the service provided. It is essential that some revenue from
parking charges income be reinvested in the parking stock to ensure an adequate
maintenance regime and to fund necessary improvements.

Charges should, therefore, be set at a level which influences parking behaviour in
support of the other ohjectives of the strategy and which maximises revenue to support
the improvement of the service, encourages regeneration and the economic wellbeing of
the District.

Aim: 3
To set ch'arges to meet the Council's corporate objectives and budget commitments:

¢ Monitor car park occupancy at regular intervals in order to maximise utilisation
whilst maintaining a reasonable level of availability;

» Use charges to deter long stay,in.short stay car parks;

« Ensure that the cost differential between on- and off-street charges is maintained
in order to encourage the use of the off-street facilities and leave the on-street
spaces for those prepared to pay a premium for the location;

¢ Ensure the views of the Town Councils, local Chambers of Commerce and Trade
and the Federation of Small Businesses are taken into account when considering
the Annual Review of Parking Charges.

All City Council car parks operate on a pay and display control system. Charges are
reviewed annually in accordance with the Council’'s financial policies and demand
management objectives.

Annual parking permits are available to residents and businesses and these can be used
on a number of specific car parks. A limited number of space specific permits are also
available for use by residents and businesses.

There are a number of privately operated car parks in Lancaster and in Morecambe. The
City Council has sought to ensure that the charges at some of these car parks are
comparable with those at the Council’'s,own car parks.

Aim: 4
To ensure that privately operated car parks have comparable pricing structures

* Where possible, negotiate appropriate agreements with private car park
operators

September 2013



Lancaster City Council ' Parking Strategy

At present the tariff structure for the Coungil’s car parks is uniform across the District.
There are two main tariff structures for short and long stay car parks. Currently (2013)
these are:

Short Stay
Lancaster Morecambe

Up to 1 hour £1.30 Up to 1 hour £1.30
Up to 2 hours £2.20 Up to 2 hours £2.20
Up to 3 hours £2.70 Up to 3 hours £2.70
Up to 4 hours £340 Up to 4 hours £3.40
Qver 4 hours £3.00 QOver 4 hours £8.00
Evening and overnight [ £1.40

(6.00 p.m. to 8.00 a.m.)

Long Stay
Lancaster Morecambe

Up to 1 hour £1.30 Up to 1 hour £1.00 or £1.30
Up to 3 hours £2.20 Up to 3 hours £2.20

- Up to 5 hours £3.70 Over 3 hours £3.20
Over 5 hours £6.00 7]
Evening and overnight | £1.40
(6.00 p.m. to 8.00 a.m.)

Lower tariffs apply at the more re'mote car parks in Morecambe (Battery Breakwater,
Coastal Road and Back Brighton Terrace) and in Heysham Village.

It has been suggested that the tariff structure should be reviewed and that the same
structure should not apply across the district. Normally the parking tariff applied in a
centre reflects the shopper and visitor experience available in that centre. Clearly the
experiences in Lancaster and in Morecambe are different. Lancaster offers a wider
shopping experience and different visitor attractions to Morecambe. The shopping
experience in Morecambe is smaller but the seaside visitor attraction is large. A review
of the current tariff structure may assist in the promotion of Morecambe as a visitor
centre and help to achieve a greater visitor dwell time.

Clearly any review of the tariff structure will need to take in to account the overall
financial situation and the need to maintain car park income.

September 2013




Page 95

Lancaster City Council Parking Straiegy

Aim 5:

To ensure that the parking tariffs levied reasonably reflect the shopper and visitor
experiences in the various centres, whilst ensuring that the parking account is not
adversely affected by any changes:

¢ Undertake a review of the current tariff structure, with a view to achieving a
greater visitor dwell time

¢ Consult widely on any changes proposed

» Ensure that the changes do not have an adverse effect on the parking account.

3.6. On Street Tariff Structure

On street pay an display parking spaces provide additional short-term parking around
Lancaster city centre to complement the off street parking stock. On street parking
charges should always be set a higher level to encourage the use of off street car parks
and to discourage drivers from circulating around the city and increasing traffic
congestion. The approach on charging is referred to as having ‘differential charges’

Lancaster's Three Tier Forum considered a briefing note in 2012 following a number of
years when the differential charges had not been maintained. This highlighted the need
for the relevant Officers and Members to work closely together to ensure a coordinated
approach is taken each year when determining the level of parking charges in the
L.ancaster District.

Aim 6:
County and City Officers and Members work closely together to achieve the
synchronisation of the deliberations and recommendations for on-street and off-street

parking charges

¢ Toc maintain differential charging between on-street and off-street parking

3.7. Parksafe

The Parksafe car park has 276 spaces and is a partnership between the operator and
the City Council. The car park has operated completely crime free since opening in
2001. The car park offers guaranteed security parking provided the customer complies
with all the correct parking procedures. :

September 2013



Page 96

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

Parksafe has an agreement with the City Council that ensures the tariff structure for this
car park is always higher than the Council's central car parks in view of the guaranteed
security. The car park agreement provides for the further refurbishment of the car park
and maintaining the guaranteed security parking facility.

Retaining control of these parking spaces in Lancaster has been strategically important
in terms of managing the parking stock. The car park is in very close proximity to
Lancaster Castle and can provide secure 24/7 parking to assist with the castle’'s
potential future uses. S

3.8. Meaium Term Corporate Property Strategy 2011-14

The 2011-2014 Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy (MTCPS), sets out the
strategic direction for the management of the Council's property portfolio during this
three year period, reflecting ali the other relevant government policies, council plans and
strategies. '

The aims and objectives of the MTCPS are to:

e highlight the progress made against the key performance targets and property
improvements implemented over the last year '

« set out the key asset management tasks and targets for the forthcoming year.
The way that the Council manages its land and property assets has a direct impact on
both the quality of services that it delivers to the public and the quality of the
environment. It is therefore important that efficient and effective use is made of these

assets to support corporate and service objectives.

The strategy identifies a number of other objectives against which the Council's asset
portfolio should be addressed including:-

e Fit for purpose and compliance with Statutory /Regulatory codes
¢ Value for Money

e Improved Corporate Management

e Sustainability

e To serve the Council's Corporate Priorities

¢ Enabling

September 2013




Page 97

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

Car parks are a significant part of the Council's diverse and widespread portfolio of land
and property assets throughout the district. Car parks are also important from the wider
management of both parking and traffic and are a valuable access and amenity facility
for residents, businesses and visitors. it is crucially important that the management of
car parks is both compatible with the MTCPS and this strategy to support the wider aims
of the Council including Economic Growth, Health and Wellbeing, Green Clean and Safe
places and Community Leadership.

AimT:

To provide, maintain, review, manage and develop car parks to support the Medium
Term Corporate Property Strategy and the vision and priorities of the Council.

« Monitor the parking service to ensure that the Parking Strategy and the Medium
Term Corporate Property Strategy are properly co-ordinated.

3.9. Key Issues for the Parking Service

The public expectation of the quality of car parks has increased in recent years and the
customer now expects a well managed, clean, attractive and secure car park. For
visitors the car park often provides the first impression of the destination and can colour
their whole experience of the visit; frequently determining whether or not they return on
second and subsequent occasions. The impression, therefore, is important in economic
terms to the District.

There are a number of new initiatives that will need to be considered which will enhance
the parking experience for residents and visitors:

s The introduction of a telephone payment option;
e The introduction of virtual parking permits;
¢ The provision of tourist information points

There is also some pressure for new environmentally friendly initiatives, e.g.:

* The provision of charging points for electric vehicles;
s Restricting the use, at a reduced tariff, of one car park to low emission vehicles.

September 2013



Page 98

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

Aim 8:

To provide a high quality parking service which is efficient, responsive to the user's
needs, providing assets of the highest design and appearance and as secure and safe
as possible, whilst identifying the impact on budgets:

Where possible respond to enquiries within 7 working days

Provide a freephone number for customer enquiries, linked to the Council's
Customer Services Centre

Consult with representative groups on proposed changes to parking schemes
Ensure that all car parks are adequately surfaced

Provide a high standard of lighting in car parks, whilst avoiding unnecessary light
pollution

Ensure that routes to car parks are clearly signed

Consider the provision of variable message signing which provides car park
space information to drivers and reduces unnecessary journeys on high volume
traffic routes

Provide regular car park patrols to enhance security and provide a service to
customers

Ensure that all car parks are regularly cleaned; that landscaped areas are well
maintained and that any graffiti is promptly removed

Ensure that pedestrian routes to and from and within car parks are attractive, well
signed, secure and safe

Consider the provision of tourist information boards at key car parks

Implement a programme of re-marking to ensure a minimum space width of
2.4m, whilst recognising this may reduce the allocation of parking spaces

.Provide suitable management information on usage, parking trends and

occupancy rates
Investigate options for energy saving

Investigate and consider the introduction of a telephone and / or electronic
payment option at Pay and Display car parks

Consider the introduction of virtual permits

Consider the provision of electric vehicle charging points at suitable locations
Consider the provision of a dedicated car park for low emission vehicles

Ensure effective and efficient maintenance arrangements are in place for pay
and display machines
Ensure continuous improvement in parking stock

Wi 6

September 2013




Page 99

~ Lancaster City Councii . - Parking Strategy

3.10. Parking for Specialist Groups

3.10.1. Residents

The Council recognises that residents expect that they will be able to park in the vicinity
of their homes and has determined that the needs of residents have the highest priority
within the previously agreed parking hierarchy.

Many residents will require access to long stay parking and an annual permit scheme is
available for certain long stay car parks in Lancaster and Morecambe.

The City and County Councils have recognised that commuter parking in residential
areas adjacent to the centres of Lancaster and Morecambe has a negative effect on the
quality of life of residents living in those areas. The introduction of residents’ parking
schemes has assisted with the resolution of these problems aithough there is always the
risk of the displaced vehicles parking:in adjacent residential areas. The needs of
residents’ visitors and businesses’ customers in the area should be considered.
Additional schemes will be considered as the needs arises.

Details of the scheme and the types of permit availabie are published in the Council's
guide on Residents’ Parking Schemes which is available on the Council’'s website.

The demand for residents parking permits is increasing as more new high occupancy
dwellings are constructed in the centres of both Lancaster and-Morecambe. In line with
Planning Policy many of these developments have little or no off-street parking
provision. Amended Traffic Regulation Orders for Residents’ Parking Schemes have
been introduced to remove the eligibility for residents of buildings in areas with good
accessibility that have been or will be granted planning permission on the basis of
reduced off-street parking provision. A register of these excluded properties is
maintained in the parking office.

The cost of administering the residents parking schemes is retained in a separate
account for Lancashire County Council. The City Council is currently reviewing these
costs and the arrangements for visitor parking as these are becoming disproportionate
compared with the overall cost of administering the schemes. Simplified and more user
friendly visitor parking arrangements are being investigated and will be introduced
subject to appropriate consultation and provided a satisfactory level of control can be
maintained

The transfer of staffing resources to the County Council, following the termination of the

Lancashire Highways Partnership, has resulted in the City Council having less influence
over the implementation of additional residents’ parking schemes. The County Council is

September 2013



Page 100

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

also reviewing the priority given to traffic regulation orders for resident's parking
schemes and the future approach on the identification, assessment, funding and
implementation of additional schemes. Whilst the aims set out below are the Council's
preference, it is recognised that these aspirations may not be met without the County
Council actively making resources available.

Aim 9:

To maintain effective administrative arrangements to support the ongoing operation of
residents’ parking schemes:

« Review visitor parking arrangements and to reduce the cost of administering
the residents parking zones

+ Make provision for annual permits for residents to be available for use on
certain car parks

» Monitor the demand for permits and review the schemes regularly.

3.10.2. Parking for the Disabled

Whilst the majority of this strategy relates to parking of the private car, consideration
should be given to the needs of all users and types of transport.

Those with mobility impairments should be catered for by reserving an adequate number
of appropriately dimensioned parking spaces for “Blue Badge” holders in the central
areas.

The issues relating to parking for the disabled are covered in more detail in the
Lancaster and Morecambe sections of this stategy.

Aim 10;

To seek to meet the needs of all users and types of transport.

» Set aside 6% of the total off street car parking space for “Blue Badge" holders
in suitable car parks where a demand is proven;
« Improve public information on parking provision.

September 2013




Page 101
Lancaster City Council ' . Parking Strategy

3.10.3. Coach and Lorry Parking

Coach Parking is essential to the District as a whole for tourism reasons.

The arrangements in Lancaster and Morecambe are discussed in the specialist sections
of this strategy.

The construction of the Truckhaven lorry parking facility near to junction 35 of the M6 at
Carnforth has removed the need for a local facility within the District.

3.10.4. Cycle and Motor Cycle Parking

The City Council has determined that availability and quality of cycle and motorcycle
parking at key destinations is a major element in encouraging a modal shift from private
car to more sustainahle forms of transport.

Concern has been expressed about the need for the provision of additional secure cycle
and motor cycle parking facilities. These should be in convenient, visible, well lit
locations.

Aim 11:

To improve the availability and quality of parking at key destinations

¢ Provide convenient safe and secure cycle parking at new points convenient to
town centres and at places of interest and amenity, in line with the Council's
aspiration to achieve increased levels of cycling in the district; .

e Increase secure cycle and motor cycle parking provision at suitable locations to
meet increasing demand; _

* Encourage, where possible, provision of sheitered cycle and motor cycle parking

» Ensure that where appropriate new developments have cycle parking integrated
at the design stage through the planning process

3.10.5. Taxi Ranks

The City Council recognises that taxis are part of the public transport system and that
the provision of suitable taxi ranks on the highway network is essential. Maintaining the
provision of these facilities is also important when considering redevelopment proposals,
major road works and parking and traffic management issues.

September 2013



Page 102

Lancaster City Council - Parking Strategy

Aim 12:

To work as required with Lancashire County Council, Licensing Services and all
stakeholders on the provision and maintenance of taxi ranks in the district

¢ To ensure an adequate provision of suitable taxi ranks

3.10.6. Motor Home Parking

There is an increasing demand for parking for motor homes which are usually too high to
enter car parks with height barriers and are often too wide and too long to be
accommodated in a standard size parking bay.

Local Authorities often feel the need to provide height barriers at car parks in order to
discourage illegal occupation of the land.

In Morecambe there are several car parks without height barriers and these can
accommodate larger vehicles although these are not identified on the car park map nor
are they sign posted.

Concerns have also been expressed about the increasing number of motor homes
parking overnight on Marine Road. This needs to be monitored and if the practice
continues to grow revised parking restrictions may be required.

Aim 13:
To consider the provision of parkin'g for motor homes:

¢ Ensure that there is adequate parking provision — a distribution of larger parking bays;

s Improve direction signage to the appropriate car parks

» Monitor overnight parking on Marine Road and consider revised parking restrictions if the
issue becomes untenable.

September 2013




Page 103

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

4. LANCASTER
4.1. Policy Context A F

4.1.1. Lancaster Canal Corridor lNorthr Development Brief (Supplementary
Planning Guidance Note No. 8 — Lancaster District Local Plan

This document, prepared in 2002, relates to the area between the city centre and the
canal. The area forms the gateway to the commercial heart fo the city and it contains a
number of important listed buildings. The area is now being actively considered for
redevelopment - see section 4.2.2.

There are a number of key objectives, including:

¢ All new buildings, car parks, footpaths and open spaces to be fully accessible to
peopte with limited mobility and other disabilities:

* Retained and enhanced city centre shopper and visitor parking;

e In the longer term, the redevelopment of other previously used sites and long
stay commuter car parks.

There is provision for a new direct access route to the replacement parking from the
north in order to remove the current “rat funning” traffic from unsuitable routes.

The guidance includes specific proposals for the St. Leonardgate car parks area. These
are currently long stay car parks on different levels and of unsuitable quality. The
guidance envisages the retention of a significant quantity of city centre shopper and
visitor parking on the site and adopts a flexible approach to its design.

4.2. Key Issues

4.2.1. Park and Ride

The Heysham - M6 link includes the provision of a 550 space park and ride facility
adjacent to junction 34. The bus route in to the city centre will be along Caton Road
although the detailed route and stopping. points within the city centre have yet to be
finalised.

Ideally the tariff structure for the park and ride will make it attractive to both commuters
and visitors who might otherwise use city centre car parks. The site will be attractive to
commuters travelling from the north and the east but less so for those travelling from the
south and from Morecambe. Therefore it will not be possible to significantly increase the
long stay tariff on city centre car parks without disadvantaging commuters travelling from

September 2013



Page 104

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

the south and the west. A significant change in the long stay tariff will only be possmie
when a ring of park and ride sites has been established.

However, the number of long stay parking spaces in the city centre will need to be kept
under review and if necessary reduced to assist the development of the use of the new
park and ride facility.

The existing Auction Mart car park (estimated capacity 125 spaces) might prove to be a
useful “interceptor” car park for commuters travelling from the south. The capacity couid
be increased by decking the car park and this might be funded by a commercial
development of part of the site.

Aim 14:
To assist the development of the use of the new park and ride facility at M6 junction 34

* Monitor the use of city centre long stay car parks;

» Consider reducing the number of long stay spaces available whilst ensuring the
commuters travelling from the south and west are not adversely affected;

* Continue to investigate the possible redevelopment of the Auction Mart car park
as an “interceptor” commuter car park.

4.2.2. City Centre Redevelopment

The redevelopment opportunities described in the Canal Corridor North SPG are
currently at the detailed desing stage. The scheme under consideration would provide a
significant opportunity to improve the city's shopping attraction which will increase visitor
numbers and therefore the demand for parking places.

The scheme would directly affect a number of existing car parks:

e Long stay _
o Upper St. Leonardgate n 115 spaces
o Lodge Street 30 spaces
o Edward Street 95 spaces
e Short stay
o Lower St. Leonardgate 66 spaces

Total 306 spaces

The development, which it is hoped will open in 2017/18, would include a 700 space car
park accessed directly from a new road link from the north of the site. At this stage no
decisions have been made about the operation of the car park other than an agreement
to align charges with the Council's other central car parks.

September 2013




Page 105

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

The development would also remove the current 6 spaée coach parking facility at Upper
St. Leonardgate — see section 4.2.7. '

Another consequence of the redevelopment of this area would be the loss of the
currently preferred access route from the north to the Council’s car parks south of Moor
Lane. There will be a risk that this would result in a significant increase in traffic
movements in the streets east of Dalton Square. Therefore, there will be a need to
monitor these traffic movements and, if necessary, to review the ongoing suitability of
some of these car parks.

A particular problem will arise during the construction period which is likely to last for
around two years. A total of 306 car and 6 coach parking spaces will be lost.

Aim 15:
To manage the consequences of the Canal Corridor North Development

+ Manage the loss of parking spaces during the construction period

¢ |dentify alternative coach parking facilities 7

» Review and monitor the access routes to the short stay car parks south of Moor
Lane

4.2.3. Tourism

Tourism is very important to the economy of the City. The closure of Lancaster Prison in
March 2011 has enabled the Duchy of Lancaster to consider the development of an
ambitious re-branding of Lancaster Castle as a major tourist attraction. The concept for
the visitor attraction is “a museum highlighting judicial and penal history in Britain
throughout the last 1000 years”. A number of the prison buildings may be converted and
historic structures such as Adrian’s Tower, the Keep and the Witches Dungeon used {o
illustrate the castle as a place if incarceration. Consideration is also being given to the
development of part of the site as a hotel of 50 — 75 rooms. Subject to the necessary
permissions being obtained it is hoped that all the new atiractions will be open by 2017.

The development of the castle is likely to significantly increase the number of visitors to
the city centre. Many will use the new park and ride at junction 34 of the M6 but others
will seek parking in the city centre. The location of the Parksafe car park close to the
castle will be ideal for visitors to the castle and an arrangement for residents of the new
hotel may also be possible.

September 2013



Page 106

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

However, it is hoped that visitors to the City will seek to enjoy both the castle and the
upgraded city centre shopping experience — see section 4.2.5. The short stay car parks
south of Moor Lane would be ideal for visitors seeking to stroll though the centre to the
castle.

It is anticipated that the normal length of stay would be around four hours but it will be
necessary to monitor this and to ensure that the car park tariff structure continues to
meet the needs of day visitors.

There will be a need to ensure that there are adequate faclities for coaches to park and
to drop off and pick up their passengers in the city centre — see also section 4.2.7.

Similarly some additional provision for parkihg for the disabled close to the castle might
be required.

Aim 16:
To ensure that the parking service provides for the needs of visitors.

e Ensure that the tariff structure reflects the needs of the day visitors;

¢ Ensure that the car park vehicular and pedestrian signage guides visitors to the
appropriate car parks and thence to the city centre and the castle;

e Review coach set down and pick up facilities in the city centre;

4.2.4. Filming in Lancaster District

The City Council works in parnership with the Lancashire Film Office to promote the
District as a first class iocation for film and television. The Council will provide help and
advice to film and television producers considering filming in the District. This will
include identifying suitable locations, booking accommodation, parking and traffic
management.

Aim: 17
To assist the development of the District as a location for film and television productions:

e \Where possible support the parking needs of film and television porduction
crews.

September 2013




Page 107

Lancaster City Councii Parking Strategy

4.2.5. Public Realm

There are a number of initiatives in place which are designed to enhance the quality of
the central pedestrian shopping area of the city:

4.2.51. Lancaster Square Routes

Lancaster Square Routes aims to rejuvenate the important historic city centre,
strengthening its position as a quality destination both for-visitors and residents of
the District. , :

The first phase of improvemerits was completed during the winter of 2011/12. It
included the repaving of the centre of Market Square and Ffrances Passage and
also new LED lighting.

A second phase is due to commence early in 2014 and this ihvolves the
improvement of Horseshoe Corner, Penny Street and further works in Market
Square.

4.2.5.2. Lancaster Pedestrian Zone

The pedestrian zone provides public realm and vehicle access to the much of the
city centre. There is concern that permitted vehicle circulation and parking in the
zone has risen and is now commonly at levels counter to the purposes of the
pedestrian zone.

The introduction of an experimental traffic regulation order has been agreed
which would be subject to the statutory consultation process. The aim of the
order would be to introduce a phased approach to changing how traffic is
managed within the zone, for the City Council to revise the local permit system
and to agree improved enforcement arrangements with the County Council and
the Police.

This approach would aliow the impact of the experimental order on vehicular
access and pedestrian amenity to be evaluated and further proposals to be

brought forward that are achievable and fit for the present and future purposes of
the zone.

4.2.5.3. Lancaster Business Improvement District (BID)

This new partnership between businesses, the local authorities and other
organisations seeks to improve the local trading environment. A levy on local

September 2013



Page 108

Lancaster City Council ‘ Parking Strategy

businesses will support a number of new initiatives and will provide additional
impetus to existing projects.

Aim 18:
To support the improvement of the public realm in the city centre:

e Introduce and maintain an effective permit administration system to meet the
needs of the experimental traffic regu_létion order and any subsequent orders

« Contribute to the effective enforcement of the experimental parking and moving
traffic contraventions

+ Remove all vehicles, except those issued with permits, from the pedestrian zone;

e Strengthen the criteria for the issue of access permits to tradespersons;

+ Review the provision of on street parking for the disabled in the streets peripheral
to the city centre. _

e Consider any parking initiatives arising from the Lancaster Bid.

4.2.6. Parking for the Disabled

4.2.6.1. Off Street

Government advice (Traffic Advisory Leaflet 5/95 - "Parking for Disabled People” DfT) on
the provision of parking facilities for the disabled is that the following formulae should be
used to assess the number of spaces at each location:

For shopping, recreation and leisure facilities:

For car parks with less than 200 | Three bays or 6% of the total capacity
spaces whichever is the greater

For car parks with more than 200 | Four bays + 4% of the total capacity
spaces

Research has shown that few, if any, Local Authorities meet those standards. The
current “norm” appears to be around 4% of the total parking stock but this is seidom
distributed evenly throughout the car parks. The tendency is to make greater provision
at the most convenient car parks and less at the more remote, usually iong stay, car
parks. At small car parks with less than 25 spaces provision of one or two spaces would
be reasonable.

An assessment of the existing car parks has indicated a need to increase the number of

spaces for the disabled by around 20. These should be provided at appropriately
located car parks where there are safe and suitable routes to the central area.

September 2013



Page 109

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

Disabled badge holders are currently entitled to park free of charge without a time
restriction on ali of the Council's car parks. There is an increasing trend for local
authorities to review such arrangements. Options include:

¢ Charging disabled badge holders for all parking;

» Charging disabled badge holders for parking for periods in excess of three hours;

» Including disabled badge holders in any maximum stay regulations at short stay
car parks.

Each of these options has some drawbacks and these will need to be considered if a
review of the current policy is undertaken.

4.2.6.2. On Street

There are a number of parking bays for the disabled in the streets peripheral to the city
centre. More will be provided within the Canal Corridor North redevelopment scheme.

However it will be necessary to review this provision in the light of the new access
restrictions in the pedestrian zone.

Aim 19:
To make adequate provision for the disabled to park safely and conveniently:

» Increase the provision of special parking bays for the disabled in suitable car
parks and ensure that access routes are safe and convenient;

» Review the off street charging policy;

s Review the on street provision of parking spaces for the disabled.

4.2.7. Coach Parking

The current coach parking facilities at Upper St. Leonardgate car park (6 spaces) will be
lost with the Canal Corridor North redevelopment scheme. The predicted increase in
visitor numbers will generate more coach borne visitors. However coach operators will -
only include Lancaster in their schedules if their vehicles can be conveniently and
securely accommodated, with suitable facilities for their drivers. New coach parking
facilities will need to be identified prior to the closure of the existing facility.

As many of the coach trips will be primarily to the castle, it has been suggested that
coach parking might be possible as part of redevelopments on St. George's Quay.

September 2013



Page 110

Lancéster City Council Parking Strategy

Coach operators will also wish to be able to set down and pick up their passengers,
many of whom will be elderly, at convenient points in the city centee — close to the shops
and the tourist attractions.

Aim 20:
To make suitable provision for coaches:
» Identify a suitable location for coach parking with adequate facilities for drivers;

e . Provide conveniently located coach set down and pick up points in the city
centre.

4.2,8. Car Park Signage

When the new Canal Corridor North redevelopment is completed it will be necessary to
review the direction signage into the city centre, taking into account the new park and
ride facility at junction 34.

With revised car park locations and more tourists atiracted to the castle it will also be
appropriate to review the pedestrian route signage in the city centre. The major routes

“from the main car parks to the central shopping areas and the castle should be identified
and it will also greatly assist visitors not familiar with the layout of the central area to sign
the routes back to the main car parks.

Another improvement which would be of benefit to both local residents and visitors
would be the provision on the main routes in to the city of automated space availability
signs for the major car parks.

Aim 21:

To ensure that visitors can easily identify their route to a suitable car park and thence to
their intended destination(s); '

e Undertake a review of vehicular signage to the major car parks following the
opening of the new park and ride and the Canal Corridor North redevelopment;

» Review the signage of pedestrian routes from and to the main car parks;

e Consider the feasibility of introduction of automated car park space availability
signage on the major routes into the city centre.

September 2013




Page 111

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

5. MORECAMBE
5.1. Policy Context

5.1.1. Morecambe Area Action Plan

The Lancaster District Core Strategy (2008) identifies central Morecambe as the main
regeneration area within the District. = The Morecambe Area Action plan is a formal
Development Plan Document which focuses on redevelopment.

The headline objective for the MAAP is to improve how the centre of Morecambe looks
(APPEARANCE), how it feels (AMBIENCE) and how it works (ACTIVITY) and
specifically to achieve:

* A Morecambe that makes the most of its natural and build heritage assets, that
has a positive sense of place, a clear identity and is better positioned as a visitor
destination;

e A central area that is a strong social hub, safer, more pleasant and more
enjoyable to be in whether to live, work or play;

e« A more viable, vital and economically productive centre with a service sector
offering the goods and services that people need;

e A stronger housing market with better housing and a more cohesive, better
balanced residential community;

* A more efficient transport network and infrastructure that better connects the
area with its surroundings, makes for easy movement to, from and within the
area and that encourages people to travel in the most sustainable ways.

The plan adopts a spatial approach to driving higher footfall and so to get the conditions
for investment right. The essential elements of this spatial approach include:

¢ Well censidered, clear signage of vehicle routes to and from Morecambe on
all route approaches including via Lancaster and Carnforth and well located long
and short stay parking options in central Morecambe;

e Changes to highway and parking arrangements to make traffic circulation
more efficient and reduce excess traffic circulation and with parking located and

managed in a way as to feed fooifall into the town centre;

¢ Much improved signage for pedestrians throughout central Morecambe
with guality information/interpretation points.

September 2013



Page 112

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

The Plan is structured to include:

o Four Spatial Policies

o

o]
o
]

MAAP SP1. Key Pedestrian Routes and Spaces

MAAP SP2. Investment Exemptions

MAAP SP3. Morecambe Main Seafront and Promenade
MAAP SP4. Town Centre

The spatial approach seeks to develop a strong heart for the town conveniently served
by bus and rail arrival points and car parking.

» Six Development Opportunity Sites

o]

c O Cc o 0

MAAP DO1. The Battery

MAAP DO2. Strategic Leisure — Seafront Headland, Central Promenade
MAAP DO3. The Arndale and area

MAAP DO4. West View

MAAP DOS5. Festival Market and area

MAAP DO6. Former Frontierland site

e A series of thirteen Action Sets

O
o]

0O 0 0O 0 0 0 0 0O ¢ OO0

AS1. Managing and maintaining streets and spaces

AS2. Improving the condition of buildings and encouraging beneficial
occupancy '

AS3. Improving key routes for pedestrians and cyclists

AS4. Further encourage business investment and development
AS5. Central seafront and main beach

ASE. Western seafront and beach

AS7. Seafront headland, central promenade

AS8. The town cenire

AS9. Edge of centre retail park

AS10. Traffic route signage to and from central morecambe
AS11. Parking provisicn and management

AS12. Bus and coach services

AS13. Rail services

AS14 Plan delivery

Whilst only AS11 deals specifically with parking provision and management a number of
other Action Sets refer to car parking. Key references are noted below:

e AS5 suggests the adjustment of Marine Road car park no.2 to create a high
quality pedestrian route to the towri¢entre and some changes to car park no. 1 to
provide for a coach drop off point.

September 2013




'P"age 113

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

e ASS8 has a number of proposals which affect the existing parking arrangements:

o Transform the street space between Barclays and the Post Office as a public
Space of real quality with a shared surface treatment to make it much more
pedestrian friendly and a fitting focus for the entrance to the Arndale from
here. As part of this revised traffic arrangements at the junction of Market
Street and Euston Road these to include some changes to turping and
parking arrangements including for taxis;

o Improve the pedestrian environment immediately around the library and make
a good route for pedestrian across the Library car park to Market Street;

o Pending any future redevelopment better sign and upgrade the much
underused West View car park prospectively including investment in security
and surveillance;

o Improve arrangements for coach drop off and pick up.

Section 10 of the MAAP relates to Travel and Transport. A key element of the plan is a
set of actions to re-cast how central Morecambe works in terms of transportation, arrival
and parking. These are about making central Morecambe work much better particularly
for pedestrians and help increase footfall The plan recognises that good parking
provision is essential to the vitality and viability of the town centre and that in
Morecambe car parking availability readily meets demand at most times. Indeed a very
many times total capacity is way in excess of demand.

Of particular concern is the fact that the current parking choices increase traffic
movements with drivers circulating to locate their preferred choice of parking location.
The plan is concerned that whilst parking is essential it is the predominant land use
within central Morecambe.

AS11 includes a number of proposals relating to parking:

e That the City and County Councils should prepare a joint plan for changes to
transportation and vehicle parking within the plan area; covering both on and off
street parking,;

s The joint plan to be consistent with the MAAP and be informed by the proposed
MAAP Topic Paper 6 (Access, Transport and Parking) and to include the
following aims:

o The main routes into the town to afford a hierarchy of parking choices
with longer stay provision the first choice available with shorter stay
choices closer into the town centre where possible;

o Traffic circulation is reduced;

o Highway and parking signage is well conS|dered and clear as to the
choices of parking available;

o Much vehicle parking is provided towards and at the edges of the town
centre with less at the heart of the town itself;

September 2013



Page 114

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

o The location, pricing and management of on street parking to complement
that provided off street and not atiract people away from off street
provision.

AS11 further suggest the following parameters for parking:

o Make parking faciliies work as first stop information points, helping to direct
footfall to the town centre and other areas/destinations of interest;

e Provide for legitimate needs for short duration parking close to key service
providers including the Post Office, banks and building societies;

¢ Consider the needs of appropriate residential parking;

e+ Bring the provision of dedicated disabled bays within and around the town centre
up fo the national guideline standard,;

e Provide for coach drop off and pick up within or very close to the town centre;

¢ Increase parking provision in certain locations either by increasing efficiencies in
the use of the space or brining other underused areas into use for parking;

¢ Target that change to net public parking provision within the plan area over the
plan period to not make more than a 10% loss in spaces; ‘

» Keep net consequential changes to city council parking incomes close to revenue
neutral or better. '

Certain car parks and areas of car parking will be decommissioned as part of the
changes in land use. The potential sites for this are identified in the list of development
opportunity sites.

5.2. Key Issues

5.2.1. Variable Demand for Parking

As highlighted in the Morecambe Area Action Plan there is a very large variation in the
demand for parking in Morecambe. Usage of the car parks is both seasonal and
weather related. Some car parks are designated long stay and some short stay. The
usage of these car parks will need to be kept under review. -

However, despite the wide choice of car parks and the fact that spaces are available
most of the time there is a problem with traffic circulating around the narrow streets in
the town cente searching for free parking places or driving to a favourite location. This is
detrimental to the environment of the town centre and presents difficulties for
pedestrians.

There are a significant number of on street parking places which contribute to the traffic
problems and it would be prudent to review the use of these spaces; perhaps converting
more in to parking bays for the residents in the town centre or additional provision for the
disabled. It will be necessary to strike a balance between the needs of residents,
shoppers, visitors and those who work in the town centre.

September 2013




Page 115

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

Aim 22:
To ensure that the parking requirements of all users are met.
¢ Regularly review the mix of long and short stay off street parking

» Undertake a review of on street parking in the town centre and consider the
provision of additional permit parking for residents

5.2.2. Redevelopment

Despite the fact that on some occasions in the peak of the tourist season all car parking
spaces are likely to be occupied, a number of the car parks are regularly underused and
should be considered as potential redevelopment sites. The potential sites are identified
in the Morecambe Area Action Plan and are likely to include those listed below. if all
were to be redeveloped there would be a significant loss of parking stock:

Car Park Total Spaces, Disabled
incl. disabled spaces
Council Operated
Bus Station 18 4
Goods Yard 66 4
Marine Road 2 18 2
Pedder Street 72 3
Sub-total 174 13
Privately Operated
Winter Gardens | 425 (approx) Not known .
Total 599

This level of loss of spaces will require careful management in order to ensure that the
new developments replace the lost spaces and also provide for any additional parking
demand generated by the developments themselves. There will also be potential
difficulties during construction periods when the old parking will be lost and any potential
replacement parking may not have been constructed..

September 2013



Page 116

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

Aim 23:

To maintain adequate provision of parking during and after any redevelopment of
existing car parks.

s To ensure that the effects of any redevelopment of existing car parks are
minimised; '

» To ensure that when redevelopment occurs it follows that appropriate car parking
arrangements are made.

5.2.3. Parking for the Disabled

5.2.3.1. Off Street

An assessment of the existing car parks has indicated that in comparison with the
recommended standards (see section 4.2.6.1) there are sufficient parking spaces for the
disabled in Morecambe. However, it is always prudent to monitor the use of these
spaces as the distribution, whilst compliance with the guidance, may not meet the actual
demand.

The charging options described in section 4.2.6.1 apply equally to the car parks in
Morecambe.

5.2.3.2. On Street

As previously mentioned there are some issues with general traffic searching for on
street parking spaces in the town centre. To ease the volume of the circulating traffic
consideration could be given to the conversion of some of the available parking spaces
to parking for the disabled. :

Aim 24:
To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking space for the disabled:
e Monitor the distribution of the off street provision and adjust if the demand so

justifies;
» Review the provision of on street parking for the disabled in the town centre.

September 2013




Page 117

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

5.2.4. Coach Parking

There are three existing coach parking facilities in Morecambe:

» A dedicated coach park adjacent to the Morrisons Supermarket ~ caters for the
day trip coaches

» Winter Gardens - caters for day trip coaches

e Back Brighton Car Park — a iow cost facility which tends to cater for parking
coaches bringing parties staying in one of the sea front hotels

« Battery Breakwater Car Park — caters for day trip coaches

The coach parking facilities appear to meet the current coach parking needs but the
situation will require monitoring. However, there is a need to consider the provision of
suitably located coach drop off and pick up poeints for both day trip coaches and those
servicing the hotels

Aim 25:
To ensure that there is adequate prbviéién for coach parking:
¢ Monitor the use of the existing facilities and consider additional provision if

necessary;
» Review the provision of suitable drop off and pick up peints.

5.2.5. Car Park Signage

There are concerns about the current directional signage to the public car parks. The
signs need to direct motorists, particular the visitors who may be unfamiliar with the
area, to the most convenient car park for their intended destination. The routes shouid
avoid where possible unnecessary circulation within the central area. Ideally drivers
should be directed to the most suitable car park.

The Morecambe Area Action Plan has identified a need for improved signage of the
main pedestrian routes to and from the town centre and the key attractions.

September 2013



Page 118

Lancaster City Council _ ‘ Parking Strategy

Aim 26:
To improve directional signage to the main car parks:

» Undertake a review of directional signage to the main car parks and update when
redevelopment takes place

» Review pedestrian route signage from the main car parks to and from the town
centre and key attractions.

6. CARNFORTH

Carnforth is an important local centre providing access to Morecambe Bay and the
Arnside Area of Ouistanding Natural Beauty.

The traffic and parking problems in Carnforth are long standing. There is a need to
maintain the current parking facilities at the raiway station as these serve both rail
travellers and visitors to the town centre. The car park, which is privately operated,
provides for both short and long stay parking. '

There are also two supermarket car parks.which are often used by shoppers visiting the
town centre as well as the supermarkets. A two hour maximum stay applies at the

supermarket car parks.

There are issues about the on street parking in the town centre; notably Market Sireet.

Aim 27:
To protect the existing parking facilities in the town centre:

e Maintain the parking facility at the railway station;

« Monitor parking in Market Street and, if necessary, work with the County Council
to amend the parking restrictions;

s Consider additional parking provision if a suitable development opportunity
arises.

17

September 2013




Page 119

Lancaster City Council ' Parking Strategy

7. HEYSHAM

Currently, there are no problems with parking in Heysham - there are facilities at the
port and a large council operated car park in the village.

The completion of the Heysham — M6 link road may provide the catalyst for the
expansion of the operations at the port and this may create new parking issues, both on
and off street. .

Aim 28:
To assist the expansion of the port at Heysham:

* Work with the port authorities to ensure that parking problems do not inhibit the
commercial expansion of the port.

8. RURAL AREAS

At many of the District's popular tourist attractions in the rural areas, car parking demand
can exceed supply. This can lead to environmentally damaging and obstructive on-road
parking. In some locations additional parking facilities may be appropriate.

Aim 28:

To review parking provision at the more popular rural tourist attractions.

Assess the environmental and road safety impact of existing parking demand.
+ Where appropriate consider the provision of additional facilities.

Investigate the potential improvements available for parking at Glasson Dock

which is in private ownership of the Canal and River Trust.

9. PARKING STANDARDS ON NEW DEVELOPMENTS

The Council has set out its parking standards for new developments in appendix C of the
Development Management DPD.

September 2013



Page 120

Lancaster City Council Parking Strategy

Aim 30:

To ensure compliance with the detailed standards set out in the DPD:

» Impose maximum standards for non-residential development, using the criteria
~ for parking provision and operational parking set out in the DPD.
+ Encourage developer contributions to ensure adequate accessibility to new
developments by all modes with the emphasis on achieving the greatest degree
of access by public transport, walking and cycling.

September 2013



Page 121



Page 122

€107 1aquardag T-dv P11 SIIEID0SSY V1Y
221AJ35 Y} anoidwy 0}
Jspio vl syded Jed ayy jo wswadueyua [ealsAyd pue’
Buiodup A11N295 ‘|RIUSWLIUOLIALD Jo 3wwesBoud e uieluley ‘goeds
sazeds jo Jaquunu 40 25N 1534 243 2unsud 0] sasepd
WS Hoys 81 asiwxew o1 Hjied Jed [je jo noke| 3yl manay Supyred SunsIxa Jo asn 9yl JOHUO N
syted Jed Joidadiaiul Jo uoistaoad ayl
padinbai sy Fupnau Supjied Jes jJo mainal 21833115 B 10 AleD swdolaaapal
sanss) uonelodsuesy pue Supjied Jolew oy payuy) aoeds Supyted ted
pasinbaJ sy # ljedaA0 JapIsuoD pue sisAjeue 3edwi ny Ino Auey | ARIS HOYS W1 saBueyd JapIsuod AjuQ
‘syaed ie2 Sunsixs jo wawdo|ansps)
awdojaaapal 01150 s Supyled a3 jo 1ed se aaeds Buped
# alaym apeut s| uoisiaoid m.:._v:ma Aojesuadwod Jea oygnd Aejs-poys uswsoe|dal spuapIsad
wJiaj] Joys ucm_mzzwuw 2lnsua 0} mthQ_m__amU YA IO AN LEEN w_n_mumuum._a 1Y PLUD SI0USIA \m.mhwm:.__mh_ﬂ _.WL_NQQU_:M
ujeuiew poddns o3 Bupind Apis-pioys jo
WISt 1oys st Sunyted tousia pue Jaddoys Jo Aiddns ayi aunsug § °sucijedo] [1us2 ut Supjed Jes Aels 5]an3} BULISIXa UIDILIDW Of JUly
wisj Hoys S21IS SAIIBUINE 1O AY|IGe]IBAR BY1 B3eBSaU| | HIOYS JO 3201s alendoidde ue uielay 330315 3upjied JO S[8A37 3Jning 4
sydpd 402 § 0uno)
13pIo A1 oy Jof siuawabuniio
sadeld Supied 1931S-HO S,|1PUN0D awaziofua Buryind antdaffe
13pIQ0 sa3ejd 3uUDjIRd 199.A5-10 2yl jo saalpaigo | 3yl ylm ajquedwiod JUWSIouS pun 3[goans anDy of Wiy
Suio8ug aY1 S109|J32 LYIIYM JUBLLISIIOLUS JO BWwiayds e ainsug | Supjied sjeuontodosd uelvlew ol juawadlojuz Supjied T
(sseah 0T-g) wie) Huot
(s4eaA g7} wist wnipa Auri uonoY m.&ﬁ.&no Wiy oy

(sieaA g 01 dn) Wit} Hoys
ajedsawl |

A8a1ea1s Sunjiey

ASajen3s ay3 Jo swie ay) }9aw o} pasedoud ase suoide Buimol|oy aylL

NV1d NOILLDY DNIdNYvd

“# B yum paiyBiySiy ale assy "$$320NS aA31Y0e 0} Jay1a80] 310Mm 01 S{IDUNOD ATUN0D pue Al 3yl a4inbau ||1m SUOIIDE ayi JO Auely 310N

[puno) AND Jasesue




Page 123

€107 Jaquiardas

P11 S91RD0SSY V1Y

siolesado yied 1ea 31eanud yym

satmaniys bupud ajgoipduwod
3oy syiod 4pd palpiado
Afa1pand 1oyl 2dnsus o4 Juiy

Suio8uQ sioleisdo arealnd syl yum an3ojelp e UlBIUIEN syuswaaide ajeidoldde ajenodan siyied Je) pajelado APieaiad t
sadieyd Bupued
1O MBIASY [BnuUUY B4} BuLIBpISUod
USYM 1UN0JJE 01U} U el
# 2JE $ISSDUISNG [|BIWIS JO UDIIEIDPaY
341 PUB 9pERI] PUR FDIDWLOD)
sagieyd J0 SJaguuey)) (B30} ‘SPUND)D
Ajjlenuuy Bupjied Jo maiA3a [ENUUE 3Y) U Aj9pIMW 1NSUoD LAMOL BU] JO SM31A 31 31nsu3
. UOREeI0| 3y} 0y
wnnaad e Aed o3 pasedaad asoys
40y saseds 199135-U0 94] 9AE3| pue
# S9111j108) 192415-}30 3Y1 JO 95N 3y}
2/M1INA1S e} 19215 4o | 9824noduS 01 JapJo Ui pauietulew S|
pUB B0 2y} U23m13q |BlluaJagup a8ueyd sleudoidde | $9BIRYD 19241S-§0 PUB -UO UI3MIa]
Ajlenuuy Ue UIRIU[BUE 01 [I2UNO7 AIUNGD 341 Y1IM YI0M |[B[IUSISL4IR 1500 3Y] 1BY] 3UNsuU]
; ‘Bupyied Aeys

Fuo| J219p 03 4n1anJis Jiel ayl snlpe ‘Aessadau ‘sysed Jed AelS poys
Ajenuuy J ‘pue sxaed aed Aels 1oYs ayl jo a3esn ay) JOHUON ul Aeys Buo| Jo15p 01 sadieyd asn
Aujigeiene

10 |3A3] ajgeuoseal e Bulueluiet S wwod 138png pun

1S{YM UOIRES) N SSIUIXeW san123fqo aipi0dion s pouno)

0] J2PIC U) S|eAs31ul Jepn3al Y3 395w 03 sabioya 135 O (WY | €
Ajjenuuy a8esn yied 4D 40 sAaaINs Jendad 3 eLISPUN 1e Aauedn3o0 yJed Jed JoJIUo a4n31INA3S el 1330S Jo
(54224 QT-5) WL Buo
{s1eah 5-7) e wnipa
nun uoloy analqo wily Joy

(sieah g 01 dn) una) Eoys
IeIsaw]

Adayeais Bunjed

{1auno) Ay Ja1seaue




€107 19quiaidag €-dv _ ‘P17 S91BIDOSSY V1Y

‘Haunoy ayy fo sanoud
pup  uoisia ayp puo Abaions

Apadosd 310400403 ULiaj
‘paieulpo wmpa eyl uoddns o1 supd
-02 Ajiadoud ase A3alens Ausdoid ip3 dojanap pup aboupw ‘Mmamal
aielodioly Wil Wnipa Ayl wojuipws  ‘apmoid 0 IUHY
sa18a1e43s | pue ABoie)s Bunlied eyl 1Byl 2Unsus ¥10Z-T10Z A8a3eais Ausadoud
Buio8uQ ay1 Jo uonewpio-0o 13doid 3yl 3unsuS 03 op | 01 3maas Bupjled Byl JOHUOW e jetodio) wial WNIpIW L
sabipyd Buppiod 122.435-ffo pup
N 183415-U0 10§ SUOIDPLUIWILI0I3L
mV_ m puD SUCHIDIAGHP 343
D # J0 uonosiuoduAs ayy anaiyao o}
(@] sjjleel Supyjsed Bupped 43413601 Aj3S0[2 HIOM SIBGLUBAI
© 18915 JJO pUB UO UIaM1D( |BIIUSISLIP J|qelns pue 139.115-1J0 pUB 193115-UD UdaM1ag pup siaxiffo A1) pup Aunod wy
Q- Buodup UIBTUIBLL 01 SA2010) Ioune AJUNGD syl UM HI0m Fuidieyo [enuaIByp UlRIUIBW O] @ B4niaNas e 1aadls uo 9
1UNo2dEe
Bupiied ayz uo 3033 askanpe ue :sabupbys Aup Aq pa1daffp
BuioBup ainupusdxa pue awWodul JoHUOW Ajjlenuiiuo) | SABY 10U Op s38ueyd 3yl jeyl ainsul e Ajassanpo J0u st JuN02o0 Buppiod
pasodoid ay1 10y2 BULINSUD IS|IYM "S31IUa)
BwoBup swwesfoid uonensucs e ueULeA sagueys Aue uo A|apIM Jnsuod e SNOMDA 34 Ul $32U3J13dX3
aw} J03sia pup Jaddoys ayl
Homp Jousia Ja1essd e Bulaaiyoe 1231fa1 Ajgpuospad painay sfiuol
elep Aeys jo yiBua) 0] psedas anp 01 M2IA B Ulm 2nJaniis ey Buppand ay} 10y 21nsua 0f uly
wiaj 1oys BuiABY 2430035 JHIEY 34T 1O Matadd Suljjol e 31eRIY| 1U244N3 3UY3 JO MIADS B 3EHBPpUN J]UNPRNIS e jenuadaylg | S
(saeahk OT-G) wia ), uoy
MHMM Nm .nw%ﬂumﬁwh ﬁwﬁﬁm juf] uondy aa13fqo Ly 9y

sjedsawut)

Afaiea1s Sunjied . [12Uno) A1) 4315e3UE




Page 125

€107 Jaquidas

P17 $91€12055Y V1Y

{sieah g 01 dn) wuag Loys

ajeasauiL] yun uoly aa3lqo - wiy 4oy
pasowai Ajpdwoad sy 114248 Aue
12y} pUE paulelulew [[PMm dJe seale
Alessazau | padeaspue| ley) ‘paues|d Apepndas
ullg] Moys 3 9noadwi pue awiHal 9IUBUIIUIEW Yl M3A9Y | 2Je Sjied Jed e eyl aunsul
SJ2W01SND 0] IDIAIDS
sawly yead 1e Allejnonled ‘e8esea0) wnwixew | B apiaoad pue  Ajunoss  aoueyus
whia] Hoys 21nsu2 01 s31N0J pue selol Suljjoiied syl maaay | 01 sjosied dyied ued uen3al apinodd
SIIN0J J1B 1 SWNOA Y31y uo
sAausnol Aiessadauun saonpal pue
# SISALP 0] uolewlJojul oeds yJed
SIBALP 10} uonewlojur | 1ed sapiaocid yomym BuiuBis adessaw
Suio8uQ 3w |ead apoad o1 [Puno) AUnoT 34l Yum oAy | S1qeueA JO uoistacld BUl JSPISUO)
SBE3JE UO[12AI9SUOD PUE 341U33 UMO] JO AJIAIISUDS paudis Apes|d
WD WHIpaN ayz 01 psedal Buiney sudis Bupjied ||e mainay 2Je $Jed Jed 03 s3IN0J 1BYL 8iNnsu]
uonnpod 1y3i Aressasauun
Suiploae 1spym ‘syded Jead
wis] 1oys sawayas Junysi Funsixa |8 jo maaad e uswa|dw | ur Bunydif o piepuels yaiy e aplaodd
. siuawaa0aduw Jo swwesdoud Buyjol paoepns Ajienbape . :5126png
SujodugQ 5] 01 Ui} PUB SIUIISSISSE UOIHPUOI 3NUITUOD 2Je syied Jed e 1BYL A4NSU] o 104w oyl BuAfuapr 1SHyM
sawsyds ‘apqissod  so afps  pun  24n2as
Bulyied o1 sadueyd pasodoud uo SD pup 3jupiwaddo pup ubisap
Buto8up $3ISI2U9XS UONEYNSUCD tgnd |EWojul pue |ewioy | SANOSF aAi1R1USS4d1 UHM 1NSuoD) 152461y ay1 fo siasso Bupiroid
B1U37) S82IAISS JaWolsn) § [1IDung) Spaau 5,.495n 2yl o1 anisuodsas
syJded Jed je a8eudis uo 3y1 03 payul| ‘salnbua Jawolsnd qu001ff3 st yarym axnuas buprind
wa| 1oys 3umpnpour ‘AlRpIm asIaApE pue ALljIoe) U3 Ys!|qeIs] 410} Jaquinu suoydaady e apInoid Autonb ybry o apinosd ol WY
sAep uppom £ Uiyym sauinbua MIALIS
Wwlia] 1oys Asessaoau se 1sn{pe pue s|Seq ejndal & U0 MIADY 03 puodsas sjqissod a1aym dupjied auy Joj sanss) Aay g
(s1eaA pr-5} waa) Fuo
(54224 gz} WL uMIpa
jyun uolhpy anRIqo wiy 4oy

{sieahA z 01 dn) wusg Loys
SIS

Ada1e015 Bunjiey

I12uno) Aud Jassesue




Page 126

€107 Joqualdas

P11 S23R0SSY VLY

(s4emA 7 01 dn) W= WOYS

ajeasawy Aun uondy aAn3lqo wiy 3oy

s1jney aujyoew Aejdsip sauydew Aejdsip pue Aed Joy sae|d

pue Aed jo ucilealIou pue SUIoHUCW I10Wal uj ale SjuswaBuelie asuBUIIUIBW

WLIS] Wnipsiy 21e81159AU] pue sjuawaduelIe SUlISIXD MIIADY 1LUBIDILID PUE SANI3YS 3UnsuU]
SIPIYIA

UOISSIWE Mmo| 10y aed Jed paledipap

wie] Wnipsiy Ayljoey B Yons Joj |epuaied 2yl 91e8|15aAU] B JO UOISIAOLD BU] JOPISU0]
suCeIo|

9115 1581 & jo uoisiacid 3yl 01 malA B ylim a|geuns e syulod Juidieyd apiyan

WLI3L wnipan a8esn |enualod pue 3u1503 ‘suondo ay) a1e8isoAL| 314129|2 JO UoIsIADId 243 JBpISU0)
6 Wiy 0siD 335 s}wiiad

wiaj Heys wiayshs ywiad 3y3 Jo malasd jo Med se Japisuo) |[EN1AA JO UORDNPOIIUL 3] 4BPISU0D
syaed sed Aejdsig pue

Aed 1e suondo juawAed Jluei1oee

/ 10 pue auoyds|sl e JO LUOIIINPOIIN

wJgl Joys suoljdo J3pIsuos pue suotido PyJew aledisanu) SU3 JAPISUOT PUB 2)EBI1SaAL|
UoHoINpal 10} Huines

Sule8up suoinde Japisuod pue uoldwnsuca AZ1sus Jonuoy A8isus 10y suondo a1e81159AU]
sales Azuednozo pue spuaiy

sJemyos pue ASojoutosl Bupjaed ‘23esn uo uoleWIOUL

wHIa L Wnipaw Mol 21e31159AUI PUE SWS1SAS JUIS3Ud MaIAdY JUswWaBeURW I|GeHNS SPINCI
saoeds dupjied

10 uonedo|je 3y3 3anpaJ Aewt sy}

SuisiuBodal ISIUM ‘Wit Z JO UIpIm

sinoAe] | @ceds WinwWiuiw B 3unsua o} Supjiew

wia] duol pue sSuppiew Aeq Builsixe Jo AsAIns e axeuapUN -24 jo swiwesSoud e Juswatdu)

. Sulpuny 335 pue s31s 9qeLNS Japisucd | Syied Jed A9y je Spieoq UOleULIOjUI
W3] wnipan 221AJ9S UOIBLLIOIU 1SLIN0 L 3U YHM UOIIoUNn{uoo U] | 1SUN01 jo uoisinoid ayl Japisuo)
3jes

8 $T WY OS|E 3as— | PUB 2UN23s ‘Pausis |am ‘Baideslle

wiaj Hoys

sjuawaaosdun Axessasau jo awwelBoid e asipuoud
pue sa1noJ ueLsapad (e jo maiasd e a)enapun

ale syied Jed uylm pue woly pue
0] sonoJ Uellsapad 3Jeyr ainsus

panuilucdy 8

(s1eah QT-5) wdL Suo
{sseah 5-7) wial wnipap

A3218115 Bubjied

[12uno) A Jaisedue



Page 127

£T0¢ Jequardag

"PY1 $21L1I0SSY V1Y

(sJe2A 5-) wua] wmpapy

{sieaA g o1 dn) uuzl LOUS | HUP uonay anaafqo Wy J8Y
‘BjeISAWIL .

1LasIp 2y}
Ul 3u119A2 JO S|9AS| pRsEaLIUl AADIYIE

ajendoasdde s1 uoisiaold | 01 uonesdse s,)I3UNOD Y] UUM 3ug SUOIDWISIP

W3] wnipap Mau aunsua 0] sdnoJud 1saLa1ul 151e09ds YUMm 3sIelT | Uy ‘AlUBWER pue 1s3ia1ul jo sade(d A3y 1o Bupupd fo Awpnb pup

153J431u] 4O $3dejd 18 pUR S3JIUSD | 1B pUB S3J1U32 UMO] O1 JUBIUBAUOD Auprgopoan 3y3 ancidwy of uy

# UMO} Ul AJesSsa0au auaym sagy|oe) Suped apAd | stuied mau 1e Bublied  3joAd Suppied 32A) 1010 pue 334D

guiodugQ

J0 ucisiaoad asedisul pue uotsiaoid BullsIxe Mandy

9indes pue ales 1UsIU3ALGC) 3pladid

sdnoup isijenads Jof Supjed | IT

W] wpay

uolsiaaad
Fupjaed uo uoiewsaul 21jgnd aaordwl 3|qissod
2Jaym pue spuswsduesie JulisiXa syl mainay

‘uoisiacid Supyied

uo  uonewuojur  olgnd  sacuduy

Uiaj Wnipan

AJBSSIOBU J| Ylew-a) pue syied Jed Jo SINCAR] M3IASY

syded Jed
areuidoldde Ajnuapul pue puewap ssasse 01 sAsans

uaaoid st puewsap
e 3Jaym syied Jed 3|geuns ul sJapjoy
,2Bpeg an|g,, io) aoeds Junjled ied

odsuna

fo sadly puv siesn pp Jo
Spasu sy} 13auw 0} 4335 0f Iy
pa|qesig syl

ULIZ] 0oYS IjeLSpUN ‘sdnoJd pajqesip YlM UOIFEINSUOD U] | 193415 JO |E10] 33 JO %0 3pIse 135 stnoJg 1siewads 10y Suplied | 0T
awayas
BuoBug 2Y3 ul papnpu $pJed Jed o A |IgeUNS 3L MaIASY Ale|n3au SaaUDs Yl MIIABI pue
guledug AllEnUUE M31ASI PUB JOHUO | STWIBd 10] puBWBp Byl J01UOW
syded Jed ulelSd uo
IsN IO} J[QE|IBAE 3Q 01 SIUIPISAL J0Y sy1od
BuloBug asn Jusiad Joj awRyds e ulejulely | sHwied [enuue 1oy uoisiacad e D3 UIDLI37 UO 35N J6f 31GojIoAD
sauoz 3q 0} s1U3PIsaL 10f spywiad
aimnj ayl Joj spusad | Supped syuspisal syl SulLISiURLpE jonuup 10§ uossiaotd 330 Ly
Supjed J0YSIA 1O SWBLIS JWIOU0Da pue alenbepe | JO0 1502 3yl 9dNpas 0}  pue sjuapisay
w3 Hoys Ue 24nsuU3 pue sassadoid Suasixe syl malney | sludwaBuelie Bupjied JONSIA MIIADY sdnoag 1sijenads o4 Supjied 6
slusLaAcHdWl fouiw
Ajjlenuuy pue dsueuatuleW pauue|d pue aAleal Juawaidw
Ajlenuuy S31511R15 10daJ JUapouUL pue wapRae 3a1ed04193u]
. syaed 1ea e u| 32035 Supjied
Alfenuuy SA9AINS JUWISSISSE UOIIPUOD ||y J2|nSa) jelspuUn Ui JUBWSA0IdW SNORUITLDD 2uNsuj panuiuod 8

(s4eaA 0T-5) WL Suo
[s1e@A g-7) LB wnipay

Adazens Sunpueq

[12uUno) A Jaiseaue




Page 128

€107 4oquadss

PY1 S9IBID0SSY V1

WL | NP3y

SIDpLO UONENSSY J144R11 8yl M3iAal 01 |I2UNOD
AIUNOD YT Y4uMm ddom “Alessadau Jo © pue peoy
aunepy uo Fupaed YFuIaAo JO 1USIXS Yl AsAIng

J|geuaiun saluodag
ansst ayl 4 suolpuisas  Buped
pasiA3l 1apiSuod pue peoy SUlEN
uo  Supped 1YSiUIBAC  JOHUOW

UL Wwnipa

Ap1enidosdde 33eudis uonoailp Malall soWoY
s|iqow 1oy pajeudisap ale syled Jeo oypads §

syted ted orendosdde
syl o1 afeudis uo|dBAIp sAoldwl

SIS B1qelns 1e sAeq Jadie| jo uoisiaold s}

sAeqg upied Jadie|
J0 uonnguUISIp B — uoisiaoad Supysed

sawioy 1010il Jof Bunuod
fo uoisinosd ayy 1apisuod 04 Wiy
Supjied WO 1010

EE.._.”,,E:%mS_ 1SpisuDa pue syuswaBuelie yJed Jed 5S3308 M3ADY | dlenbape si BByl 1eyl 3Jnsug sdnoJo 1sijerads Joj Supjied | £T
” . 1281P
ayy ur YU [xo3 Jo saupuaiuiow
PUD UOISINOD 311 UO S13apjoYay01s
o pup s3o143s Buisuadry
‘Haunoy AunoD HysoIuD]
uolsiacad Yum pannbai s YIom of (WY
21ENbIPE 2iNSUD 0] SIAP|OYX RIS JBYI0 PUE S8IIAISS SyUBJ [XE) DGENNS syuey el
SuioBup SUISUBINN [1PUNOD AJUNOD B41YSEIUBT YUM SI0M | JO UOIsiacad dlenbape ue ainsus Of sdnoJtn jsijepeds Jof 3uplieqd | 21
ssaooud Sutuueid ay3 ydnoiyl
88e1s ufisap ayr e pajesdau
uoisiacad | Bupped epAd ey spuswdo@asp
Bujo8up ajenbape ainsus 01 519210 BuluuE|d Yum Ssier] | mau slendoidde ausym eyl ainsug
Supysed ajAs J010W
UOIIEPOWIWIOIE | PUB 3PAI padlays jo uoisiaoid
WB ] wWnipay paialjays apinoid 03 siaUlo yumopop | ‘Siqissod alaym ‘adeJnoauj
puewap
Suisealoul 193w 01 SUORNEIO|
uoistaoad apAa | ajgenns e uoisiaoad Supped 3AY
wia] Joys 1010W puE 3pPAD 84n235 Jo uoisiaoid 3Y) maiaeY | JolOW pue 3PAY 9INIBS BSEAIOU| pshuiues | 1T

{s1e3A pE-5) Wizl Suoq

A3o1ens Supjed

jouno) Alg Jsasesue




Page 129

€T07 12qusrdas

PY1 S@1ED0SSY Vid

311U A2 9yl ul syutod

# dn yoid pue umop 195 a|qeiins dojaaap o1 siotesadQ 213429 A1 3UY) U sa1y|pey
W) wnipaw Sng PUE YOBOY pUE HOUNCD AIUNOD 3yl Yyum siopn | dn yaid pue UMOp 185 4IBOoD MaiAdY
21503 B3
pue aiiuad Al 3y} o3 U3yl pue
# g Wiy os|e 335 — | $ped ted ajepdoadde ayi 03 SI0USIA SI0ISIA
sjuswiaaotdwi Alessanau jo awwel3oud e asnuioud | sapind  aBeud)ls  uelisapad  pue Jo spaau ay1 Jof sapinodd 3onias
wia] Hoys puB s3IN0J UeI1sapad [jB JO M3IAD] B aeLISpUN | JejndiyaA yJed Jed ayl 1eyl aunsug Bupliod ayl 1oyl 24n5U3 O JWNY
SAGHSIA JO SPEAU BY) 193W 01 RINIDNIIS JJe1 BYL | SIOMSIA ABp BU) JO SPDaU DY) 5109|431 wsunoy
Ajlenuuy 1snfpe ‘@jeludosdde Ji ‘pue Aels Jo Yi8us| JoJUO | 2ININAS  JJUBl Byl 1Byl aJnsu3 Ja3seaue] | 9%
W3] WP # S3IN0J J3YI0 UG SMO} 313J811 JOHUOW aueq Joow 4o YInos
aueT J0C[N JO YINos syted JED Y] 01 Yliou Syl wiody | Syaed Jex Aels 1oys a2yl 01 sainold
WIIBE wWnipajy # 2IN0J 3U3 JO 3INSO|I 3Y] JO SUonedjdwl syl J9pISUo) | SSI20B 34l JOHUCW pUB M3IlAY WA} YIION J0PLIIOD
4 Bupued | salioey joun) ayi fo saouanbasuod
W] WHNIPDIA {oB02 10} UOIIEI0] JBWAdEdal ajqeuns e Ajiiuapl | Supued yoeod aaneusaye Ajuap) ay7 aBpuDw 0f 1y
syJed ted AJesodula) Jog SIS B|qRUNS pouad uoiPNAsuca ayy 3uunp uawdojanapay aJual A
WIa] wntpa Ajluspi 01 siaylo pue L.wao_m>mu U3 yumopopy | ssoeds Sunjied jo sso] ayl adeuein Jajsesuet | ST
{suswaduelre
BupyJed p31gInosse pue dUl| 9N PUE 3WaYds yJed Jed sSnuiod
NDJ 2yl JO UoIIEWIOJUI PA[1RIBP 34 UO spuadap sip | Joidsasaiw, ue  se oed  Jed
~ 310N) yJed Jes pep uolahy 8yl jo Jusuidonapal | Hew uondny syl jo 1uswdopaapal
W3] wntpain ay1 1oy sjesodoud dojansp 01 s1aylc yimooan | a|dissod ay) 81eB11saAuUl 0] aNUIUGD
papaye Ajasiaape
10U S4e 159M PUB YINOS Ayl wou
e uonaunl | Suypaesy s1snwwod 3yl dulnsua tE uonouni 9 10 Anjoof apu
e >um_umu— 3pu pue yJed 243 JO 9SN 3] JO IXQUE2 BY] | ISIUM 3jge|eAe saoeds Aeys 3ug pup yind mau ayl fo asn ayz Jo
Ajlenuuy ut uoisiacid Suppred Aels Buo| Jo JUaKE Byl MaIABY | JO Jaquinu 3yl Bupnpad 1apisuo) JUBWd0)aA3P Y] ISISSD OFf JUIy
} ssied ied Aels apiy pue yaed
Ajlenuuy syJed Jea Aeys Suo| ayi o afesn Asains ApeinSay | BUO| 341492 AND JO 3Sn Y1 JOLUON isysedue] | By
{saeah 01-g) wuz] Suol )
%HM, M m %mﬂw_ﬁ”ﬂ qur uordy aARaslqo wry 4y

feISDUH ]

A8a1e418 Bunjieg

HOUNG) BU Jajsedue




Page 130

€T0T Jequandas

P17 S91L0SSY V1Y

11512 POPUSILIOII]
BY1 199W 0} JAGUINU Y3} 35LBUDUI PUE PI|gesIp

JUBIUBALOD
pue @es 2Je  $3INOGJS  $SADIE
18yl aunsua pue syued ies ajgeuns
ul pajgesip oyl Joy sAeq Zunjed

Afuiuanuod pup

Ajafos yiod 01 pajqosip 2y Jof
uoisinosd atonbapo oW of Ty
pajqesia ay) soj 2unjied

wiia] Hoys 3l Joj saoeld Buppled Jo uoisiaoid Ul mataay jepads Jo uoisinosd BUl Isessay| iaisesuey | 6T
a1g Jaisesue] syl wouj Bulsue
Buo8up Qlg 2Y1 10 S2WO2IN0 3y} JONUO | SdAnenur  Supped  Aue  Japisuod
pa1gesip a4y Joj uoisiacud
Supyied 192115 UC [RUOINIPPE JaPISU0) ‘AJessadau yi | Buad Ald a1 o} jelaydisad s199018
# ‘pUE ${0.11U0D SSII%8 JUSBUNIES 210W JO UOIDNPOIIY | Yl Ul pI[gesip By} Joj duppied
wid) Jous a1 Sumojjo} pajgestp 2yt Ag Supjied Joliuopy | 198415 W0 JO uoisinoid Byl Mmalnay
nwiad suosiadsapeld suosiadsepes o1 sywdad ss3doe Jo
wia] Hoys # 10 BHIS1L2 1USSULIS 310U mau dojaAS(Q | INSSI Y3 10} BLIDID B UBLNBuans
Sspi0) uoneinday auoz uelysapad
# s1yedl palepdn syl Yum 0uUBpIOdIe Ul sainpadosd | Ayl woxy  ‘syuuad  yum  panss
uLia| Joys pue B2 1w Iad $5a308 3yl ancudwl pue maiaay | SOy} 1daoxa \mu‘,mu_r_g lle aAcway
T SUDRUIABUOD
oyges  Sumow pue  Supjed
# S19PJ0 MBU BU1 J0 JUSWANIGJUD | {eIUBWHBdXS BY} JO IUSWIDIOoJUS
Sui03up DANIAYD BIASUD 01 DUNOD AIUNOD SY1 YlIm oM | BAldaYe 2yl 01 3Inqlijuo)
sJapJo wusnbasqns 243u33 A2 ayy W
Aue pue aplio uonejndal auen; wiipad gnd ay} fo uawanosdui
# |EjUawIadxs Byl JO Spaau au] 199w ay1 Hoddns oy g
01 WalsAs uoneasiuiwpe  jwlad w|eay ajqnd
w3l Huoys waisAs uawaSeuew Hwiad 1snged e Juswajdw| | SAD8LS UE UjBJUIRLL pUB 2INPOAL| Jajsesuey | QT
. suoianpoxd Loisinaiar pun witf
# SB2IYBA MBI LIDISIASID] pue WYy Jof UonpI0f b SD 1IsIa Ayl fo
3ulo8uQ jo Buppied ayy Joy spuswaduerle eudoidde e | *$SMaID Uonnplod JUBWIAOIaAIP 347 1SISSD OF Wity
" SMIID UDISIAGID) PUE WK 104 3pINg | UOISIASI3}  PuB Wiy JO  5pasu WISIa 181seouey ul Suiupy
w2 uoys pajle1ap & dojeadp 01 (12une:) AUno) ayl yum sioa | Suppied ayy 1oddns ajqissod auaym @)seduet | /T
{s:e3A gT-g) uLa] Suo
(siedA g-2) WD) Wnp3aly .
(sse9A 7 03 dnj una) yoys | AU uondy aAR22[q0 iy $9d
3jeasawllt

A8a1ens Bupjied

|1ouno) Ay Jeseaue




Page 131

£T0? Joquiardas

0T -dv

"PY] S91B00SSY V1Y

uosiaosd asealsu ‘Alessanau | ‘pue
pa|gesip a4yl Jo} sadeds 10 puewap sy ysi|qelss

s3udPISad 404 Bupjred Ywaad
|euoinppe Jo uoisiaoid ay) JapIsuoa

# 0] 8J3Ua) Umo3 a4y} Supjed 193115 U0 Jo Asauns 3Besn | PUBR 341Ud) UMmOl oyl Ui Supjled 19U 210 SI3SN [jD fO SIUAWAANbAL
wiis] Moys e 3yelapuUn [PUo) AjuneDd syl yim diysiaulied u| | 19345 UC JO MBIARL B ELISPUN Bupiod 3y7 1043 240SUB 0L Y
shaasns Aels jo yidusj Buipnjaui syled Jed Bupjied 19305 Jo Aeis 1Joys Supjed J0) puewaq ajqelep
Alenuuy 34} J0 adesn a3y Jo siuawssasse Jejngal axelapun | Pue U0} JO XIW BY1 Maiaad Ajie|nday aquedasol | 7z
243032 A1 ay3 01| s31n0d Jofew
sioALp | Y1 uo 3Feudis Aljqejieae soeds
# 10} uoIleWLIoU| By el Bupinodd yo Alljigisea) | dued Jex psjewolne Jo uoijanposIul
Suio8up 9Y3 $$8S5E 01 |Iouno) AUnod ayt yum yiop | Jo Aljigisesy ayl  Japisuod
suoipelye syaed
# JO3ISIA PUB 243U AYD 2y} 03 syded Jed wiody | JED UIBW 3yl 0} PUB WOl S31n0d
W] WIPaN pue 01 aFeudis uelsapad syl jo M3IASE B xelSpun | velisapad jo adeuBis ayl malnay (s)uoipuiIsap papuaiur 11yl
1uawdojaaapal YHON 0} 32uay) pup xiod 103 3tqoINs
4Op1aIo] |BUED 343 pue SpuU pue yied p 03 a1nou itayy Afnuapr Ajisea
# . 211u32 A1 Y] 01Ul SBIN0J SS3D3B UL 3Y) | MaU 3Ll Jo Buwado ayi Buimol|oj UD3J SIONSIA 1041 240SU3 O] 1WIY
woJy-pausis Aprenbape ale syied Jea || 1ey) aunsua | syled Jed jofew ayy 01 afeusis afeudis yaed 1e)
WJSL Wmpaw 01 |HUNo) AIUnoD 3y pue J2dojsAap 3yl Yum IO | JBINDIYDA 1O MBIADL B axelsapun J21seDUE]
T Wiy OS|B 335 — 343U AUD 33 vl sulod ‘23U A3D
# dn yo1d pue umop 3as 9|gelns dojaaap o3 sioiesadQ | BYl ul siuled dn ¥oid pue uMop 185
WL wnipay sng pue Yaeod pue (1Iuncy AIUNOD 341 YIM ¥I0AL | Y2Be0D paleao| AjJUsiuaAuol aplaoid . $34I003 40
SIBALD uossInoad 31qoIUNS N O TRy
€T Wiy os|e 2as — Juped | 4oy sa1i|idey alenbape yum Buppied duppied yieod
WI3f unipain 47E02 1O} UDI1ED0} JuaWade|dal 3jqelns e Ajnuap| | YoBOI 104 UOLIEDIO] 3jqelins e Ajljuap] lajseauet 0T
97 Wy 05]e 935 — AJBSS3IaU .
# i ‘saoeds |BUCELIPPE JO UoISiAcId 9L 1SPISU0D pue pajqesip ay3 404 sasceds Bupjed
w3 uoys paigesip ayi Joy saoe|d Supyted 193435 UC JOHUOW | JO UOISIAOIH 19115 U0 3] MIAaY
paiqesip
WL WNIpay ay1 Ag Sunpued o) Suiaeyo uo Adjjod syl mainay | Adijod BuiBieyo 19211S J40 Syl MaiDY panupuod | 6T
{sseah p1-g) wuz) Buoy
(SaedA §-2) Wi wnpan
{s.e94 7 01 dn) wuay woys | YN uoy aapaalqo wiv J9d
easawiny
Adarens 3upjied [1puUno) AyY Ja1seaue




Page 132

£T07 49quiaidas

T1-d¥

‘P11 S91EOSSY V1Y

Wiia] Wnipaj

‘uonels Yojuiey
1e sanyoey Buppied ay) aAosdun 1ayuing pue 04d
01 3J0Mm ‘sioleiado uonels ayr Yim uoljounfued uj

. uones Aemyied
ay1 1e Ayoey Bupped syl uleulen

EYIUES,
umog ayz w ssrypof Bupind
Bunisixa ayz 129104d 04wy

yuojuiey | £Z

SUOIDRINE

SUCIIDEIIE ADY PUE 3JJU3D UMO] U]

# JO1ISIA PUB 3J3US2 UMO] 341 0] Syted Jed wioly | Wouf pue 0] syJed Jed uew 3y} woly
W3t wntpaiy pue 01 28eudis ueisapad ayl Jo malnal e euspun | a8eudls sInoJ uepisapad mataay
aoe|d sysod 402 uipw ay} 01 aboulis
9J3UBD UMO] SY] O1UI S3IN0J §58978 UleWw 3y} | Sayel luawdop@aapas uaym aiepdn jouonaaip anosdiuy 64 iy
# wolj pauds Aenbape aJe syzed Jed jje 1eyy ainsua | pue syied Jed urew ay) oy adeudss adeudis yJed 12
U] Wnipaw 03 [PURO) AJUNe) 343 pue s13dojBA3P YUM QoM | [BUCIDBNP JO MBlrsd & 3)elapun aqwedston | 92
: sjutod
# dn oid pue umop 185 3|geuns dojaasp 03 siojeladp siuloed dn yoid pue jyo dodp Buniod
WwJs) winipsiN sng pue Yoro) PUE [12UN0) AlUnod syl yim ddoas | 3jdenns Jo uolsiaod By mIINBY Yoo sof uoisinoid ajpnbapo
saijoey AlessaosaU JI ucisiaoid S1 343y 10Y] F4NSU3 Of Wy
[eUOIPPE O} SUOIIEIO] JAPISUOD ‘Alessadau )1 | [EUORIpPE  JBPISUO3 pue  S3njoe} Bupjied yoeod
Wia] tunipaw ‘pue Suppred yoeos Sunsixa ayl jo adesn syl Asains | Bulsixa 8yl Jo asn 2yl JOLUOA SQUWIEIAON | SZ
Aessanau EIIIER ,
# J ‘saoeds jeuoiMppe JO LOISIACI BY] J8PISUCD pue | UMY BUY1 W pajqesip auy) Jo} Supaed p31qosip ayy Jof a30ds
wJa] 1oys pajqesip 8yl Joy seoepd ulied 199415 UO JONUOW | 18815 UC O uoisinold 3yl maiasy Buppiod Jof apou st uoisinoid
BLI911L12 PapUsWIWICIal sasnf os puewap 31onbapop 10y1 Unsuz 04 Uy
3y 198 0] JBGWINU Y] 3SE3IUI PUE pajgesip | Y1 4 snipe pue uolsiaoid 199435 pajqesiq 3y 10} Supjied
una| Joys ay1 Jog saoejd Buppled Jo uoisiaoid 3yl MaIASY | HO dUl JO UOIINGLISID 3yl JoluOW JUBIBION | b2
syiod 102 Buisixa
[2a2] 91endoidde ue 031 32038 sued Juswdo@aspaJ 01Ul PJ0IIE) Jfo 1wawdojanapat Aup 1310
Supied sy uleluwiew oy adeld Uy ale syuawsBuelje | 9B spasu subjed 1eyl aunsus o) pup Butinp bupyiod fo uoisinoad
aiendoidde ainsua pue syuswdojanap pageuew Apjendoadde sie 21onbapd WOILDW O IRy
. pasodoud Jo s108)9 jenualod syl JONUOIA syded Jed Suisixo jo juawdoisaapal Juawidoianapay
Bui08uQ Aue Jo 51099 Syl 1Byl aunsus o aquelslop | £Z
(s4e3A pT-5) W) FuoT
{s1e3A g-7) Wiay Wnipay
qun uondy anpeiqo wiy oy

{sie2A 7 01dn) wuag poys
ajedsawl]

ASe1ea1s Suiyled

[1punod AN »Smmucﬂ




Page 133

£T07 Joquialdasg

Z1-dv

"PY7 $91RI20SSY VLY

agnd AQ ssadoe Jo 99439p 1so1e043
ay3 Bulaeiyoe uo siseydwa syl yum
sspow |8 Ag siuswdopeasp mau

uonenodau | 01 ANgIssadde 21enbape 3Insus 0}
BuoBuQ 3y 12ads 211s AQ suonnqiiuod Jadojaasp a8einodsug | SUORNGLIUOD sadojaAap sFeinoduly
ada a4a 341
Yl ur o 3195 Bupied |euonessdo Ui 110 135 SPJDPUDIS PajInIap 3yl
pue uoisirnosd Suppied Joj B1a8313 ay) YHM 2UDHdW0D 2insua 04 Wiy
2910 paasde syl | Fusn Wuswdopaap |eguaplsal-LouU syuawdojanag
BuioBup Yllm oUBpIOIDE W spiepuels Bupped 1uswajdw| | 10j  Spiepuels  wnuwixewr asodu) map uo spaepuels Juppied | 6Z
1snug
i13AY pue |eue) 243 jo diysisumo
a1eaud Ul SI YoM Yo0(Q UOSSE|D 1k
SIS 9y} 40§ saniqissod aiojdxa | unjaed Joj a|ge|teae sjusLusA0ldwl
W] WMpPay pUE SISUMO 3}IS aUF YHM SUOISSNISIP Inuiue) | [enualod a 21e8n59nu|
SUC{1ED0| WR|qoId P3IIUDPI S913[1D.) [RUOHIPPE 4O UOiSIACd
wiap Wmpan 1e Bupyued o3 sjuawaacsdw uswapdw pue siedaid | 8yl Japisucy aeudosdde  slaym SUOII20.1110
‘ puewap Isunoy jound Jondod ajow 3yl 10
# pasinbas suoipog asiond | Buped Bunsxe jo edw) Alages uorsinaid Bupiiod mainas o4 g
wia] uoys pue suolaeiyle 1sinoy Jejndod 1e Supied AsAInNg | PEOI PuB [BIUDLILOJIAUD BY) SSISSY seasy |eJny | 0€
wod ayy
30 uoisuedxa [BIBWWG Y} Haiyul woysAay 1o pod ayl
paJinbas ucloe Aue JopIsuo2 pue | 1ou op swajgosd Supped 1ey) ainsus Jo uoisupdxa ay} 151550 0f 1wy
wg) guo spuedxa 1od ay3 se uonenys Supjied syl JoNucky | 01 saiioyine Lod syl 5._3 4O weysAaH | 8z
sasue Ayunuoddo
2upjaed Jed [euciiippe Joj saiunyoddo | Juswdoeasp a|geuns e JI uoisiacid
Buic8up JopIsuod pue suoiesydde Buluuejd sonuow | Suned [euolppe 12pIsuod
. suollsed Suped
paynbai ale suispio uonenday | sUl  puawe o1 |punoly  Aluno)
# Ju4el] 9yl 01 sa8ueyd Aue §1 J3PISUCD PUB 182415 | AUl Ylm jJom ‘Ajessadau I ‘pue
ulla] wnipay 19dep Ul sazeds Suppied ayl o adesn ay) Aenung | 193415 1ddelN Ul dupled JoNUO psnujue) | £Z
{s4e9A O1-G) wWaa] Fuon
mmwh Nm m%wﬂ ﬁwﬂ. qun uoRdy aa13(q0 Wiy 49y

3jesawi)

A3a1ea1s Bupjueqd

[1aung) Aud Jeisedue




£10z loquiaidas . €1 -dv . P17 $91BID0S5Y V1Y

Page 134

_ | | . SupAd pue Supyiem ‘110dsuely |

ASa1eays Supjied . [1I2unod Al Jajseaue]




I?age 135



Agenda ltem 9 Page 136

CABINET

Delivering New Council Housing in the District
5 November 2013

Report of Chief Officer (Health and Housing)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To set out the options for increasing the availability of council housing within the district and
to seek approval to procure a preferred partner to deliver a new build housing programme,
and to approve the establishment of an acquisition programme.

Non-Key Decision El Referral from Cabinet D
Member

Date of notice of forthcoming key decision 7 October 2013
This report is public.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR LEYTHAM

(1) That a programme of new build council housing is established as set out in
the report.
(2) That the council works with the Lancashire Regeneration Property

Partnership to develop a scheme to deliver a programme of new build
council housing as set out in the report and that detailed proposals be
brought back to Cabinet for approval prior to entering into any contractual
commitment.

(3) That a scheme for acquiring ex-council housing properties is also
established as set out in the report, and that detailed proposals are brought
back to Cabinet for approval.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 At the February meeting Cabinet approved in principle to invest in new one-
bedroom accommodation within the district using funding from the Business
Support Reserve, and that detailed proposals be brought back to Cabinet
following input from the Housing Regeneration Cabinet Liaison Group. It was
proposed that officers report back to the Housing Regeneration Cabinet
Liaison Group with a range of options for potential schemes in the district,
providing potential costs, locations and timescales and addressing any other
relevant issues.

1.2 The original report to Cabinet highlighted that there were numerous issues to
be addressed before embarking on any investment:



1.3

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 137

= How many units are needed?

= Where would they be built, on existing council estates or elsewhere?

= Ensuring suitable expertise to manage a new build programme.

= Planning issues and considerations.

= Would conversion of existing empty properties be more or less cost
effective and viable than new build?

= s it affordable, given decisions on rent policy?

=  What are the likely timescales?

The list was by no means exhaustive but demonstrates the considerations to
be addressed in developing detailed proposals for decision, and
implementation. Officers have been investigating these issues and looking at
how a programme could be delivered.

Background

Housing need and supply - The council's “Meeting Housing Needs
Supplementary Planning Document” formally adopted in February 2013 sets
out the district housing requirements and this has been taken into in
developing proposals.

The council’'s own housing register also confirms the need for additional
council housing particularly 1 bedroom accommodation; as is shown in the
table below:

Housing waiting list by bed need

Number on Housing waiting list by need Total all bands
Bed
Requirement Number on
Band A | BandB | BandC | BandD | Band E e

waiting list
One bed 30 103 465 645 399 1642
Two bed 14 46 288 285 126 759
Three bed 4 12 126 77 59 278
Four bed 3 3 12 24 6 48
Five bed 0 2 3 1 6 12
Six bed 1 0 1
2740

Analysis has also been undertaken of the bedroom needs of council housing
tenants who have been subjected to reductions in their housing benefit
entitlement due to having bedrooms surplus to the requirement set down in
the housing benefit regulations.

Size Criteria Surplus - one extra bedroom

Number of tenants Bedroom Requirement
199 1
179 2
10 3




Page 138

1
1
Total 387

(6200

Size Criteria Surplus - two (or more) extra bedrooms

Number of tenants Bedroom Requirement
89 1
7 2
Total 96

24 This further highlights the need for smaller bedroom accommodation.

2.5 The council has 3784 council housing properties. The number of properties
coming available for relet fluctuates each year.

2.6 In 2012/2013 the council relet just over 400 council housing properties of
which 190 were 1 bedroom relets. The following table give an indication of the
overall annual supply of council housing.

Council housing lettings 2012/2013

Lets by property | - bedsit/ 1 bed 2bed | 3bed | 4bed | 5bed | Total
type studio

Bedsit/studio 15 6 0 0 0 0 20
Bungalow 0 79 10 0 0 0 89

Flat 0 94 89 0 0 0 184

House 0 11 25 62 7 0 105
Maisonette 0 0 6 0 0 0 6

ALL 15 190 130 62 7 0 404

2.7 The evidence of demand and supply supports the original Cabinet view that
the council should invest in new one-bedroom accommodation within the
district.

2.8 Meeting housing need — The council can deliver homes directly, and has
options to deliver its ambition to increasing the availability of council housing
in the district including new build housing programme and acquisition. It is
proposed that a new build housing programme is established alongside a
scheme to acquire ex-council housing properties.

29 New build housing programme — Embarking on a new build council housing
programme will be a new venture for the council. The last time any council
housing was built within the district was in 1994/1995 when two bungalows
were built at Heysham.



2.10

2.11

212

2.13

214

2.15

2.16

217

Page 139

It is proposed any new build council housing will be designed to meet the
code for sustainable homes Level 4, meaning a lower carbon footprint, and
reduced energy bill for tenants. All properties should also meet the Homes
and Communities Agency’s (HCA) quality standards for internal size.
Consideration will also be given to building to meet “lifetime home standards”.

It is also proposed that individual developments comprise no more that 16 to
20 homes on any one site. Part of the brief for flats will include a requirement
for each flat having direct access to the “street’; not through internal
communal corridors, and that the overall design minimises any service
charges.

The aim is to produce well designed and attractive homes where tenants can
afford to live. A detailed design brief would be drawn up for each site to
achieve this.

Establishing a “development team” - The delivery of a new house building
programme has to be properly resourced, and will require a “development
team”. There are a number of key activities that require resourcing:
= Site finding.
= Feasibility appraisal of sites
= Project management — from inception to completion e.g. full project
management service inclusive of programme management, contract
administration services, supply chain management, customer relations
and contract management
= Cost management services — full cost management ranging from initial
cost planning, cost monitoring and management through the design
phase, adherence to budgets and post contract cost control
= Design services — conceptual designs, all survey work (topographical,
ecological etc), detail design, provision of construction information for
build purposes
= Delivery of projects — construction

The council does not currently have the internal organisational experience to
comprehensively and directly deliver a new build housing programme.
Officers have explored a number of options to establish a “development team”
including the use of national design and construction companies, and existing
partnerships.

The council is already a party to the Lancashire Regeneration Property
Partnership (LRPP), a framework agreement that has been subject to the
OJEU procurement rules, which can be directly accessed to provide the
services and delivery required.

This strategic partnering agreement came into existence in December 2012
with Carillion being appointed as the successful partner for the north of the
County; including this district. Carillion are a multi-national company and have
a strong Northwest/Lancashire presence.

The anticipated benefits of the LRPP are that it would bring both capability
and capacity in key area in terms of resources to deliver the proposed



2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

Page 140

programme. The partnership would provide the vehicle to deliver the
programme without the need to undertake a separate procurement process.
Inn addition the partnership should bring new ways of working, thinking and
models of delivery.

The LRPP would also work with the council to develop the strategy for
development; it would act as a single point of contact for the procurement and
delivery of the programme, and provide the overall management of the
programme.

There are other similar frameworks the council could apply to be a party to,
for example, Scape, which is a partnership established in the East Midlands.
The council could also look to procure services from an individual housing
association or housing association consortium that have a development team.

The officers preferred route, subject to proper due diligence enquiries, would
be to utilise the LRPP. Due diligence enquires would include taking a detailed
look at each of the elements of the services being offered clarifying the scope,
professional liabilities, financial liabilities, and charges. Officers have had
initial discussions with LRPP, and it would appear that this route may present
a viable way forward. Following a meeting with the Lancashire County
Council Head of Estates and the Partnership Director, the LRPP has come
forward with initial proposals for the council to consider. These are outline
proposals and do not indentify the fee rates, and as mentioned previously, full
due diligence checks need to be undertaken before entering into any
agreement.

The advantage of utilising the LRPP  framework is that the overall
procurement will be very much simplified, and the council will gain full access
to the capacity and comprehensive skills set it needs to deliver a new build
programme.

Search for sites — A prerequisite on a new build housing programme is that
the council needs to identify sites. Ideally these would come from the
council’s existing land ownership. It cannot be assumed that the council has
sites ready for development, and detailed negotiations will be required to
bring sites forward.

A number of small potential sites have been identified and these are being
looked at by the Development Management Team within the Regeneration
and Planning Service. Initial feedback has identified issues with each site that
would need to be overcome if they were to be developed as housing sites.

Site finding, navigating planning considerations, and potentially negotiating
site acquisition will need to be undertaken and resourced as part of the
establishment of a “development team”.

The council may also have to consider purchasing sites outside its existing
land ownership to develop a land bank to deliver its new build council housing
programme. The search for sites has been extended to other public bodies
including the County and NHS. This approach is supported by the



2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

2.33

Page 141

Government however each body will have their own financial constraints and
it stil may prove difficult to identify and make available this land.
Consideration is also being given whether there is any opportunity within
existing regeneration programmes such as Luneside East. Again discussions
and negotiations will need to take place on any sites identified through this
process.

Acquisition of ex-council housing — It is proposed that the council, in
addition to establishing a new build council housing programme, also
establishes an acquisition programme for ex-council housing. The council has
the power re-acquire former council housing previously sold under the Right
to Buy (RTB). At any one time there are ex-council homes being sold on the
open market. It is proposed that the council establishes a scheme to
purchase selected properties and to bring them back into its housing stock in
line with the council's current ambition to increase the supply of one bedroom
accommodation, or indeed to support other council housing demands or
future ambitions.

The council can also exercise its Right of First Refusal for property that was
sold under the RTB to acquire additional stock. Any RTB owner who
purchased after the 10 August 2005 and wishes to sell within 10 years of their
RTB purchase must offer to their former landlord, the right of first refusal on
purchasing the property.

It is proposed that a scheme is brought forward for approval by Cabinet.

Section 106 affordable housing requirements - A further area being
explored is whether or not the council could look to acquire/negotiate within
existing/future private sector developments within the S106 affordable
housing provisions to provide more affordable homes for rent itself rather than
through another registered provider; affordable housing includes social
rented. This will require more detailed exploration, and consideration before
making any proposals.

Impact of Right to Buy — Any homes built by the council under current
legislation would be subject to the Right to Buy (RTB).

However, any discount entitlement relating to a sale under the RTB would be
reduced by a special rule called the cost floor. Under the cost floor, the
discount a tenant receives must not reduce the price the tenant pays below
what has been spent on building, buying, repairing or maintaining it.

Specifically, if the cost of works carried out over the 10 year period prior to the
sale is greater than the market value of the tenant's home, the tenant will not
receive any discount. This period is 15 years if the tenant's home was built or
acquired by the landlord after 2 April 2012.

The Government in 2012 as part of its revised policy on RTB discounts also
made some provision for the retention of receipts to fund replacement stock
on a “one-for-one” basis.



2.34

2.35

2.36

2.37

2.38

2.39

Page 142

It is current Government policy that any new council homes built since July
2008 are eligible for exclusion from the provisions in the pooling regulations
relating to Right to Buy sales, this includes any new homes built or acquired
using receipts covered by these agreements. This means that, if replacement
homes were subsequently sold under the Right to Buy, the authority would be
able to retain the whole receipt (provided it is spent on affordable housing,
regeneration or paying down housing debt).

The rules are complex on how the receipts should be spent but key elements
are:

= Net receipts from Right to Buy sales (after allowable costs, repayment
of housing debt and currently forecast receipts for councils and central
government) can be used to replace the additional homes sold as a
result of the higher discount levels. The amount available will depend
on the level of sales during the year.

= Councils have three years to spend the right to buy receipts on new
homes, after this period unspent receipts would need to be repaid to
the government with interest.

= The right to buy funding can only cover a maximum of 30% of the cost
of building a new home, in line with the grant offered through the
Affordable Homes Programme.

= The remaining 70% is to be found from local authorities’ own
resources, borrowing or other monies. Land cannot be included as
part of the 70% contribution.

= The Council must demonstrate that it has spent the additional amount
on affordable housing.

= The money can be transferred to another provider — e.g. a housing
association - as long as they bring 70% to the table.

= Councils also have the power to buyback former council properties
using the net capital receipts from RTB sales. The Council is allowed
to fund up to 50% of the cost of re-purchasing a former council home,
up to a maximum of 6.5% of the net capital receipts (i.e. the receipts
available for replacement homes).

Financing the programme — The costs on the programme both new build
and acquisition will be financed from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
and would be included in a revised capital programme.

The opportunities to utilise capital receipts from RTB sales to fund a new
build council housing programme is limited, however within the council’s HRA
a Business Support Reserve was established in 2013/2014 to provide the
financial support to additional business plan commitments and planned
investment opportunities; including the building of new council housing.

There is currently £8.527M in the HRA Business Support Reserve, with the
following additional annual budgeted contributions assumed as part of the
2013/14 budget process - £550K in 2013/14, £1,148.4K in 2014/15 and
£1,533.1K'in 2015/16 giving a total of £11,758.5M by 31st March 2016.

The use of this reserve has to be approved by Cabinet, and contributions to
the reserve within the HRA are approved annually as part of the budget
process.



2.40

Page 143

At this stage it is proposed that an initial 3 year programme is developed

spending an estimated £2 million per year starting from 2014/2015. It is worth
noting here that this is indicative only and that the actual spend profile and
timing of the programme will be informed by the detailed proposals developed
in conjunction with LRPP.

3.0 Details of Consultation

3.1 The Housing Regeneration Cabinet Liaison Group met on the 19 September
2013 to look at the proposals for the building of new council housing and the
possible acquisition of ex-council housing. The meeting was attended by
councillors and a tenant representative, and the proposals were welcomed.

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: The
council establishes a
new build council
housing programme
utilising a framework
agreement to
increase the council
housing stock in the
district

Option 2: The
council establishes a
new build council
housing programme
utilising a framework
agreement together
with a scheme to
acquire ex-council
housing stock to
increase the council
housing stock in the
district

Option 3: The
council establishes
a new build council
housing programme
utilising an
alternative
procurement route
together with a
scheme to acquire
ex-council housing
stock to increase the
council housing
stock in the district

Advantages

Addresses the
specific housing
needs identified with
in the district
Delivers new homes
at affordable rents
(social rent)
Community
leadership acting as
an exemplar in
building socially,
environmentally, and
economically
sustainable homes
Provide local
employment
opportunities

Will contribute to the
economic growth of
the district

Will generate further
rental income for
future housing
investment

Addresses the
specific housing
needs identified with
in the district
Delivers new homes
at affordable rents
(social rent)
Community
leadership acting as
an exemplar in
building socially,
environmentally, and
economically
sustainable homes
Provide local
employment
opportunities

Will contribute to the
economic growth of
the district

Will generate further
rental income for
future housing
investment
Maximises the

Addresses the
specific housing
needs identified with
in the district
Delivers new homes
at affordable rents
(social rent)
Community
leadership acting as
an exemplar in
building socially,
environmentally,
and economically
sustainable homes
Provide local
employment
opportunities

Will contribute to the
economic growth of
the district

Will generate further
rental income for
future housing
investment




Page 144

opportunities and be
easier to manage

Disadvantages

Increases future
revenue costs
associated with
property
management,
however will be
partly mitigated by
the rental policy
adopted for the new
builds

Increases future
revenue costs
associated with
property
management,
however will be
partly mitigated by
the rental policy
adopted for the new
builds

Ex-council
properties may
require additional
capital investment to
meet the ‘Lancaster
Decent Homes
Standard’, however
will be partly
mitigated by being
cheaper than the
cost of new build

The council would
need to fully assess
any other framework
that it is currently
not a party to and
also apply to access
the framework.
There would be
increased resource
requirements in
terms of expertise,
time and money. To
secure provision of
new homes through
a traditional
procurement route
the council would
need to undertake
the full OJEU
process itself which
would result in
increase resource
requirements in
terms of expertise,
time and money.

Unable to efficiently

Unable to efficiently

Unable to efficiently

Risks deliver the deliver the deliver the
programme due to programme due to programme due to
organisational organisational organisational
capacity, however capacity, however capacity
can be partly can be partly
mitigated by mitigated by
entering into a entering into a
service and delivery | service and delivery
agreement with agreement with
LRPP LRPP

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 The officers preferred option is option 2 as it maximises the opportunities to
increase the council housing stock in the district, and addresses the in-
principle decision taken by Cabinet in February to invest in new one-bedroom
accommodation within the district using funding from the Business Support

Reserve.

6.0

Conclusion

6.1 The proposals set out in the report form a sound basis for the council to
deliver much needed new affordable council homes in the district and also
provide added value in meeting the wider social, environmental and economic
objectives of the council.




Page 145

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

This report supports the council’s core purpose, values and vision and will contribute to the
realisation of the council’s stated four priorities of: economic growth, health and wellbeing,
clean, green & safer places, and community leadership.

Housing Strategy and Action Plan 2012 — 2017 seeks to maximise opportunities to increase
the existing portfolio of affordable housing in Lancaster district.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

None directly arising out of this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal Services have been consulted and have no observations to make on the proposals
outlined in this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report there is currently £8.527M available in the HRA Business Support
Reserve, which in principle can be allocated to cover the cost of creating new 1 bed
accommodation as well as acquisition of ex-council housing stock within the district. This is
currently budgeted to increase to a total of £11,758M by 31% March 2016. There is also the

potential to utilise Right to Buy capital receipts, although more investigation is required to
fully understand the specific implications for Lancaster.

It should be noted however, that for both option 1 and the officer preferred option 2, that prior
to entering into any contractual commitment with LRPP or acquiring ex-council properties,
that there is a need for HRA officers in conjunction with Resources (Financial Services) to
review the current HRA 30-year Business Plan and Rent Policy regarding ongoing
affordability associated with the increased housing stock, and that detailed proposals for new
build (including identified sites, numbers of properties to be accommodated within each site,
and accommodation typologies) and identification of ex-council properties deemed
appropriate be brought back to Cabinet for approval.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

None directly arising out of this report.
Information Services:

None directly arising out of this report.
Property:

As detailed proposals are brought forward Property Group will need to be engaged and
consulted.

Open Spaces:

None directly arising out of this report.




Page 146

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Chris Hanna
Telephone: 01524 582516

E-mail: channa@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: C117

None




Page 147 Agenda ltem 10

CABINET

SERVICE REVIEW- Management of Parks / Open
Space/ Public Realm

5 November 2013

Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update Cabinet on the progress of a service review and seek approval to continue with
implementation of the review.

I:I Non-Key Decision - Officer Referral
Date of notice of forthcoming key decision

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR SMITH

(1) That Cabinet approves in principle for further development by the Chief
Officer (Environment) the proposals outlined in the report.

(2) That where required, further reports on the implementation of specific parts
of the proposals are brought back to Cabinet or Personnel Committee as
appropriate for approval.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 A review has been taking place to establish how the Council can best
manage parks, open space and the public realm.

1.2 The review has taken place within the context of —

e The Council’s corporate plan / priorities
e The Council’s budget position

1.3 The aim of the review has been to bring forward options that-

e Generate ongoing savings

e Represent a more efficient and effective approach to management of parks
and open space

o Allow for citizens to get more involved in the development of parks and open
space

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1 The main proposal from the reviews is to merge the management of relevant



2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

3.0
3.1

4.0

4.1
4.2

5.0
5.1

Page 148

functional Health and Wellbeing service with related functions in
Environmental Services to ensure a consistent approach to service delivery
and to generate efficiencies by reviewing how the services operate once
transferred. The functional areas affected include-

Letting of playing fields / bowling greens to sports teams

Letting of concessions on parks / open space

Parks Patrol

Beach Patrol

Happy Mount Park splash park / concessions

Promenade management / concessions

Williamson Park (including café, butterfly house, car park, Memorial etc)
Park / open space- planning / development / design.

Cemeteries — grounds maintenance (not gravedigging)

The intention is that the delivery of the functions will be merged within the
wider range of services that Environmental Services already deliver. Through
the removal of duplication, focus on priority areas and economies of scale it is
expected this approach will provide real and significant cashable savings.

As an example functions like parks patrol and the whole of maintenance of
Williamson Park would be delivered from within the grounds maintenance /
cleansing function. This will result in a net overall ongoing saving.

It is also the intention to bring forward specific proposals with regard to the
café and butterfly house in Williamson Park as the current model of delivery is
not sustainable.

To facilitate this merger it is necessary to restructure the existing
management / supervisory arrangements across Environmental Services.
Initial work indicates this will result in cashable savings. It will also clearly
result in a loss of officer capacity and expertise and, of course, there are risks
involved in reducing capacity and expertise. However it is expected that this
can happen without a significant decrease in levels of frontline service
delivery in priority areas.

Once this stage of the review has been completed consideration will also be
given to how best deliver the remaining engineering functions the Council
provides.

Details of Consultation

Appropriate consultation will take place as detailed proposals are developed.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1- to approve the approach outlined above
Option 2- to not approve the approach outlined above

Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

The officer preferred option is option 1 for the reasons outlined.



Page 149

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The report sets out proposals that will generate savings to assist the Council’s
budgetary position and at the same time allow the Council to deliver it’s
Corporate Plan and priorities.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

.y s

Clean, green and safe places are one the priorities of the Council’'s Corporate Plan

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

The impacts of the proposals when developed further will be fully assessed.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a direct result of this report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications directly arising from this report. The preferred option will
potentially result in numerous operational and financial changes so therefore any
recommendations arising will be reported to Cabinet and budgets updated as appropriate

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

The implementation of the proposals will have significant implications for affected staff

Information Services:
NA

Property:

NA

Open Spaces:

As set out in the report

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Davies
Telephone: 01524 582401

none . )
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk




Agenda Iltem 11 Page 150

CABINET

OUTLINE PROPOSALS FOR SERVICE REVIEW:
SALT AYRE SPORTS CENTRE/LEISURE SERVICES
5 November 2013

Report of Chief Officer (Health and Housing)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To inform Cabinet of the scope of detailed review work needed to present the Council with
costed savings options.

I:I Non-Key Decision |:I Officer Referral IZI
Date of notice of forthcoming key decision

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR RON SANDS

(1) That Cabinet notes that the areas to be reviewed in the Salt Ayre Sports
Centre/ Leisure services review are :

o All functions delivered at Salt Ayre Sports Centre
e Sports Development work /Community outreach physical activity.
e The provision of community pools.

(2) That Cabinet approves in principle for further development by the Chief
Officer (Health and Housing) the proposals outlined in the report..

(3) That where required, further reports on the implementation of specific parts of
the proposals are brought back to Cabinet or Personnel Committee as
appropriate for approval.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 A review of staffing levels, opening hours, potential income generation and
operational improvements at Salt Ayre Sports Centre has been ongoing for a
number of months and some efficiencies have already been realised.

1.2 A recurring efficiency saving of approximately £80K was made in this financial
year by altering the opening hours and alerting shift patterns allowing a
consequential reduction in staffing.

1.3 The review is investigating both the current provision and how savings can be



2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 151

made and also the longer term future of the sports centre and pools. The
future of the council’s role in sport and leisure provision should be seen in the
context of the council maintaining a strong commitment to health and well
being through physical activity but recognising that the council does not have
to directly provide sports/leisure facilities to support this commitment. The
council currently has a sports development team, some of whom are
externally funded, that deliver and facilitate physical activity in the community
often making use of our parks and open spaces and usually targeting our
most vulnerable residents.

Proposal Details

A review of how best to consider service reductions and /or alternative service
delivery models across the areas highlighted above is taking place. This
review takes place within the context of:

. The Council’s corporate plan / priorities
. The Council’s budget position

The review will take account of the views of relevant staff, trade unions and
Elected Members and bring forward options that will-

e Generate ongoing savings reducing the level of subsidy required.

e Present options for efficiency savings and service reductions that can
implemented irrespective of how the council decides to deliver leisure
services in the longer term.

e Present options for alternative delivery models for the future and the
process required to achieve this.

o Present options that include the Council not continuing to directly provide
the sports centre and other community facilities.

The review therefore has two elements :-
1. Short term proposals/service reductions/ income generation such as

¢ Merging the sports development function with the Salt Ayre sports
centre function to create a joined up sports and physical
activity/health offer and a leaner management structure.

Review staffing and rota patterns

Options for continuation of the café operation.

Investigating business case for online bookings.

Improving marketing /advertising to generate more income.

Overhaul of the passport to leisure scheme

2. Longer term proposals

e Options appraisal for future management of Salt Ayre e.g leisure
trusts, in house service, partnership with private developer, charitable
body or social enterprise.

e Learning from the recent procurement experience at South Lakeland
DC

e Option appraisal for outright sale to private sector or closure.



24

3.0
3.1

Page 152

¢ As may be appropriate to the options above, soft market testing to
see what potential there is for investment and development to meet
demands of changing markets e.g rope course, BMX track etc.

e Options appraisal for continuation or otherwise of the management
and delivery of the community pools.

Clearly progressing some of the short term proposals does depend on
decisions the council takes as to the longer term future of Salt Ayre and
therefore those particular issues will be considered in that context.

Details of Consultation

No formal consultation has taken place at this stage although some staff at
Salt Ayre and in the sports development team have been involved in tasks to
look at efficiencies and improvements. Full consultation will be required with
staff, trade unions, and other bodies with a direct interest in the discretionary
services currently provided by the Council. Where appropriate, local providers

will be consulted as part of the market testing exercise.

4.0

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: To
undertake no review
of services

Option 2: To find
efficiency savings
only

Option 3: To
undertake a review
which could highlight
the need for service
reduction or an
alternative service
delivery model

Advantages

None. The Council’'s
budget position is
real and there is no
alternative but to
undertake reviews.

None. The extent of
the forthcoming
budget reduction
cannot be mitigated
by simply making
efficiency savings.

This gives an
opportunity to
prepare for the
future well in
advance and to
manage the removal
of services or
transfer to another
service provider by a
planned approach.

Disadvantages

By not commencing
any reviews now the
Council would have
to take urgent
corrective action
later as a budget
crisis developed.

Such a limited
review would
address only the
2014/15 challenge
and give insufficient
time to prepare for
the larger challenge
the following year.

The community will
have to prepare
realistically for a
reduction in services
or an alternative
provider if the
Council can no
longer directly
provide.

Risks

The Council might
risk being put under
special measures if
it didn’t address its
budget position.

The Council might
risk being put under
special measures if
it didn’t address its
budget position.

Service reductions
are likely to be
unpopular with
citizens. Moving to
an alternative
service provider for
leisure services will




Page 153

involve a
procurement
process which will
take a considerable
amount of officer
time and upfront
costs for specialist
advice to assist in
any procurement
exercise.

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 Option 3 is preferred. The Council must plan realistically. Many years of
budget reduction and efficiency savings have removed options for simple
efficiencies.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The Council needs to act decisively at this very difficult time to maintain its
ability to function across a wide set of statutory functions and other priorities.
Regretfully this now means that it has to accept that it may no longer be able
to engage in all of its current discretionary activities. Undertaking
comprehensive reviews which present Members with a range of costed
options should help to inform these difficult decisions.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Managing the Councils resources is a key supporting theme in the Corporate Plan. Where
Service reduction takes place there will be a need to adjust the Corporate Plan accordingly.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

There will inevitably be a wide range of impacts across a spectrum of areas. Review will
seek to be risk managed to avoid safety and legal impacts in particular.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The need to have clear regard to contractual and employment rights arising from reviews will
be essential.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The areas to be considered in this review will largely relate to the revenue budget and total
£1,367,600 (including internal recharges).

In relation to Salt Ayre for 2013/14, this is currently estimated at £971,200. This is the net
cost after excluding notional capital charges of £404,300, but does include internal staff
recharges of £332,800. There is also one capital budget of £30,000 for replacements and
refurbishments which may also be covered by the review — decisions on whether to progress




Page 154

these works will be informed by short-term operational needs and the service reviews.

In relation to the Sports Development / Community Outreach teams this is estimated at
£262,000 (including £66,800 for internal staff recharges) and for the Community Pools this is
estimated at £134,400.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

The review will inevitably impact on the establishment within the service and potentially from
support service areas.

Information Services:
Some support from IS may be needed during the course of the review.
Property:

Decisions made will impact on the Council’s property portfolio. Furthermore, it should be
noted that with regard to the community pools, the County Council (as landlord) will need to
undertake and fund property works if these facilities are to continue. In order to inform both
the City and County Council’s budget proposals, therefore, a timely decision will be needed

regarding these facilities.
Open Spaces:

No direct impact at this stage

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Suzanne Lodge
Telephone: 01524 582701
E-mail: slodge@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: C118

none




Page 155 Agenda ltem 12

CABINET

OUTLINE PROPOSALS FOR SERVICE REVIEW:
REGENERATION AND PLANNING SERVICE
5 November 2013

Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To obtain Cabinet’'s agreement for the scope of detailed review work needed to present the
Council with savings options.

I:I Non-Key Decision |:I Referral from Officers
Date of notice of forthcoming N/A
key decision

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLOR JANICE HANSON

(1) That Cabinet agrees that the areas to be reviewed in the Regeneration and
Planning Service are :

e Strategic Management of the visitor economy
e Commissioned activities supporting the visitor economy
e The provision of events
e Visitor Information centres
e Council operated venues
e Communications and Marketing.
(2) That the Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) reviews the options
available to reduce engagement in Regeneration Projects and Economic

Development, after assessing what the impact would be on the economic well
being of the district and the ability of the Council to engage with the LEP.



3)

(4)

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0
2.1

Page 156

That the Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) be instructed to
commence detailed work on the review in these areas together with
appropriate Chief Officer support from Management Team.

That a report be prepared for Cabinet containing worked up options for
savings.

Introduction

Regeneration and Planning: The service includes a number of statutory
functions which were the subject of review and service reductions in April
2010. These are regularly refined and are mainly operating to capacity and
experiencing increased workload. No major reductions to these services are
proposed apart from some rationalizing of managerial posts enabling savings
to be made in other service areas, and pilot arrangements being made to
share Building Control operations with South Lakeland District Council.
Options for any efficiencies or similar measures (through reviewing and
refining processes and systems, and reallocation of staff resources) will also
be explored.

The first stage review has identified the main discretionary areas where
service reductions need to be considered. These are:-
e Strategic Housing
e Regeneration Projects and Economic Development Visitor Economy,
events and festivals
e Communications and marketing
o Customer engagement

It has assessed what the implications would be of retreating from these areas
of service provision.

Tourism and Events: This is a particularly complex service area in its own
right for a number of reasons. Strategic engagement in the visitor economy by
tourism marketing now sits with the Regeneration and Planning Service. The
direct provision of organized events, and partnership working with others to
provide, tourism related events, also now sits with the Regeneration and
Planning Service.

Management of City Council owned venues which contribute to supporting
the visitor economy sits largely with the Well being function in the Health and
Housing Service, and there is also a close association with Museums, Happy
Mount and Williamsons Parks

Communications and Marketing: This team services a range of Council
activities which may be considered for reductions. There is potential to make
related reductions in communications and marketing activity associated with
reductions in other service areas and as a result of reprioritisation of activity
and budgets in due course.

Proposal Details

A review of how best to consider service reductions across all the areas
highlighted above is taking place. This review takes place within the context
of:



2.2

2.3

3.0
3.1

4.0

Page 157

The Council’'s corporate plan / priorities
The Council’s budget position

The review will take account of the views of relevant staff, trade unions and
Elected Members and bring forward options that will-

Generate ongoing savings

Realistically withdraw to levels of service which are affordable

Not continue to generate expectations that services can be provided

Not divert pressures to other work areas to deliver a service which has been
deleted or reduced.

The outline proposals for detailed review for the Regeneration and Planning
service together with its new allocated former Community Engagement
functions is as follows:-

To review the options available to reduce engagement in Regeneration
Projects and Economic Development, after assessing what the impact would
be on the economic well being of the district and the ability of the Council to
engage with the LEP.

To consider whether to continue to engage in the strategic management of
the visitor economy.

To consider whether the Council can afford to provide a level of
commissioned services to support the visitor economy.

To consider whether to retreat from the direct provision of events

To consider whether to reduce provision of the districts Visitor Information
Centres or provide any visitor support facilities

To review the disposition of venues run and managed by the City Council
which contribute to the visitor economy, and consider whether to retreat from
any or all such venues.

To review the level of Communications and Marketing activity that will be
needed, especially if a range of discretionary services provided across the
Councils operations are withdrawn.

Details of Consultation

No formal consultation has taken place at this stage. Full consultation will be
required with staff, trade unions, the Chambers of Trade and Commerce and
other bodies with a direct interest in the discretionary services currently
provided by the Council.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Option 1: To Option 2: To find Option 3: To
undertake no review | efficiency savings undertake a review
of services only which could highlight
the need for service
reduction

Advantages

None. The Council’'s | None. The extent of | This gives the
budget position is the forthcoming Council the
real and there is no | budget reduction opportunity to




Page 158

alternative but to
undertake reviews.

cannot be mitigated
by simply making
efficiency savings.

prepare for 2015/16
well in advance. To
manage the removal
of services in a
planned approach
and to give affected
staff greater time to
make alternative
employment
arrangements.

Disadvantages

By not commencing
any reviews now the
Council would have
to take urgent
corrective action
later as a budget
crisis developed.

Such a limited
review would
address only the
2014/15 challenge
and give insufficient
time to prepare for
the larger challenge
the following year.

The community will
have to prepare
realistically for a
reduction in services
which the Council
can no longer
provide.

The Council may

The Council may

If the reviews

Risks risk failing to set a risk failing to set a maintain
balanced budget at | balanced budget at | expectations that
some point in the some point in the some services will
medium term, medium term, continue to operate,
leading to crisis leading to crisis with less resources,
management, management, it may be over
massive service massive service stretched
disruption and disruption and
related related
repercussions. repercussions.

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 Option 3 is preferred. The Council must plan realistically. Many years of
budget reduction and efficiency savings have removed options for simple
efficiencies.

6.0

Conclusion

6.1 The Council needs to act decisively at this very difficult time to maintain its
ability to function across a wide set of statutory functions. Regretfully this
now means that it has to accept that it may no longer be able to engage in
discretionary activities, a number of which could, and ought to be provided by

the private sector

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Managing the Councils resources is a key supporting theme in the Corporate Plan. Where
Service reduction takes place there will be a need to adjust the Corporate Plan accordingly.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

There will inevitably be a wide range of impacts across a spectrum of areas. Review will

seek to be risk managed to avoid safety and legal impacts in particular.




Page 159

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The need to have clear regard to contractual and employment rights arising from reviews will
be essential.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The areas to be considered in this review will largely relate to the revenue budget although
there may be subsequent impacts on the capital budget. Savings to be investigated will also
relate to grants and subsidies provided to other bodies for the provision of services and
activities in the district and as such may consequently affect the viability of other
organisations.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

The review will inevitably impact on the establishment within the service and potentially from
support service areas.

Information Services:
The review could reduce the need for support in this area.

Property:

The review could lead to a reduced need for property assets

Open Spaces:
No likely impacts

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Andrew Dobson
Telephone: 01524 582303

none .
E-mail: adobson@lancaster.gov.uk




Page 160

CORPORATE PLAN 2013-14
HALF YEARLY MONITORING

5 NOVEMBER 2013
Report of the Chief Executive

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To report progress on actions in the Corporate Plan 2013-2014

El Non-Key Decision El Officer Referral

Date Included in Forthcoming Key Decision Notice N/A

This report is public

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

(1) That Cabinet receives the progress report in respect of the Corporate
Plan 2013-141.

1.1 The Corporate Plan 2013-14 was approved by Council on 13 May 2013,
setting the direction for the delivery of council services and the achievement
of corporate priorities. The Corporate Plan brings together the council’s
strategic priorities, outcomes and actions that it wishes to deliver in the
medium term, as part of the council’s Policy Framework.

1.2 Actions in the Corporate Plan, together with the Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS), drive the allocation of resources included in the council’s
medium term budgets, capital programme, HR Strategy, ICT Strategy and
Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy as well as Service Business
Plans.

1.3 A review has been undertaken of progress on actions and details of this
review are set out in Appendix A.

2.0 Conclusion

2.1 It is important that the council is able to adapt to changes in a planned and
considered way, particularly in view of the financial challenges that the
Council is facing. To facilitate this, the Corporate Plan is in the process of
being fully reviewed in the context of meeting the required savings targets for
the next two financial years.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

This report is a requirement of the council’'s Performance Management Framework in
support of the council achieving its key tasks and objectives as reflected in its policy
framework

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report



Page 161
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None directly arising from this report
OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources / Information Services / Property / Open Spaces

None directly arising from this report

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The S151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add to this report.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add to this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Cullinan, Chief

Executive
Corporate Plan 2013-14 Telephone: 582011
E-mail: chiefexecutive@lancaster.gov.uk

Ref: CE/ES/Cttees/Cabinet/5.11.13




Page 162

Buinunuon
Buissaiboid

‘louno) Ajuno) adiyseoue] yym sanjiunuoddo
juswdojanap sy} Buissnasiq "SIy} 4O} [EDIILID UOISIDBP YUl 9N

paysiignd

Buissaiboid

sndwe) uoljeAOUU| UB SB UMOUY MOU S| Juswdojaaap ay| — Buiobup

"90.JaWWoD
JO Jaquieyd jou3siq Jeyseoue pue AyonQq ‘pue ysnug yum Buiiopn

‘'ssewolg
0] 9oual8jal sapnjoul ue|d Juswdoaaq “Buoq yym Buppiom ‘BuiobuQ

JuswINoop ue|d Juswdojaasq Ul papnjou|

"abe)s siy) 1e ued am se Jej se a)ep-0}-dn palaAlle(

ousIp
2y} 1noybnouy) s|eAlsa) pue sjusAs JaAllep pue dojaasp 0 siaulied YIm YIOAA

Jajseoue yjnos 1e puej Jo sjes ay) a19|dwo)

Aemaien) weysAaH sy Buposuuod) 1oy sjesodoud dojaaaq
aquIBOalO0)\ [BJJUSD 1O} UB|d UONOY Baly ue saibe pue aiedald
awayds sajnoy alenbg Jayseoue] JoAl@p 0} anuluod)

Alsianlun Ja)sesue 0] Juaoelpe
yied aouslos e 10} sjesodoud piemio) Buliq o} sisuied oi691el)S YUM MIOAA

Jajseoue ul
uswdojanap a43uao ANo 1oy sjesodosd dojaaap 0} J0}08s aieAld By} YlM YIOAA

oulsip
ay} ul seniunyoddo ssew-oiq pue ABJsus a|gemausl ‘puUIM SI0YSHO d10Wold

weysAsH 1e uone)s Jamod Jesjonu mau
e 10J saioljod juswabeuew juswdojaAsp pue uoiedo|e pue| Jesjo dojaasqg

108(04d ainjonJiseljur pub jeuoneu ay
1o} ue|d Juawabeuey j0aloid ay} jo syuswald pauueld JaAlBP pue dojaasg

HLMOR¥O JINONODS

3ilvadn

NOILDV

€10¢ 4390100 31vddN — SNOILIV NV1d 31Vd0dd0D vi-€10¢

V XIAN3ddV




Page 163

papinoid poddns Jeo10

uiod sy ye paysiignd spaiyy-om |
Buinunuon

Buinunuo)n

Juswabeuew uonendal uo sI snooj ay |

MaIA8J Buipuelg Jo ued

"g|1se) Jayseoue Jo asn
a|qeule)sns Joj sued Jiay) Jo swua) ul Ayong syl yum Buijiom ae spp

‘louno) Al uoisald pue |1ouno)
Aunod ay} Jo s19014J0 Yy play YD 8y} Ag pajeyijioe) suoissnasiq

pJemJoy Jybnolq aq 0} uoisioap Jaquaw Buuinbal spoday

aseyd puodoas 0] passalbold

BulobuQ

s|esodo.d
101381p JuswaAodw| ssauisng Jajseoue] ay) Jo AJaAlidp Joj Joddns apinoid

abejs uoissIwgns ay} 0} Ueld [B20T 101ISIQ JB}SBOUET 8Y) 9oUBAPY
sewwelboud diysaonuaidde ayy JoAlj@p 0} 8NUUOD

Z aneniu] abejioH adeasumo] JaAllep 0} anuiuo)

Jo1sIp 8y} 0} sajuedwod Jseapeolq pue wijy abeinoou]

sJoyisIA BuiAe)s uo passnooj Allenoilied ‘suoijoeaie sy pue JoLasip
ay} Joj uejd Bunexiew wsLINo} e JaAljep pue dojaaap 0} diysiauped ul YIOAA

ajise)
Jajseoue Jo asn a|gelA ay) Joj sjesodoid dojaasp 0} Ayong 8yl Yim Yo

1013SIp 8y} Ul uoisiaodd swnasnw 1o} yoeosdde
aininy e dojaaap 0} |1DuUn0) AJUN0D BJIYSEOUEBT Y)IM YJOM 0} dnuijuoD)

Aligeln pue Ayjiqeurelsns Jiay)
uoddns djay 0} s)oxiew wooy Alquiassy pue Jayuey) ‘|eansa- ayj dojaasqg

1013s1p 83 Joy ABsjeys Buipuelq wsLiNo} e dojeasp 0} slauped Yyum MIOAA

suonesiuebio
s)e Jayjo pue diysiauped suy ayj yum Bupiom 1ouisip ayy ul spe poddng

3lvdadn

NOILOV

V XIAN3ddV




Page 164

"YoeJ) uo pue pabeuew |[8m SSaUSSa|aWoy

pue uonuaAaid Uo YI0M Poos5) ‘siojedipul souewlopad Aq painsesiy

BulobuQ

‘@sn

ojul yoeq saiadoud Aydwa Bullq 0y Buidjey Buibieys xe| 1ouno) os|y
‘paonpoud aq |m podal ssaiboid— 3sod ur mou 18210 SdwoH Aydwg

‘Buiobuo yJom Juswanoidw| swoH pue Aioiniels

awayog BuisnoH pug 1S9\ Uo Lodal 1auIqe) JaqUIBAON

"Jauige JaquaAopN 0]

191381 9y} ul Buisnoy [1vuno) maN Bulsalaq buiplebal podal ‘BuiobuQ

Juswinoo( ue|d juswdojaAs SUOoI}ed0||yY pueT Ul papnjou|

SSBUSS8|aWOoY 8)ok)] 0] Sainsesw ayeuapun .

swwelboud |eyded pue soueusuiew pauueld Buisnoy [19UN02 Y] JaAllRQ .

asn ojul yoeq saiuadoud Aidws Bulg o

Joddns pue juawadiojud eiA Buisnoy J1030as ajeAld ul sjuswanoidwi JaAIIBQ .
eale suapJes) yuomsiey) ayj ur sswoy Aydwas

JO Juawysignyas Buipnjoul pug 1saAA 8y} Ul sawayos Buisnoy aye|dwo) .

sawayos Buisnoy ajgeploje pue [e1o0os JaAlled .

10LsIp 8Y) ssouoe Buisnoy Ayjenb poob ‘yuaioiyns 1oy buluue|d o

ONIFETTaM ANV HL1TV3H

[1ounod Ajunod aliyseoue yym diysisuped ul yiom oy Buinunuo)

pejdope ue|d }elq

BulobuQ

ABajeus JuswysaAul plemul JaAllop pue dojaaa o
ajnyysu| Aa10)g ay) Joy ueld ssauisng e Jusws|dwi pue ydopy .
o)sed

Ja)seoueT pue Jopulo) [eue) “Yui| 9N weysAsH Buipnjoul sjuswdojaasp
Ayuoud oy suoneoidde Jolew uo suoisioap Buiuueld jo Aianlap abeuepy o

3lvdadn

NOILOV

V XIAN3ddV




Page 165

Abajeng ABlaug sjgemausay ayj 0} payul]

BulobuQ

"PBUOISSILIWOD

uaaq sey yoiym Abereng Abiaug ajgemausy ayj ul papnjoul 8q [|IM

189]} [I0UN0I JO uodWNSUOD |aN} 8Y) 8oNpPaJ 0] SUOIOE JBAIIR( .

pajsodwod pue pajohoal ‘pasn-al 8)SeM pPjoyasnoy JO JUNOWe dSealoul
0] 0Z20Z-800¢Z ABaiens aysep) aJiyseoue ay} Jo saAoalqo ayy Jaaleq o

S3J0IYdA
pue Buisnoy ‘sbuip|ing |1I9unod 10} sainseaw Aousiolyye ABiaus Juswadw| o

S30V1d 34VS ANV NIFY9 ‘NvI1D

pajs|dwon
pajs|dwon
awuwelboid Buiobup

panoidde Abajens

MIOM SIY} 1o} paAlgdal Buipuny jeulaixe ‘buiobuQ

paalbe ABajess diysiauped ‘patsAleq

sJojeolpul @ouewlopad Ag painsesw pue papiroid sanijioe

sJojeoipul souewlopad Aq painsesiy

anoqe sy

SOWeo) YINnoA [euoljeulaju| ay} 1SoH .
20ey 9J9AD AJ100|9\ BU) JoAlBp pue ue|d .

SOAIjeN)IU| SBWOH WIe\ JaAllep 0] siauped YIm MIOAA .

1011SIp 8y Jo} ABajedis Ajlenb sie ue Jealep 01 siauled ypm YIOAA o

ajdoad Jap|o pue sjdoad BunoA pue ualipjyo
10} SaIjIAII0. 8INsI9| pue Yjeay JaAljdp 0} siaulled 10j0as olignd yjim JIOAA o

1011SIp 8y} Ul sjuswabuelie Buiag|iem pue yleay oibslens Jaaleg .
sall|1o.) 8InsIg| 8pIA0Id .
S92IAISS U)|BaY [BJUSLIUOIIAUS BAIJ08Y8 JaAllaQg .

aAlenUl InO JYBIN puodag oN, 8y} Juswa|dwi
pue jousIp a8yl ul Buides|s ybnod aonpal 0] 10109S AJBJUN|OA BU] YlIIM YIOAA o

3lvdadn

NOILOV

V XIAN3ddV




Page 166

Buipuny Jo uoiewIUOD Bulyiemy

Buiobup

"a/ABS 0} 1S9AU| 0] djeledas j1abpng e

wou} sanadoud seb jjo, swos ul sjpued Jejos awos Bulpinold -BuiobuQ
BulobuQ

Buiobup

‘Ajjigejieae 8oinosad Aq pajwi| g ‘ounod AjJuno) pue saled

paiy} yum diysiauped ul Ajjensn ‘Buipuny jeusaixa ybnoayy BuiuaddeyH
Jeak jualinod Jo4

paiinbais uaym uaalb uoddng

BulobuQ

pajs|dwon

ABajens ABiaug ajgemausy ayj 0} payul]

[IEA
uojoajey aAep) ayy buioeldal 1oy swayos e dojaasp pue suondo ajenjeag

ABejesg ABiaug s|gemauay s,|1ounod ay) dojaaaqg

swuwelboid [euded
pue pauue|d Buisnoy 1ounod UIYIM sainseaw Aouaioiye ABiaus ay) JaAalaQq

saoeds uado Jo jJuswanoidwi pue Buisues|o
198.4)s uo siseydwa ue yum wieal olignd 1o} suonjoe paaibe juswadw|

a|doad BunoA 10} saiianoe ainsig] aailsod Jaalaq

sooeds uado pue syled 0] sjuswanoidu|

pusip
3y} Ul (sOSOd) sS40 woddng Ajunwwio) pue 821104 J0 uoisirold yoddng

s10|d Juawjojje aJow jo uoisinoid ay} uoddng
9Jes pue ueajo s}oalls JNo daay Jey} Sa2IAISS JaAIIBpP 0} siauled Yim MJOAA
awayos Buiyoums ABiaua aAI}09]|00 ay} JoAldQg

sjuawalinbal
ABJisua ainny s,|IDUNOD Y} 8INPaJ 0} SBINSEaW JBAI|BP pue ajenjeA]

3lvdadn

NOILOV

V XIAN3ddV




Page 167

‘Buiobuo si (Y3|) uonelisiboay |e101938|3 |eNPIAIpU| J0} uoljeledald

BulobuQ

‘pasiueblio Buieq Buluiely pue aoe|d ul sue|d

Buiobup

1ow sjuswalinbal Aay — BuiobuQ

"ejoJ Aousbiswa 0} paynIoal SIadI0 [BUOHIPPY

Buiobup

‘v 102 40} @duslsjuo) diysiapea Ajunwwo) e jo buiuuegld

Ul JUSWBA|OAUI JOQUIBJ UJIM ‘paIdAllep pue pasayo ‘pauueld Buiaq
ale sjuans pue Bujuiely paway) diysiepes] Ayunwwo) Jo AjoLeA
‘padojanap Buiaq

ue|d ‘sbunsaw pieog ayj spuajie (buisnoH pue yjesH) 192140 J81yD
"Jeah si1yj Jo) wasAs ay) pajuswajdwi Ajjnyjssesong

Buiobup

sabueyd wJojal |elojos|e Juswa|dwi pue aleda.id

saljiwed yum
Jayjabo] Buppopn 4oy sayoeoidde dn pauiol dojaasp 0} sisuped yum oA

"|louUNOD 8y} SSOJOB SBIoUBIoIYS pue
Juswaoidwi ssauisng ‘sBulaes JaAljgp 0} | D] JO 8snh ay) pue s|iys dojersQ

suondo Aianljap 821A18s auljuo pasealoul dojaAap 0O} YoM

siuswadinbal Aouaisedsuel) pue AlljIgeIUNOIJe || 199\

Buiuueld Aouabiswa ul 8oualjIsal ulelule

(sDDd) slouoissIWWOo) swi) pue adljod

punoue sjuswabuelie mau pue diysisuped Aojes Ajlunwwo) sy} Joddng
SJ0[|19UN0 Jo 8|04 diysiapes| Alunwwod a8y} punole swwelboud e dojaasqg

10LIISIp 8y} 40} ue|d S,8/doad BunoA pue uaipjiy) e dojaasp
pue diysiauped pue pieog ijsni| s,ualp|iy) syl Hoddns o0} sisuped ypm MIOAN

sebueyo |eo1uyo8) Jaylo pue swiojal alejjom o) asuodsa. ul sjuswabuelle
AKJaA0D8. pUB UOIJ08||00 XEB) |B00| MBIASJ pue Jojiuow ‘Juswajdw|

puoAaq pue }186png G| /¥1 0z 8y} Buioueleq Joy sue|d Juswsadwi pue dojaasq

dIHS¥3Aav3a1 ALINNNINOD

3lvdadn

NOILOV

V XIAN3ddV




Page 168

Buiobup

Buiobup

"s109f0.d Jejiwis unJ 0} way)

abeinoouUs 0] SIO||IPUNOD JBYJO0 Y)IM paleys aq [|IM SIy} wol) Buiuiesan
"YHWoN weysAaH ui pajojid Buiaqg si }saiajul AJUNWWOD JO SBNSS| SsaJppe
puUB SaIIUNWWOD YIIM Ylom slofjiounod piem uoddns 0] 108(oid ¢

[1ouno) Auno)
aliyseosue] ypm uonounfuod ui oljojjuod Auadoud jo mainal juiof ssaiboid

Swiiojal alejjam ain)ny Jaylo JaAljap pue Joj atedaid o) sisuped yim oA

a|doad |eo0] 01 Jo)1EW JEBY) SAem ul seale
[e20] aAoJdwi 0] sanuNWWod ulyum Aloededs pue aoualjisal dojaasp 0] JIOAA

3lvdadn

NOILOV

V XIAN3ddV




Page 169 Agenda ltem 15
CABINET]

Corporate Performance Monitoring 2013/14
05 November 2013
Report of Chief Officer (Governance) and
Chief Officer (Resources)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the corporate performance and financial monitoring reports at Quarter 2 of the
2013/14 performance monitoring cycle.

‘:I Non-Key Decision D Officer Referral

Date Included in Forthcoming Key Decision Notice 7 October 2013

This report is public, with the exception of Annex A to Appendix E (Property Update).
This is exempt from publication, by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.

RECOMMENDATION OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

(1) That Cabinet considers this report and makes any comments or
recommendations as appropriate.

(2) That the Treasury Management report as set out at Appendix D be
referred onto Council for noting.

1.0 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2013/14 — QUARTER 2

1.1 The full Corporate Plan Performance Review Report is attached as Appendix
A. This report provides a summary of overall performance, across all
services and portfolios, in relation the Council’s Corporate Plan for Quarter 2
of the current year. It should be read in context with the mid-year report
elsewhere on the agenda.

1.2 At Quarter 2, there are no Corporate Plan success measures with a Red
status.

1.3 Throughout the report commentary provided by officers responsible for each
success measure highlight achievements, adds contextual information,
identifies issues and outlines actions being taken / planned to get
performance back on track.

14 Attached as Appendix B is the Corporate Plan Quarterly Trend Report. This
report sets out, at a high level, the actual quarterly performance of each
Corporate Plan success measure since Quarter 2 2012/13 when the
performance management information system, CorVu went live.
Commentary on the reasons for variances is provided.

1.5 From Quarter 2 data input and information provides year-on-year (as well as
quarter-by-quarter) trending comparisons and benchmarking affording more
insight on overall performance and informing efficient and effective decisions.



Page 170

1.6 The Corporate Financial Monitoring report for Quarter 2 is attached as
Appendix C. This shows that in simple terms there is an underspending of
£383K in respect of the General Fund, which is projected to increase to
£506K by the end of the year. For the Housing Revenue Account, there is
currently an underspending of £16K which is forecast to become an
overspend of £73K by the end of the year.

1.7 The Quarter 2 monitoring report also includes the latest position with regards
to treasury management activities, and this is included at Appendix D. In
accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, this mid-year review will
be forwarded onto Council for noting.

1.8 Finally, a quarterly update regarding the property portfolio is provided at
Appendix E, in line with earlier Cabinet resolutions. The content of this will
also be developed over the course of the year.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Property / Open Spaces: As set out in the relevant appendices.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has contributed to this report in her role as Chief Officer (Resources).

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Performance — Bob Bailey,
Corporate Planning and Performance Manager;
Finance — Andrew Clark, Financial Services
Manager Telephone: 01524 582018 / 582138
E-mail: rbailey@lancaster.qov.uk /
aclarke@lancaster.gov.uk

Ref: Performance Review Cycle 2013/14 Qtr 2

none




Page 171

g Jo | abeyd

a|doad

BunoA jo siaquinu abue|
paloeae pue Jeindod Aiaa
u2aq aAeY Sal}IAOE 9say |
"JoUISIp 8y} Jo sease Ayoud ul
Buppiom sdnoub/suonesiueblio
1e20] ‘yym diysiauped ul pue
‘Ajoalip saniAloe AJBUOISIBAID
J0 Jaquinu e apinoid

0} S8NUIUOI [1DUN0D BY |

"pub

[euolieu ay) 0} yoeq palodxe
pue pajelsauab ABisus ay)

10} pauJes Jlie} 8y} Jo} swooul
[euonippe apnjoul ||im pue
€10Z JeqWIBAON Ul paAladal
aq ||IM paules | |4 Jo Junowe
|[enjoe ay| -sbBuipeal Jejow
uo paseq g Jauenp Jo pus ay)
Je pauled (1|4) Jue]-ur-pss-
10 ainbiy aAEINWND
|euoisinoid e si siy |

sjuapisal Joj

awayds ay} buinoidwi jo shkem
1B X 00| 0} Pasn aq [|IM SMBIA
Aaning Bulifoay pue aysepn
juaoal ay} 0} asuodsal poob e
Buimoljo4 ‘Buijphoal pjoyasnoy
ul asealoul aAlsod e smoys

Z Jauenp ul papodal ejeq

Sjuswwo) Hoday

Ay y ee0 ey Bun oy

TIINNOD ALID

A LSVONV

€10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

a|doad BunoA
1o} saniAnoe Aleuoisianip
0/8'9 00Z2 poo9 s| ybiH spuesg uoy Alsuenp 10 Jaquinu paseaJou| ajes sl JoulsIp InO
sjoaloud
X0D-uo}|iweH BurpAoal pue Abiaus
¥2 L02'6E€3 00°000'8€3 poo9 s! YbiH wil Apspenp wlolj swodul asealou]
sy09foud abueyo
paisodwod ajewlo pue Abojouyoay
J0 pajohoal ‘pasnal Jejos Buipnpoul ‘ABisus
%09°'GY %00 0¥ poo9) si ybiy yjws piaeq Aapenp 9)SEM pjoyashoy Jo 9% wouy pajelauab awoou|

10b1e |

ovd [enoY

(z Jopenp) ejeq isoje

Aouanbaiq

Jap|o
PIoH ainses|\

Aejod Oljojj0d

€L0¢ ¢ 18uenp

S19P|OH Ol|0flOd |1V :Olofod
Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)

saoe|d 9Jeg pue udalig ‘ues|)

2INSe’|\ SS820Ng




Page 172

g Jo z abed

"a1eWI[o
21WOU028 JNOIYIP 8y} aydsep
paA8Iyo. 8q 0} SeNUIjU0D Sajel
21)S8WOQ UON 4O UOI}08]|0D

"JeaA |eloueul) ay)

10 8|0YyM BU} JBA0 Ino pealds
90 MOU [|IM UON08]|09 JO 8)el
ayj os ‘syuow | Ajsnoinaud)
sjuswieisul Ajyluow z| 1oAo
JuswAed slayo mou |1ounoD
ay} Aed 0} ynoiyip ¥ Buipuy
asoyjdjpy o] 'z Jepenp

10 pus ay} 1e suoieadxa
yum aul| ut Ajpeolq sl

a]el uo1j99)|00 abejusoiad ay |

‘Peoy

Mur 9N 8ys jo Ajunwiwo)
[e007 8y} 40} suoneslduy

ay} uo ajepdn ue pue
awsabeuey swi] ‘suonenyis
Buibusjeyd ypm Bullesq

woJ} Buibuel ‘s|iys diysiepes]
Aunwwo) Jisyy buidojarsp
s10j|19UN0Y Joy} [ngasn

ale jey) soidoy jo abuel apim
e paJanod sey swuwelboud
wawdojaaaq Jequiajy

ayy Jeak ay) Jo Jley jsuly By} U]

Sjuswwo) Hoday

ovd

€10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

%0€°09

%0€°6S

poo9 si ybiy

Buluhig poqay

Aluuopy

anp
S8)el 2}S8Wog-UoN 10 %
e Se sejel 21}SaWwog-UoN

%08°.S

%0¢Z°8S

poo9 si ybiH

Buiuhig noqqy

Ayuopy

anp xe| [1ouno)
10 9, B SB Xe] [Iouno)

Aauow Joy

an|eA Ja)}aq daAaIyde 0}
Al@Anosye pue Ajuaioile
pabeuew pue palaAlap
aJe suoljesado s,[1I9un0)

%EE8E

%00°5¢

poo9 si ybiH

allwe|g uss|ig

Aleakyey

diyssapes| Ajlunwwiod
ul Juswdojanap/buluiely
Buiyepapun s1o|1oUN0D
JO Jaquinu pasealu|

pesnuoud ale
S8IIUNWIWOD INO 0} Jsow
Ja)jew ey} SeoIAIeS 0S
Sp@su pue SaiIuNWIWOD
Jo Buipuejsiapun Jajeg

[enoY

10b1e |

Auejod

19p|OH
oljojuiod

Aouanbaiq

ainses|\

diysiapea] AJlunwwo)

2INSe’|\ SS820Ng

(z Jopenp) ejeq isoje

€102 2 Jouenp
S19P|OH O1|0jOd ||V :Ol|ofHod
Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)

SOTEANUTE T § IRR0D Ay Bunoual

TIONNOD ALID




Page 173

g Jo ¢ abey

‘ulqed

s Jagquada( 0} pauodal

aq |m ABajens |eloueul
WJa | WNIpaj\ 8y} JO MaIAaL
pajie}ap alow Yy “MaIneY
Buipuadg juswiuIBA0D)

}saje| ay Buimo|oy Joulqe o}
payuodal pue pas|dwod usaq
sey uonisod [eloueuly S,|IoUN0D
3y} jo ajepdn |eniul uy

“MIOM)SN
S90IAIBS 21|gNd JUSWUIBA0D)
ay} 0] bunejal syjuswabuelle
pue aosueulanob

uonewJojul jo anssi buiobuo
ay) ssaippe Ajaanjoe 0} aoe|d
ul s1 uopoe jo swwelboud vy

aJua) [04u0) 1PuIsIa
ay) ulyym sasiolexe pauueld
ul pasn ag MOU ||IM SNPOIA!
‘yoeoidde paseq-iaded
snoinald aq 0} uoin|os
asn-0}-Asea pue aAlo8aYe
‘quaioiye aiow e Buipiaoid
SJUBPIOUI PUB SJUBAD |BIOASS
1e pasn uaaq Ajnjsseoons
pue paonpo.iul usaq

sey (snpop1) waysAs Buibbo
JUBPIOU| }SOO-MO| MBU

Sjuswwo) Hoday

SpTCALTE § IR0 Al Buicany

TIINNOD ALID

A LSVONV

ovd

€10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

10b.e} uQ

1ob.e} uQ

poo9 si ybiy

Buiuhig poqqy

AlleahyeHy

MIoADY
Buipuadg Buiwooyuioy
S,JUBWIUIBA0D)

ayj Jo ybi ul yes Abejens
[eloueul} s1eak ainyn4

0S50

000

pO095) SI MO

allwe|g uas|ig

Aapend

SMIDA8I
1pne pue asueulanob
jenuue ybnouy)

uaAIb yyeay Jo |jiq ues|o

10b.ue} UQ

1ob.e} uQ

poo9 si ybiH

weyiha ualey

Aepenp

Buiuue|d

Aouablaws Jo} aoe(d
ul a1e sjuswabuele
pa]sa} pue }snqoy

[enoY

10b1e |

(z Jopenp) ejeq isoje

SJ9P|OH Oljojod ||V :Oljojlod

Auejod

19p|OH
oljojuiod

€L0¢ ¢ 18uenp

Aouanbaiq
ainses|\

diysiapea] AJlunwwo)

2INSe’|\ SS820Ng

Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)




Page 174

g Jo { abed

‘'sainseawl

|eloads ul paoe|d Bulaq pue
sjeb.e)} 198w 0} Buljiey [1I9UNoD
8y} Ul }InsaJ p|nod yoiym
‘@oinosau yejs buionpal e pue
peopom AAeay panuiuod

e woJj ainssaid snouss Japun
‘IoanaMOy ‘sI SIY| sauljpeap
Aiojnjess uiyim suoljeoidde
Buiuue|d Jolew, Buiuiwisiep
J0} s}abue) JUBWIUIBA0LD)

198W 0} S8NUIUOD [IDUN0D By |

‘g)Ise) Jajseoue]
pue JopLIoD [eueD ui|

9\ weysAsH ayj buipnjoul
‘sawiayos Jofew uo suoRIpuod
Buiuueld jo Juswabeuew ay}
uo poddns pue aainpe apinoid
0} S8NUIIUOD [IDUN0D BY |

€ Jayenp ul anuijuod

[lIM 92IAI8S U} JO doueUIaA0D
8iNjn} BY} punoJe suoissnosiq
"90IAJ8S SWNaSN\ 8y} Jo
uoisinoid ainjny ayj Joy sjppowl
Juswabeuew dA1}08))o 1sow
By} dUIWIB}BP 0} UOIIBI0SSY
JUBWUIBAOL) |E207T By} pue
[1ouno) AjD uojsald ‘Iounod
Auno) aliyseoue yum
Aj@so[o Buppom si [1ounoD ay |

Sjuswwo) Hoday

Ay y ee0 ey Bun oy

TIINNOD ALID

A LSVONV

ovd

€10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

suoleolddy
Buiuue|d Jolepy
Buiuiwislap Joj syebley
%00°2S %00°0S poo9) st ybiH| uosuey soluer AlJeuenp JUBWUIBA0L) Jole|
syul| podsuely
ajisen Jajseoue pue| 9|\ weysheH pue ABisus
JOPLUOD |[eue) “Mull 9N juenodwi Ajjeuoneu oy
weysAaH Buipnjour yaw| paubije ymolb oiwouods
aJe suonipuod Buluueld Jo} sue|d dojensp
10 Juswabeuew ay} 40} 0} Jayiebo} Bujiom
1ob.ue} uQ 1ob.ue} uQ poo9 st ybiH| uosuey aoluer Aleakyey syuswalinbai A10)njels sJauped Ajuoyjne [eooT
AjoAnoaye buppom
pue a2oe|d ul S| 92IAI8S paoueyus S| uojeunsap
swnasn|\ e jo uoisiroid JO)ISIA B Sse uoliubooal
106y UO 1obiey up poo9) si ybiy Spues uoy Auapenp| auyj Joy yoeoidde aininy v S,J0U)SIp Jo)seoue]

[enoY

(z Jopenp) ejeq isoje

10b1e |

Aouanbaiq

Jap|o
PIoH ainses|\

Aejod Oljojj0d

€102 ¢ Japend
SJ9P|OH Oljojod ||V :Oljojlod

Y}Mo.5) 21Louo9g

2INSe’|\ SS820Ng

Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)




Page 175

g J0 G abey

€10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

(2108)
aI}uUa) sauISNpu| 8AeaID
Aal101g 8y} 1e s|ge|iene
sooeds ssauisnq Ajljenb
yb1y ayy Jo auo jo Aouednooo
dn uaye} sey jueus) 18W ale aynyisu| Aa10)1S
[euollippe ue g Japend u| %02 L. %00°09 poo9) st ybiH| uosuey soluer Aueakyed| auy Joy syebie) buneiado
"Josse 8y} JO Juswadueyus
[leJ9A0 By} 0} pes)
1ey; (suonijowsp Buipnjoxs)
panoidde suoneolddy panoidwl SI Ul 1S8AUl pue
Buipjing pajsi jo Jaquinu panoidwi sjasse| JISIA 0] @oe|d e se JoLISsIp
BY} S8}eoIpul ainseaw siy | 8 / poo9 si ybiH| uosuey soluep Auspenp abejuay Jo JaquinN| 8yj JO SSBUBAIORIJE By |
‘panaiyoe
ueaq sey wloge|d ayJ e
Apenoiued ‘seouepusye poob
1ey) Jueaw sey pouad Jswwns
3y} JoA0 SjuaAs Jo swwesboud 1011SIp 9y}
paueA Yy ‘wiogeld Ul SJUBAS AjlUnWIWod pue
ay] pue swnasnip Al JuSWUIBMAIUS ‘BIn}nd pasiwiXew S| awoodu|
0] S}ISIA ||BJJO0} JO JBqWINU 8y} ‘spe ul bunedioed 1SN0} puE Jo1SIp 8y}
Jo dn apew s| ainseaw siy| LZSvE 000°2E poo9) si ybiy Spues uoy Alapenp a|doad jo JaquinN 0} Bujwoo s}sN0} 80\
s|jeaddy
¢ Japenp ul Jole|\ uo sainsesw
pauodal 8q MOU ||IM 8InSea|N |e1oadg oy sjebie)
"Z Jayenp ul a|gejieAeun ejeq paplwgns 10N | %0070} poo9S sI MOT| uosueH aoluer Alspenp JUBWUIBA0L) Jole

Sjuswwo) Hoday

SpTCALTE § IR0 Al Buicany

TIINNOD ALID

A LSVONV

ovd

[enoY

10b1e |

(z Jopenp) ejeq isoje

Auejod

Aouanbaiq

Jap|o
PIoH ainses|\

oljojuiod

€102 ¢ Jouenp
S19P|OH Ol|0flOd |1V :Olofod
Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)

Y}Mo.5) 21Louo9g

2INSe’|\ SS820Ng




Page 176

8 Jo 9 abed €10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

9)]ew!||d 2ILOU0Id
}NJIYIP JUsLIND By} d)dsap
1061} MOJBQ pauleuleWw

usaq sey jouisip ay} ul sidoad
ssajawoy Aiojniess Jo Jaquinu
3y} Jey) sajedlpul ¢ Japenp

Ul 9oUBWIONBd ",SSdjdWoy 1LSsIp

Aioinjess, se paydaosoe ay} ul ajdoad s|qelaulna

uaa( aAeY Jey) S|enpiAipul 1ouUIsIp 10} paonpal sajel

10 Jaquinu Apepenb oy} ul ajdoad ssgjpwioy Ajjeuow pue panosdwi

9y) Sojeolpul ainseaw Siy | 9l 0¢ poo9 S| MOT| weyhka] uaiey Auapend JO Jaqwinu ul uojonpay Buiaqgjem pue yjesH
‘[19UNOD BY} JO UOIUBAIBIUI
ay} ybnouyy panoidwi ussq
aAeY }ey] sswoy Jo Jaquinu
8y} s8jedipul 2D Jo pus 8y}
0} dn aouewIopad "syuednodo
J1ayy jo 84| o Ajjenb ayy
aoueyua 0} se 0s parosdul

ale sawoy pajual ajeAud pue Buisnoy

Ayjenb poob o} ssaooe
sawoy| ybnoly) syuapisal [e20] JO
690°L /8 pooo sI YbIH| weyke] uaieyy Aepenp panoidwi Jo JaquinN aJl] Jo Ajljenb pasueyu]

Bulaqiiam B ylleaH

paldnoo0o Jaumo jey} Buunsus
ul @ouewJopad s,|1oUN0d
8y} sajeolpul ainseaw siy|

ovy [enjoy 10b1e | JOPIOH Aouanbaiq
sjuswwo? Joday Aiejod OlOILIO alnses|) ainsea)\ Ss920Ng
(z JopeND) ejeq isoje] lo30d
Ay y ee0 ey Bun oy MU —\ON N Lwtmja
TIONNOD ALID SIap|OH Olj0j1iod ||V :Olj0oj1i0d
JALSVONVI Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)




Page 177

g Jo J abed

sJauped sy

pue [1ounoY) 8y} Agq pataAljep
Buleqg sajIAOY "S|00Yds

Ul pue suaal9) pue syied
‘sj00d Buiwwimg Ajunwwo)
pue anua) suodg alAy Jes
1e papinoid saswwelboud pue
Sal}IAIJOB 8InsIg| pue spods

ul Bunedionued sidoad jo
Jaquinu 8y} Sa)edlpul 8INSes

‘Buipuny

a|doad AyjjeaH sewoH wiepp
ybnouyy |10UNO2 8y} JO Jleyaq
uo saijAioe Bunjeuspun

os|e aJe siauped |euleixg
"[IDUNOD 8y} JO UOIIUBAIBIUI
By} WoJj paneuaq aney oym
spjoyasnoy Jo Jaquinu ay}
sajeolpul gO 10 pud 8y} 0} dn
90UBWIONSd "SaWoy pajual
ajeAld pue paldnooo Jaumo
ul Buiall syuspisal a|qelaulnA
10} Ylwiem Jo |9A8] 8y}
Buinoidwi e pawie sawayos
sapnjoul ainseaw Siy |

Sjuswwo) Hoday

Ay y ee0 ey Bun oy

TIINNOD ALID

A LSVONV

€10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

Sal)IAI}OB 8INSI9|
saljiAljoe| pue suods ul uonedioied
ainsig| pue spods Aq panoidwi si sabe
ul Bunedioued sjdoad ||e JO sjuepisal |eoo| JO
9e6'eez LOL'VEL poo9o s ybiH spueg uoy Alspenp 10 Jaquinu pasealou|| bBulagjiem pue yyeay ayl
SOAIjBl}IUl SBWOH
wJep) wody Buniyeuaq
sSp|oyasnoy a|geJau|na
0lLg G/l poo9) si ybiH| weyihe] usiey Alspenp 10 Jaquinu pasealou|

ovd [enoY

(z Jopenp) ejeq isoje

Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)

10b1e |

Aouanbaiq

Jap|o
PIoH ainses|\

Aejod Oljojj0d

€102 ¢ Japend
SJ9P|OH Oljojod ||V :Oljojlod

Bulaqiiam B ylleaH

2INSe’|\ SS820Ng




Page 178

g Jo g abey

‘PaJsiUS pey jeyy

Swiea} 8y} ||e WoJj SJUsWwWod
a|gelnoAe) AJaA paAiadal
JuUaA8 ay] “Jeak siyy Ainp

ul paJsaAlidp pue pasiuebio
A|Inyssa00ns sem g1 0g sewen
YInoA |euoneulajul ay

Sjuswwo) Hoday

SpTCALTE § IR0 Al Buicany

TIINNOD ALID

A LSVONV

ovd

€10¢ 82:G€ Gl €C 10 POM

10b.ue} UQ 1ob.e} uQ poo9 si ybiH spueg uoy AlJeahyed| 8y Jo AJaAlop |nyssaooNg

sawen)
UINOA [euoneussiy

[enjoy 10b1e | JOPIOH Aouanbaiq
Aejod ST alnseg|\
(z Jauenp) eleq 1s91e] ljojy10d

€102 ¢ Jouenp
S19P|OH Ol|0flOd |1V :Olofod
Joday MaIADY douewL.IOIDd ue|d djelo0d.i0)

Bulaqiiam B ylleaH

2INSe’|\ SS820Ng




Page 179

¥ 40 | obed

¥1-glue|dejelodio)

€1L0¢C ¢¢:ve:GlL €210 PaM

a|doad BunoA jo siaquinu abie| pajoesye pue sendod
AJaA uaaqg aAey SaIIAIOE 9S8y} Z JOHEND U] "JOLISIp a|doad
ay} Jo seale Ayloud ul saniAloe Aleuolsiaaip Jo Jaquinu BunoA o} saniAloe
e apinold ‘siauped s}l pue ‘1ouno) 8yl yL/€L0Z AJeuoisianip
u| ainseaw ue|d ayesodiod Auspenb mau e S| siyl & 0/8‘9 & Lz &J 0 &J 0 0 poob sI ybiH| Jo Jequinu pasealou| 9Jes sl JouisIp JnO
‘pub [euoneu
ay} 0} yoeq pauodxa pue pajesausb AbBiaus ay}
10} pauJea JJlie} 8y} JOj SWODU| [BUOIHIPPE 9pN|oul ||IM
SIYLl "€L0Z 18qUIBAON Ul PaAIadal aq [[IM paules | |4
JO Junowe [enjoe a8y ‘€1/Z10Z JO djoym ay) Jo} uey) sjoafoid Buijohos
Jaybly si (1/€102) ¢ Jeuenp je se (1[d) syue]-ui-pee] pue ABiaus woly
Wi0J} paules swodul SAe|NWND [BUOISINOIH & ¥Z L0Z'6E3 z 02'€20'023 & v, 6EE'LEF & 12'681'623 |¥2'891'023 | poob s ybiH SWOodul 8sealou] syoefoud
“Jaypny abueyo sjewd
awayds ay} Buinosdwi Jo sAem je »oo| 0} pasn aq pajsodwoo pue ABojouyos)
JlIM SMaIA sjuapisal Aanung Buijhoay pue a)sep) Juadal 10 pajokoal Jejos Buipnjoul
8y} 0} asuodsal poob e Buimol|jo4 ‘Buijohoal pjoyasnoy ‘pasnal aysem ‘ABrous woly
ur 8sealoul aAIsod e smoys g Jepenp Ul papodal eleq & %09°'Sy z %080 z %02'¢y & %08 ¥ %0€ €Y poob st ybiH ployssnoy 40 % psjesauab awoou|

sjuswwo

puaa] |enjoy

v102/€102
Z 19yenp

lenyoy puaiy

vioz/eLoe
| 18)end

lenyoy puaiy

€102/2102C
¥ Jauenp

¥102¢/€10¢ ¢ 481enp

puail

€10e/Z10C
¢ 19yenpd

len}oy

Hoday puai] Ajauenp ueld ajesodion

[enjoy

€102/2102C
Z 18yenp

saoe|d 9jeg pue uaalio ‘uea|)

Ayiejod

ainses

uoljewioyu] ainsea




Page 180

¥ 40 g obed

¥1-glue|dejelodio)

€1L0¢C ¢¢:ve:GlL €210 PaM

MIOM}BN S82IAISS 2l|gNd JUBWUIBAOD)

ay} 0) Bunejal syjuswabuelle pajejal pue adueuIan0b SMISASI JIpne pue

uolnewJojul uo sjuswalinbai Juswuianob Bunesw aoueuIanob |enuue

Jo anss| Bujobuo ay} ssaippe o} uaye} bulag s| uoioe ybnouyy uanib
aAisod jey) sjodjjed g pue | Jepenp usemiag Buipuas | ﬂ 0S°0 R 00°)L &J 00°0 &J 000 000 poob si mo yieay 4o |iiq uesa|n

sjuaploul abeuew 0} Aem

A0BYd pue Jualdle ue Buipirnoid paonpoujul walsAs

Buibbo| mau e pue 9oual|ISal UlejUleW 0} Pa}inIdal Buiuueld
udaQ aAeY SJ921}J0 MaN “asuodsal Aouabisws }sngol e Aouabiawsa oy aoeld
apinold syjuswabuelle AjINuUlUOD sSauISNg Jey) aINsud ul aJe sjuswabuele
0} Jeak ay} Jnoybnouy) }9s ale sauo)sajiw Aluapend &J jobie} up &J 1obiey up &J jobie} up &J 1obiey UO 1obiey up poob si ybiH pPa)sa) pue }snqoy

'€1/210Z ul pouad awes ay) je ueyy Jaybiy si Jajenb

SIY}) Pa}08||09 a)el dlsawod UoN Jo jJunowe abejuadlad

8y JeaA [eloueuly 8U} JO 8|OYM BU} JBAO JNO

peaids aio0w aq ||IM UO[}O3]|0D JO d}el dY} OS ‘Syjuow
01 Alsnoinaid) sjuswieisul Alyjuow g JaA0 JuswAed anp
S18J40 Mou |19uno?) ay} Aed o} }naup 3 Bulpuly 8soy} sa)el 01)SaWoq-UoN
djay 0] "8jewi|o 21WLou09?d }NdIyIp 8y} aydsap pansiyoe J09 ese
9Q 0] S8NuiUOJ s8jed J)}S8WOo UON JO Uoid8||0] z %09°6¢ & %02°0€ z %001 z %0t°8¢ %02°62 pooB si ybiH | sejes dlIseaWOog-UoN

JeaA [eloueul) ay)

JO B|0YM 8y} JOA0 JNO pealds g MOU ||IM UO[}I3||0D JO Aauow 1oy
ajel 8y} os (sypuow Q| Ajsnoinaid) syuswielsul Ajyjuow an|eA Jayaq analyoe
21 Jono yuswAed siajo mou |1ouno) ay} Aed o) ynoiyip 0} AjoAnjosye pue

)1 Buipuy asouyy djay o ‘Aed o} Ajljige s1eAedxe} uo Apuaioiyye pabeuew
109)J0 [BluBW}Bp e BuiAey S| S| 8)eW|O JILOU0Dd By} anp xe] |1ouno) jo pue palanljap ale
uaym awl} e je aaoeold usaq sey xe| D Jo Alan0oay z %08'8¢2 & %0162 z %0211 z %06°L2 %0182 poob si ybiH| 9% e se xe] [1ouno)| suopelado s,[1ounod

pasnuoud
01do} e se diysiapesa] Ajunwwo) uo diysiepes|| aJe sapuNWWod JNo

Ajjoau1p 810W 8}BJUBDUOD [|IM JedA BUj} JO Jejy puodsas AjJunwwod ur}| 0} }sow Jajew jeyy

oyl ‘slepes| Alunwwod se s||iys aiay) Buidojanap je uswdojanap/buluiely S9JIAISS 0S Spasu
pawie so1doj Jo abues apim e uj Bujulel} paAlgdal aney Buryeuspun pue sajjlunwwod

Jaquis|y JeaA ay} Jo syuow XIs }sily 84} U] “y1/€10Z s10J|1oUNOD Jo Buipuejsiapun
Jo} ainseaw ue|d ajesodiod Aeak jjey mau e si siy| %EE€" 8¢ poob sI ybiH| o Jaquinu pasealu| Japeg

sjuswwo

puail

v102/€102
Z 19yenp

lenyoy puaiy

vioz/eLoe
| 18)end

lenyoy puaiy

€102/2102C
¥ Jauenp

lenyoy puaiy

€10e/Z10C
¢ 19yenpd

len}oy

¥102/€10Z Z 191end
Hoday puai] Ajauenp ueld ajesodion

[enjoy

€102/2102C
Z 18yenp

Ayiejod

diysiapea] Ajjunwwon

ainses

uoljewioyu] ainsea




Page 181

¥ 40 ¢ obed

¥1-glue|dejelodio)

€1L0¢C ¢¢:ve:GlL €210 PaM

Jow ale
sninsu| Aou0is ay)
‘v1/€10Z Ul 8inseaw AueaA jjey mau e S| Siy| %02 L. poob si ybiH| 4o} syebuey Bunesado
1o1paid 0}
}INOIYIP BJe Jey) Jeak sy} SS0IOe suolenjon|} sa)edlpul panoiduwy si Ul }saAul
sisAjeue pual} 8y] "}J9SSE 8y} JO JusWSdUBYEBUD pue JisiA 0} 9oe|d
ue 0] pe9| Jey} panoidde suoneoiddy Buipjing panoidwi syesse e Sse JouIsIp 8y} Jo
pajlsi 40 Jaquinu 8y} Jo ainseaw Alauenb e si siyl ] & Y4 z /L z W4 0s poob si ybiH| ebejusy jo JaquinN SsauaAoelye ay |
Joulsip sy}
‘wiopeld Ul SjuaA8 AjuNwwoD
ay] e Apejnonued ‘seouepusye poob u paynsal puE juswuleldud pasiwixew
sey pouad Jawwns ayj JoA0 sjuans jo swwelboid ‘aln}nd| S| 8WO0OU| }S1INO} pue
paleA Y wiofie|d 8yl pue swnasnjy A 0} SHSIA ‘spe ul bunedionued| jouysip ayj o} Buiwos
||EJO0} JO Jaquinu 8y} Jo ainseaw Apauenb e si siyl 125'vE 298'GZ poob si ybiH a|doad jo JaquinN S}S1IN0} IO\
s|eaddy
Jolep\ uo sainseaw
|eroadg Joy syebie)
Z Japenp ul a|gejieAeun ejeq %00°0 poob s| MOT|  JUBWUIBAOY) Jofe|y
"92Jnosal Jejs buonpal suopeo|jddy
e pue peopiom AAeay Jusiind ay} Jo uonjedipul ue Buiuue|d
S| g Jauenp ul uoionpal ay] “Japenb yoes saulpesp Jolepy Buluiwislep
Aioynjers uiyym pauiwisiep suolieoldde 6uiuueld Jo} syebue}
Jolew jo Jaquinu abejusoiad ay) Jo ainsesw e S| SIyl %00°2S & %L LS & %G2Z 95 z %00°0S %0G°GS poob si ybiH JUBWIUIBAOY) Jofe|y Syul| podsuely
afse) Ja)jseoue 9N weysAsH
pue JopuIo) |eue) pue ABloua
Nulj 9N weysAsH| jueuodwi Ajjeuoneu
Buipnjoul ‘yow ale 0} paubije ymoib
suonpuod Buluueld|  olwouoos oy sueld
Jo Juswabeuew| dojansp 0y Jayeboy
‘ue|d 8yesodio) 8y} 4oy sjuswaiinbai Buiyiom sisuped
¥1/€10Z @Y} Ul ainseaw AlleaA jjey mau e si siy L 1obie} UO poob si ybiy Aoynjers Ajuoyine |eo0
AloAnoaye
*92IAI9S SWNasn|\ ay} Jo uoisiaold Burom pue aoeid ul pasueyus
ainyny 8y} 10} S|opow juswabeuew aAjoaY8 Jsow S| 92IAJ9S SWNASN|\[|  SI UOYeUISAP JOYISIA
ay} aujwlajap 0} 0} Buiobuo sI oA\ “ue|d 8yesodio) e jo uoisiroid ayy Joy e se uonjiubooal
¥1/£10Z @Y} Ul ainseaw Ajiapenb mau e si siy| 1obie} up 1ob1e) U poob si ybiH yoeoudde ainjnj /|  s,J10uLiSIp J8)SeOUET

sjuswwo

puail

lenj}oy

v102/€102
Z 19yenp

puaiy lenyoy

vioz/eLoe
| 18)end

¥102¢/€10¢ ¢ 481enp

puaiy lenyoy

€102/2102C
¥ Jauenp

puail

€10e/Z10C
¢ 19yenpd

uoday puaa] Ajieyenp ueld ajesodion

len}oy

[enjoy

€102/2102C
Z 18yenp

Ayiejod

Y}MOI5) djWouod]

ainses

uoljewioyu] ainsea




Page 182

¥ 40  oBed

¥1-glue|dejelodio)

€1L0¢C ¢¢:ve:GlL €210 PaM

"paIgjue pey jeyy
SWwies)} a8y} ||e WoJj SJUsWWOD 9|qeinoAe) A1eA paAieoal
JusA®e ay] “Jesk siyy AInp ul paieAljep pue pasiuebio

saweD) YinoA
[euoneuIslU| 8Y} JO

selIAjoe
ainsis| pue spods

A|IN}SS800NS SBM €| 0Z SSWES) YINOA [eUOljeuldiu] ayl 1obue} up poob si ybiH| AieAlep |nyss80ong uy uonedoed
‘Z Jeuenp saljIAloe Aq panoidwi si
ul saljIAloe ainsig| pue suods Bulpusaye sjdoad ainsio| pue spods ul| sabe ||e Jo sjuapisal
10 Jaqwinu ay} asealoul o} padjay sey Jayjeam Jawwns Bunedionied sjdoad |eoo] jo Bulagem
poob 8yl ‘y1/g10z Ul ainsesw Auspenb mau e si syl & 9e5°'eee & GG9'G6L &J 0 &J 0 0 pooB si ybiH | Jo Jequinu pasealou] pue yjesy syl
‘Buipuny ajdoad
AujieaH sewoH wie A ybnody [10unod 8y} Jo jeyaq
uo sanIAloe Bupjepspun osfe aie sisuped [eussixg SaAljEeljUI
*Z JHEND Ul pasSEaIdU] SeY [IoUN0D 8y} JO UORUSAIS}UI SSWOH WIepp
8y} woJj pajyauag aAey Jey} spjoyasnoy jo Jaquinu wouy Bunyauaqg
ay] 'sawoy pajual ajeAud pue paldnooo Jaumo ul Bulall spjoyasnoy
sjuapisal 8|gelau|nA Jo} YWIEM JO |[8A3] 8y} Buiroidw a|geJau|nA
Je pawie sawayos sapnjoul ainseaw Alapenb siy & 0Lz & 861 z G/ & A4 6 poob sI ybiH| Jo Jequinu pasealou|
"SleWl|o OIWOoU029 JNJIYIP ousip syy
juaLINd 8y} audsap siapenb snoinaid uo paonpal ul a|doad s|gelaujna
sey j1ou3sIp 8y} ul 9jdoad ssajswoy Alojnie)ls Jo Jaquinu 10} paonpal
8y} Jey) sajeolpul g Japuenp Ul 9dUBWIOHS *,SSajaWwoy 1ousIp ay) ul sidoad sajel Ajjepow pue
Aiojnieys, se pajdedoe usaq aAey jey} S|enNpIAIpU ssajawoy jo Jaquinu|  parosdwi Buiagiiem
Jo Jaquinu AlJepenb ay) sejeolpul ainseaw Siy | z 9l R 62 R 4 z /L cl poob s| Mo ul uononpay pue yjesH
'sjuedno2o0 Jo o]
Jo Ajijenb sy} Buioueyus panoidwi ussq aaey sawoy
10 Jaquinu ybiy e jey} sayedlpul Zo Ul dduewlopad Buisnoy Ayjenb poob
‘UojUBAIB}UI S,[19UN0Y 8y} ybnolyy parosdwi usaq 0} ssa2oe ybnouy)
aAey jey) sawoy pajual ajeaud pue paidnddo Jaumo sawoy| sjuapisal [e20] JO a|
J0 Jaquinu 8y} Bunesipul ainseaw Apauenb e si siyl & 690°L & G/S z felote} & GG £eG poob si ybiH| parosdwi jo JaquinN| jo Ayijenb paoueyug

sjuswwo

|enjoy puai]

€10e/Z10C
¢ 19yenpd

puaa] lenjoy

€102/2102C
¥ Jauenp

puaa] |enjoy

v102/€102
Z 19yenp

lenyoy puaiy

vioz/eLoe
| 18)end

¥102/€10Z Z 191end
Hoday puai] Ajauenp ueld ajesodion

[enjoy

€102/2102C
Z 18yenp

Ayiejod

Bulaqiiam @ ysleaH

ainses

uoljewioyu] ainsea




Page 183

Appendix C

Corporate Financial Monitoring
Quarter 2: July — September 2013

Report of: Financial Services Manager



Page 184

1 Introduction

This monitoring report for 2013/14 sets out an indicative corporate picture of the Council’s
financial performance for the period ending 30 September 2013.

The report summarises the budgetary variances arising through services’ monitoring, and
also identifies any omissions, updates and/or actions required. In addition there are
various other specific sections for salary monitoring, capital expenditure and financing, the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA), revenue collection performance and various reserves.
The content and format of this report will continue to evolve, to draw on both national and
local finance matters.

2 General Fund Revenue Monitoring

11  General Fund Summary Position

The current overall General Fund summary position shows that at the end of September
0 there is a net underspend of £383K (Qitr1 £152K underspend) against the budget. This
is currently forecast to increase to £506K (Qtr1 £239K underspend) by the end of the

year.
Annual Profiled Actual Current
Budget Budget £000’s Underspend
£000’s £000’s £000’s
Salaries 16,590 8,206 8,065 (141)
Other Net Budgets 3,229 (1,907) (2,149) (242)
Total 19,819 6,299 5,916 (383)
Full Year Projection (506)

1.2 Main Budget Variances

Annex A details the major true variances identified to date that have been included within
individual services’ monitoring reports. The variances reported are either +/- £5K in value
and cover premises, transport, supplies and services and general income. A summary is
provided in the following table.

SUMMARY BY SERVICE Current Current Future
£000’s Year Years
Projection  Projection
£000’s £000’s
() Favourable / + Adverse

Environmental Services (80) (21) +1
Governance (102) (108) (16)
Health & Housing (29) (11) +20
Regeneration & Planning (3) (13) +52
Resources (28) (3) (91)
TOTAL VARIANCES (242) (156) (34)

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 1



1.3

1.4

Page 185

It should be noted that one specific variance of +£52,200 has arisen in relation to the
charging on bins and boxes within Environmental Services. The overspend is due to a
combination of having to replace a significant number of the first batch of bins the Council
provided (due to them breaking) and the fact that charging has not yet been introduced.
The original Budget Council resolution on 27 February approved charging subject to it
being given further consideration by Cabinet. As a result savings of £60K were added to
the 2013/14 budget and £80K per annum for future years.

Cabinet will be asked to consider when to implement charging as part of the Fees and
Charges report which will be presented to Members in December.

General Fund Salary Monitoring

Salary monitoring is reported separately, as in aggregate terms any variances can have
significant effect.

To date total savings of £229K (Qfr2 2012/13 - £376K) have been achieved, which is some
£141K (Qtr2 2012/13 - £291K) above the £88K profiled turnover target. This allows for the
recently approved 1% pay award. A very simple projection would indicate that salary
savings could reach around £350K (Qtr1 £200K) by the end of the year, but a more
detailed review is currently underway to analyse vacant posts to give a more accurate
savings projection.

The following graph shows the savings on a Service by Service basis.

Office of the Chief Executive
Resources

Regeneration & Planning
Governance Services
Environmental Services

Health & Housing Services

-£60,000 -£50,000 -£40,000 -£30,000 -£20,000 -£10,000 £0

In terms of future years, staffing implications will be included in specific budget proposals.
On the downside, however, the recent triennial review of the Pension Fund to inform future
employer contribution rates is expected to result in additional cost pressures. This will be
reported to Members in due course.

£4,000K

o3 c00k £3,546K
Future Years’ Savings Requirements ES’OOOK
The targets have been updated to £2,500K
reflect the report to Cabinet in October, £2,000K £3,478K
following the latest Government £1,500K £1937K
consultation on funding. £1,000K

£500K £1,203K

The earlier table shows that there are 0K canic Y oo,
indicative on-going net savings of £34K 2014/15 2015/16

(excluding staffing) in future years.

O Remaining Savings Target

M Current Projected Savings

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 2



Page 186

This is a reduction of £76K on the Qtr1 forecast, mainly as a result of additional water
charges and reductions in income.

Clearly, the savings to date do not yet make assumptions regarding the various service
reviews and other planned budget reduction actions, so the £34K it is not yet representative
of the progress being made.

2 General Fund Capital Programme
2.1 Capital Expenditure & Financing
At the end of September there were spend and commitments of £2.249M against the
programme of £5.944M. Details of spend against each scheme is shown at Annex B.
Two changes to the capital programme have been £6,000K
approved in this quarter in respect of the following:
£5,000K
o Teal Bay Flood Defence Works £71K: Cabinet 23
July 2013. £4,000K £3,695K
o 2012/13 slippage £438K: Cabinet 23 July 2013. £3,000K
It should also be noted that updates will be made for £2,000K
vehicle purchases under delegated powers, as and
when all orders have been completed. £1,000K
In addition, there has still been no update to the £0K
programme in respect of Lancaster Market, but this will O Budget Remaining
be reported back to Council in due course. B Spend & Commitments
In terms of financing, receipts of £71K (£50K relating to vehicle sales) have been received
from the total £9.443M required to finance the 2013/14 capital programme. The main
receipt relating to land at South Lancaster is still outstanding and as such, various schemes
wholly funded by Council resources are still on hold.
The performance of the Council’s property portfolio has strong linkages with capital
investment and financing, and therefore at this point attention is drawn to the Property
Group report at Appendix E, provided alongside this financial monitoring report.
3 Revenue Collection Performance
3.1 Collection Fund Monitoring
3.1.1 Council Tax Yield (Total Collectable)

This section provides a summary analysis of the current surplus or deficit on the Fund,
shown in the table below. Such a surplus or deficit arises because of the great many
changes in liability that occur throughout the year. Furthermore, any difference between
estimated and actual collection performance will ultimately have a bearing.

The table goes on to compare budgeted council tax yield, or total amount collectable, with
the yield position as at 30 September:

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 3



Page 187

£000’s
Collection Fund Surplus (September 2013) (1,320)
Represented by:
Collection Fund Surplus b/fwd (365)
In-Year Movements to Date:
Lower Council Tax Support than estimated (£955K) total in-year (392)
Lower Second/Empty Homes income surplus +68
Other Movements in Tax Base (631)
(1,320)
Compared to: Budgeted Actual
Projection Position
£000’s £000’s
Total Council Tax Collectable (Yield) 57,030 58,014
Actual amount collected (33,371) (33,371) 57.5%
Amount Outstanding 23,659 24,643 (984)

As at 30 September, an estimated surplus of £1.320M (Qtr1 £1.144M) is apparent, which is
significantly higher than for the same period last year, and an increase of £176K on the
Qtr1 position.

This year’s position is made up of:

- asurplus brought forward from 2012/13 of £365K;

- £392K lower than estimated council tax support. This will continue to fluctuate as
claimants’ circumstances change, but since establishing the scheme proposals back in
the autumn/winter of 2012, the trend is still that the total support being claimed is lower
than expected;

- £68K lower than estimated income from second/empty homes. There is still no clear
analysis as yet to show how much of this relates to empty homes being brought back
into use, and how much is due to other changes in circumstances.

This leaves a balance of £631K (Qtr1 £475K) relating to other movements in the tax base
or other factors which have still to be substantiated. It is still proving difficult to determine
the factors generating this element of the surplus; this is a high priority for officers. This
links to issues being experienced in completing the Government’s annual Council Tax Base
return (CTB1). Other councils are also experiencing difficulties.

Nonetheless, the table clearly demonstrates that currently, overall yield is higher than was
forecast in setting the 2013/14 budget. Although as yet it does not align exactly with the
current in-year surplus on the Collection Fund, (£984K compared to £955K), given the
complexities it is within reasonable tolerances.

Any Collection Fund surplus or deficit is shared between the relevant precepting bodies and
the City Council’s share is 13%; based on the current estimated surplus, this would amount
to £171K (the equivalent of almost 2% in city council tax terms). As various figures have
yet to be substantiated, this has not been allowed for against future years’ savings targets
(section 1.4 of this report).

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 4



Page 188

3.1.2 Business Rates Yield (Total Collectable)

Following the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme, it is still the intention to
include a new section in future monitoring reports to assess business rate yield against
original projections and funding assumptions, and what this may mean for the Council and
the major precepting authorities going forward. A little progress has been made, however
there is still more work needed in this area, in order to understand fully the implications, but
the work needs to fit with other priorities and demands.

3.2 Council Tax and Business Rates Collection

The council tax collected is slightly below target. This is considered more a reflection of the
opportunity for taxpayers to pay by 12 rather than 10 installments and the levy of additional
charges on long term empty properties, rather than any direct impact resulting from welfare
reform changes. Encouragingly though, the percentage of NNDR collected is still ahead of
target at the end of the second quarter.

Percentage 2012/13  2013/14 2013/14  2013/14
Collected % % Target Actual
% % Status
All Years In Year

Council Tax 53.4 52.5 58.2 57.5 Slightly
behind
Target

Business Rates 59.5 59.8 59.3 60.3 Ahead of
target

3.3 Sundry Debts

This section sets out the latest position on the level of outstanding sundry debts (excluding
Council Housing). At the end of September the total debt outstanding was just over £2.7M,
which is £191K more than the previous quarter. This is mainly due to half yearly invoices
being raised prior to the end of September.

June 13 Sept 13

Analysis of Aged Debt

£000’s £000’s £1,200K
0-28 days 591 808 £1,000K
29-58 days 142 152 £800K
59-90 days 435 128 £600K
91-182 days 186 415 £400K
183-363 days 310 274 £200K I I I
364+ days 898 976 oK i = 1 I
2,562 2,753 0-28 29-58 59-90 91-182 183-363 364+
Previous Year 2,977 2,748 days  days  days days days  days

B Mar-13 HJun-13

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 5



Page 189

Enviromental Services E

i 1 O< 28 Days
Resources :_ O28-59 Days
& | o60-91 Days
Health & Housing I m92-183 Days
1 B 184-364 Days
Regeneration & Planning m 365+ Days
Governance ‘
£0 £250,000 £500,000 £750,000 £71,000,000 £1,250,000 £1,500,000

Attached at Annex C is an update on the status of debt greater than 90 days old. This
shows what action is being taken in relation to the debt and at what stage the recovery is
at.

4 Welfare and Housing Benefit Reforms

The Government’s welfare reforms represent the most fundamental changes to the benefits
system since the creation of the welfare state. While the reforms are intended to reduce
dependency on social security and to encourage employment, they also play a key part in
the Government’s deficit reduction strategy — to generate projected savings of more than
£15 billion per year across Britain by the end of this Parliament.

Details of the various changes and their current impact are set out in detail at Annex D.
This provides updates on issues such as the Council Tax Support Scheme, Under
Occupancy Penalties, Discretionary Housing Payments and Universal Credit.

5 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1 HRA Revenue Position

At the end of September the position for the HRA shows an underspend of £16K (Qtr1

0 +£55K overspend) against the profiled budget, which is currently projected to become
an overspend £73K (Qfr1 £87K overspend) by the end of the year. Details of the
variances are as follows:

SERVICE AREA Current Current Future
£000’s Year Years
Projection Projection
£000’s £000’s
() Favourable / + Adverse
Central Control — rent +7 +7 +1
Central Control — contracted services* +3 +38 ?
Central Control — service charges recovered (7) (8) ?
Central Control — services charges : Telecare** 0 +24 +24
Insurance premiums 11) 11 11)
Mgt & Admin — printing & stationery (8) (7) (7)
Council Housing Rents *** 0 +30 +11
Total (16) +73 +18

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 6



5.2

Page 190

*As a result of the changes in future provision of Lancashire Telecare and Supporting
People, additional costs will be incurred to establish robust disaster recovery and business
continuity arrangements.

**The number of Lancashire Telecare referrals received from the County Council has
significantly reduced during the period leading up to the County determining options for the
future provision of the service. As a result the budgeted income for the current year will
need to be revised down during the next budget process. Regarding future years, the
Council will have decisions to take regarding its involvement in this activity.

***Rental income from council houses is projected to be down slightly as a result of higher
than anticipated property sales, as reported in Qtr1.

Council Housing Rent Arrears

This section monitors the level of tenant arrears, to indicate any impact from welfare
reforms and/or the wider economy on rent collection and in turn, to inform whether any
specific actions are necessary. It will also feed into future reviews of the bad debt
provision.

The following chart shows the current level of arrears compared to the previous 4 years.
At the end of September, the level of arrears for 2013/14 is £254K which is unchanged from
the previous quarter despite several fluctuations.

Annex D (s8.3) refers to the introduction of the Council Tax support scheme having a
negative impact on Housing Benefit processing times in the first quarter of the year, which
may explain the higher than anticipated level of arrears and the subsequent reduction as
processing times improved. This will continue to be monitored but it is too early to
determine any full year likely impact, or reach any other conclusions.

Tenants Arrears by Year

£350,000
£300,000 | ; .
~ ,”’/ A i f[\\'h N\
o \ J g il §
. \/,r\)_/ / ¥ \\ ﬁ
2013/14 / T ™
\ Wi  Ngp—
£250,000 | ) \ R
\ /\ / \ / 2012/13
\ I/ / \ | \ o N\ \
/ @ ‘ \ / _\\ / sl \ \.\ /_/, \.\ \
7 2 = A} ANV s / \ £ 5 )
il W W e 2 - A W @ VoY A\
e et B A 7oL = S - 3
£200000 | : /(. == _ s \ A\
J s J 2010/11
/ 2011/12
V4
/7
£150,000
——————— Quarter 2 ——

£100000 L v o e b e e e e e e
1 8 5 7 9 1M 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35 37 39 41 43 45 47 49 51 53

Collection Weeks

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 7



Page 191

5.3 HRA Capital Programme

This section analyses actual spend and commitments against the Council Housing Capital
Programme at the end of September. To date spend and commitments total £2.146M
against a budget of £4.843M leaving a balance of £2.697M. As with General Fund, the
HRA programme has now been updated for slippage.

Current Spend & Budget
Approved Commitments Remaining
Programme to Date £000’s
£000’s £000’s £6,000K
Adaptations 300 63 237
Energy Efficiency / Boiler 660 150 510 £5,000K
Replacement
Bathroom / Kitchen
Refurbishment 644 337 307 £4,000K
External Refurbishments 1,269 796 473 £2,697K
Environmental Improvements 900 326 574 £3,000K
Rewiring 83 27 56 £2 000K
Fire Precaution Works 300 39 261 ’
Lift Replacement 110 0 110 £1.000K
Re-roofing / Window Renewals 544 397 147
PV Solar Panels 21 0 21 £0K
Total Mobile Upgrade 12 11 1 O Budget Remaining
TOTAL 4,843 2,146 2,697 B Spend & Commitments

6 Provisions and Reserves

This section provides an update on key provisions and reserves, and balances.

6.1 General Fund Unallocated Balance

The current position with regards to unallocated Balances is set out below.

£000’s

Original projected balance as at 31 March 2013 2,635
Add: 2012/13 underspend 547
Less: Carry forwards (subject to full approval) (101)
Add: Budgeted Contribution for 2013/14 367
Add: Current Projected In-Year Underspend 506
Latest Projected Unallocated Balance as at 31 March 2014 3,954
Minimum Level 1,000
Amount Available to Support Future Years’ Budgets 2,954

The table shows that if the current projected net underspending materialises Balances
would be £3.954M (Qir1 £3.687M) by the end of the financial year, which leaves £2.954M
(Qtr1 £2.687M) to support future years’ budgets, after allowing for the minimum approved
levels.

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 8



6.2

6.3

Page 192

Insurance Provision

The current balance on the insurance provision is £383K, after making net payments of
£85K in settlement of claims made. The estimated value of claims outstanding is £222K,
which is £161K less than the current provision. A full review of the provision will be
undertaken as part of the current budget process.

Bad Debt Provision

The Bad Debt provision is formally reviewed half yearly at revised estimate time and
closedown. In addition, quarterly updates are now provided as part of the Corporate
Monitoring process.

The level of the provision has been assessed in simple terms based on assumed levels of
write-off as a proportion of debt outstanding. Based on the figures shown in section 3.3 the
level of provision would be as follows:

Period Debt % Cover Value
£000’s Required £000’s
Up to 1 Month 808 1% 8
1 Month to 3 Months 280 5% 14
3 Months to 365
Days 689 10% 69
Over 365 Days 976 50% 488
TOTAL 2,753 579

The current balance on the General Fund Bad Debt provision is £589K (Qtr1 £609K) which
is £10K (Qtr1 £75K) above the requirement indicated, but that is after allowing for this
year’s contribution of £100K and write-offs of £70K. Currently, therefore, the balance is
considered reasonable but the prospects for recovery of increasing levels of HB
overpayments (see Annex A) will need more detailed consideration over the coming
months.

Exceptions to Tender

In accordance with the latest approved contract procedure rules (updated January 2013),
all exceptions to tender will be reported as part of the quarterly corporate monitoring
process.

Exemptions were granted for the following contracts in the second quarter of the year:

Contract: Lancaster Square Routes — Centre Piece for Market Square, Lancaster.

Reason for Exception: For procurements over £100K tenders should be openly
advertised, however this request was to carry out a restricted tender process with eleven
selected contractors who could undertake the bespoke commission required. Officers did
not believe that the artists with the required skills for this project would be registered on
“The Chest” which is the council’s portal used for open tenders.

Although the request was granted the tender has subsequently been let on an open basis
following communication from the funding body ERDF. This is despite initial meetings with

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 9



Page 193

ERDF officers where the council’s original procurement route was discussed and no issues
were raised.

8 Risk Management

No other major risk changes have been highlighted in the period to 30 September. There
have been positive developments regarding Luneside East and key asset sales,
subsequent to that date. Otherwise, in very broad terms it is still considered that the main
risks facing the Council are linked to meeting its future financial challenges.

Separately, the Council’s risk management arrangements are currently being audited and
this may result in some changes in due course, including reporting arrangements.

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 10



Annex A

Page 194

‘(uin1ano Jad se) “Aysianiun

000'ST+
AQ paJinbaJ s32Ud21| JO JaQWINU U] UOIIINPAIL 01 BNP DY £00T J2PUN SWOIU| 934 SDIUIN| SAsIWId paonpay

‘pasinaJ je palepdn 198pnqg AJuno) wouy swodul 3jdoad SunoA pue ualp|iyd o+

"dS7 40 umopaso|d 03 Joddns ujwpe 4o} Sulpund SBWOH PU0IaS SululBWSJ WOJ) SWOIU| [BUOCIHPPY O+
‘s3ulAes Jouiw snoliep (000°S)

‘paiedidlue ueyl SS9 S9OUBMO|| JO [9A3] JUaLun) (00Z‘0T)

'S}S00 2JEMOS Ul UOIIONPAJ UM JDY312803 S3YIJeaS ||N4 JO JaqUINU Ul 9SeaIdoul panujauo) (009°9T)

'3|qeJ4noney
Ajpuauund aue saoud el snidins e ajesauad osje Ayuno) ays Joy sqol paoud snid sasnjdins Sunesauad ¢ ¢
SNyY3 S91BWIISS UBY) JOMO| 53502 1B pala|dwod aJe sqol 9say| "sqol |eulajul uo pasn sajed |1ouno) Aluno)

‘panalyoe aq

p|noys aouelieA 103foud usyl Jueisuod Aels 9o1d pjnoys *sao1ud sieaA 1se| yim Jualsisuod Ajpuauind ao1d [an4 (002°99)

"98eyealq 01 anp paoe|dal aq 01 pey dABY PaNss] 3¢ 03 Sulq 1S4} dY3 JO Jaquinu Juedusis ,
B UYoIyMm sapisag "19A se pajuawa|dwl uaaq j0u Sey Saxoq pue suiq Joj Suidieyd adnpoJiul 03 uoisIaQg 00c'es*
‘PaAOWI UOISIA0IC-I9A0 ‘SUINIINO snoiAaud uo paseqg (000°S)
'S1500 |esodsip 91sem pue 10esiu0d A1undas :aJ sSulnes (00L‘ZT)
JuawaaJSe JuswaSeuew |euISIIO Y3 WOJ) djeSYJed WOJ) 94eyS 1jodd 0+

ded Je) 193115

POO/ JO 24NSO[D BY3 40} SBI|IIN PAMUN WO} uolresuadwod Ag 135440 9 0} ZD PUe TD Ul SWOodUl padnpay o+

*S|9A9| 8ul8aeyd JuaJnd Uo paseq $3s0d pue uondwnsuod padnpal - Aud119(3 (00€°LT)

‘paJinbas uaym pue se paseydind ag MOU [|IM Sulg ‘PIIeUILLID] SUIg J213| M3U JO UoISIAoid Joj 10eJU0D (000°0T)

*€T/2T0Z 01 Je[iwis aq 01 pa3dadxa uin1INo - AWouodd 03 aNp Suluunl JesA puodas Joj UMOP SWOdU| 000‘0T+
'$398pnqg ulyum padeuew 3¢ [|IM UOIINGIIIUOD J19Y] UO UOIIB|JUI 9Z33J4 01 [12uUn0) AJuno) soueq Ag uolisidag O+

._uwwumaxw jJuswanosdwi ucmu_u__cw_m ou Awouods 01 2Np JaAaMOY ssaulsng Mau joedqie

0} 243440 Bulag SIAIUIIUI SNOLIBA - €T/ZTOT Ul %ZT 03 patedwod a3l Adueden %/ T e Supualadxa Ajjualind iy

‘swooy Ajquiassy Jo Aduednddo Jo uonanpay 00T L+

000'ST+

(000°08)

(0059)
(000°6)
(0oos‘ot)

(0099T)

éé

(00£99)

00¢‘cS+

(000°s)
(0ooLzT)

(002'T2)
o+

(009°8T)
(0ooo‘0t1)

000°0z+

o+

00Lee+

00TL+

o+

(000°08)

0+

(00£9)

(ootr‘s)

(009°6)

(00Z'vET)

(008‘c?)

000°GE+

(000°s)
(00g°)

00v‘z+
00€ T+

(009°8)
(ooo‘0T)

000°0z+

006+

00L'6T+

00T L+

(SLNIINOD ¥3D1440 431HD) SSID0Yd L1¥d HONOYHL AILYOdIYH STIINVINVA
a|geinoney = () asIaApY = +

3

uoiafosd uondaloud
Jea\
juauN)

uaye) Sulaq uonY g AdUeLIEA 10} UOSEY Sieaj

aining

3

3

?1eq 01
aoueriep

$994 Sasiwald Suisuadi

suonnquiuo)
Auno) - saaneniu| sdiysiauned g ajesodio)

suolINguIu0) Ajuno) - wea] sdiysiaunied
1UsWaSeU.A SIIIAIDS d13RIO0WR(Q]

sasuadx3 sioquialy

awodu| 934 yaleas

shemysiH

[an4 - S32IYSA

saxog 18 sulg - U0I123]|0D) dISeA\

s|ela1eN - NINA
10daQ puni auym

|eJaudD BW0dU| - SHJed JeD) 19941S-10
Suiyled Suluang pue saa4 - syded Jed) 199.15-40

SN - SHIed 18D 19311S-10
5|00 g uawdinb3 - Suluea|) 193415

awoou| Aiasiny

uonnquIuo) Aluno) - wieay dlgnd

3W0dU| - 19)4B|Al SqWEIAIOIN

2WO0dU| sJaped| 193115 13 1. Ajquiassy

ealy 9JINIDS

(¥1/€102 2 1D) STONVIUVA YOrvIN ANNL TVHINIO 40 AUVINNNS

92UBUJANOD)

S |eUaWIUOJIAUT

S2INID

9JIAI9S



Page 195

'199J1S pjog uo
sa8eJen aUAPIIIUIN 34 U EIIBPUN ¢ 01 PIBU 1BY] SHJOM UoIH|owap Aduadiawa 03 sa1e|aJ adueleA 398png 0*
‘pPaysiginial awayds suapJen Yyuomsieyd Jo ¢ pue T aseyd

pue se pajediiw aq 01 pa12adx3 “IN0 sunu ulpuny YIH Se SpJemuo 9T/STOZ Wody Y9'€STF 01 Suisl ST/¥T0T
ul [|ejuoys 193png Y6°G93F JoAsmoy ‘pT/€T0¢ Ul Suipuny yOH Ag 19si40 "siesA z ueyl atow Ardws Sulaq

01 anp sadieyd aley/xe] |1DUNO) pasea.dul pue saijiadold Ajdws JO Uo11eIO0IB1BP 01 BNP |\ 7@ Y PAseaJdu|

00659+

"€T/ZT0T Ul 404 P2198PNG SeM YdIYM yT/ET0T Ul PIAIDIDI BWODU| O+

*921AI3S 91eAlld

e Sulianlap s1030adsul panoidde wouy uoiadwod |eusalxa 01 anp paAlddal suonedljdde Sulieaq a9} Joma4 0089¢+

‘193Jew ul uinidn sas4 uonediddy Suiuue|d (000°0S)

‘s1edA unoj 1sed ay3 404 awodUl [|ed9A0 Y] Suliedw0d UBYM PasEDIIIP SeY IIAIIS [0J43U0D)

‘TT+
159 9Y3 40} puewa( "JeaA 1se| 03 uosiiedwod Ul s3sad Ul 9seaJou] Ue 03 Pa| JSSWWNS Y} Ul JaY1eam panosdw| 006°TT

Nev3F

01 SuipUNOWe 3seaJdul Ue 3g P|NOM 43y} Wed} SalIa3aWa) ayy Aq sjeadde Aue 3noyan "1913] a84eyd |euly
pue sjeadde 0 awo023In0 3y} SulliemMe aJe Wea) 3y} Pue sieaj 9 JOA0 Ul paseyd aq 03 S| aseaJdul ay] "¥T0T
[4dy WOJ} SIIAIDS J23BM 10} 981BYD Ul 9SEAIIU] UB JO WEed) S214919WaI Y} PAWIOUl dARY S3IM|IAN payuN

000°Ci+

‘(sBuines Agpueis Suipn|axa) uonesado
9JeD 9y3 JejndiJed Ul 1Ng SEaJE SWOS Ul SWOJU [BUOIIIPPE PUB 34N}puUadXa Ul SSUIABS ||BWS JO UOIIRUIqWIOD)

(000Y)
‘syuswAed 1no ||ed Aq puels a4 sejod/sussiied upjiom o1 sesueyd (00Z°LT)
*s4241y 1eAld pajj@oue) 00y s+

‘uonnowoud Ayjoey pue sadAy diysiaquisw jo JuswaSeuew pialA panosdwi 01 anp sawodul paseaJdu] (005‘87)

‘paJojdxa Suiaq suondo Suins|-aJ ‘paleden aje) O+

‘[udy wouy J04 pa1a8png usaq AjjeuldiIo pey yaiym siliel

4
Ul paaj woJy awodul Supnpold mou aJe pue Jagquwialdas ul PauoIssIWodal 34aMm aJAY }es e sjaued Jejos ay | 0

's984eyd 9onpaJ 01 swaisAs adeulesp syl 22npaJ 0} PaJo|dxad S9UNSEIW PUE SBaJe SWOS Ul PaMaIAal Sulaq
2Je sa8uey) "9 Jeah uly/ SyF 01 9su Ajjennualod pjnod pue ul paseyd aq [jIm sadiey) ‘sadieyd aSeulelp pue 00Z'ST+
J91BM 32B4INS S3IM|IIN PAMUN 3|ge(|0JIUOIUN JO UOIIRUIGWIOD B S| PUB 91BWIISS UE S| 3duelieA pajdafoud siyl

*S|00YdS AJeWid YLM S313IAIIOR [BUOIIIPPE SWOS JO }NS3J B S S99} UOISSIWPE Ul 9seaJdu| (005)

006+

0+

(00€'6)
008'9E+

(0000S)

006'TT+

00%'G+

(oot‘z2)

(0068)

008°0T+
(00582)

00v'L+

00v'TT+

009°L+

(00s'9)

0+

00959+

(008'6)
00SvT+

(006CL)

(006°€T)

00€'T+

004+

(006°6¢€)
(00Z'Y)

008'€+

0009+

006LT+

(001'1)

(SLNIWIWOD 4321440 43IHD) SSID0Ud L¥d HONOYHL AILYOdIY STONVINVA
dJgeinoney = () 9SI9ApY = +

3

uondafosd uondafoid
ud)jel Sulaq uoldYy 7R SduelIe/ 10) uoseay Sleap
2ining

3

Jeaj
juann)y

3

aleq 01
queriep

199115 plog

1Uun022y Aladoud pu3 1sapn doeg Suluuipn

9AJI9S2Y 24NIEN POOAA UOIS|PPIA
awodu| s934 uonedlddy suolenday ulp|ing

aWodul [0J43u02 Juswdol|anag

9W0dU| - [0J1UO) 1Sed

S9JINISS J3)EAA - S9lUolaWa)

SeaJe SNOLIBeA - dJed uoswel|[Ipn

1noj|ea Ag-pueis
awoou| |00d WweysAay
2WO0dU| SUOIXa|4ay

948D djled uaday

QWOdUI VRBIN DSV'S

s934eyd 03 9seaJdul 491 1SeA Sulad|PM

$994 uoIssiwpy AlAIDY |eaisAyd 18 suods

ealy 92InI9S

Ad1j0d 13 uonesduasay

H '3 YijeaH

8uisno

9JIAI3S



Page 196

(009‘sg)
o+
(009°sg)

"a8e1s siy1 e uonisod 123pnq |esnau e sawnsse Ajdwis suondafoud - syjuswAedisnQ
gH 03 dduaJ34aJ U] "padinbau aq ||Im uoisinoad 1gap peq ayl 03 SUOIINGIIIUO0D Jaylny eyl patedidiiue si ¢

"MO|9q 935 - LI} 31BWIISS PISIASL 1B PIMIINDI
aq (1M 398pNg BYL "YSHTF SEM BWOIUI [BUCIIPPE Y] Je3A 15| 104 "198pNQ Pa9dXa 0 NUNUOD S3LIBA0IIY ©

*sJ03dadaud Jofew ||e Aq
3UJ0Q 3Je puE PuUN4 UOIII3||0D) AU} UO |[B) SISOD Ja1|aJ 3NN || "Pun{ |BIaUSD 3y} 03 98Jeyd 30aJ1p e Jaduo| oN (000’e6)
‘1pNne suJnjaJ pue sjuels |enuue Joj s3s0d PadNpay (000°ZT)
"91BWIIS3 pa|1404d 3yl MO|aq S| 1S9J93UI JUSWISSAUL JUSIIND O+
‘(Ss3uswadueyus 21403s1Y) pun{ uoisuad Aluno) o1 syuswAed pasnpay (009‘ST)
*dn 9.3 1ueua} Ul aseaJou| (00T‘9T)

‘(32u1geD AON - Hodas aAIsuayaldwod alow 23S 1) palewiss Japun 138png |euiSiO 0059+
"JeaA JO pua 0} PIDIOAUL SIUSJ AJYIUOW SIPN|IU] BDUBLIBA JUSLIND - dn 3 e} Jueud)} IO (00ST)
‘|I9M Sse GT/HT0Z Ul pa1dadxa awodul paonpaJ pue $T/£T0Z Ul 3uaJ Aue aA1a2a4 01 Aj@y1jun "Juedep 0000+

*Jol|2J 91k [RUOI}ISURIY Ul UOIDINPAY 00T L+

"€T0Z dunf wouj

19| 09 "pa123pnq Ajsnoinaud wody Juad padnpad e 1e y3noyyje Jeah 1xau 3uins|-al ajedidipue pue juedea 8G-9g oS+

‘(21403s1Y) S4BDA |RIDUBUL} US2MID] UOIIRIO||E SDI0AU] JO UOINIBII0) 0+

(009's0s)
(000‘0s€)
(009'ssT)

(00zZ'T6)

(000zT)
0067+

(009°cT)
(oot‘91)
00v'L+

(005%2)
0096+

00T L+

0008+

00S°LS+

(006°z8¢)
(000‘THT)
(006t¥2)

o+

(oot‘z8)

o+

0+
0009+
(00t"2)
000'v+
00v'L+
(008‘8%)
00T‘ET+

00T L+

00L'ST+

00825+

(SLNIWIWOD 4321440 43IHD) SSID0Ud L¥d HONOYHL AILYOdIY STONVINVA
dJgeinoney = () 9SI9ApY = +

3

uondafosd uondafoid
ud)jel Sulaq uoldYy 7R SduelIe/ 10) uoseay Sleap
2ining

3

Jeaj

uauin)

3

aleq 01
queriep

SIDNVIYVA TIVHINO
sSuines Asejes |jesan0

SIDNVIHVA TV1OL

uonNquIuod uoisiroid 1gaq peq

syjusawAedianQ gH : sanuanay

J91|19Y 91ey Aseuollaudsiq :Ssanuanay
s394 PNy

1S9J91U| JUSWIISIAU|

sjuawAed suoisuad

Juay - asnoy ,spJeuoa 1S

sajey - 91n3iasu| Aal01s

juay - gerhud

Ja1seoue ‘episdeay) §

SoleJ uollels sng Jeiseoue

aqWedalol ‘peoy uoisng

1UdY - S||IIN dueT JOoN

ealy 92InI9S

$92JN0S9Y

ELIISEN



Page 197

Annex B

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING REPORT

SERVICE

Environmental Services

Health & Housing Services

Regeneration & Planning

Resources

Total Gross Programme

Grants & Contributions

Allotment Improvements

Car Park Improvements Prog
Playground Imps/Facilities
Purchase of Vehicles

Toilet Works

Disabled Facilities Grants

YMCA Places of Change

Salt Ayre Works Programme
Warm Homes Scheme

Will Park Imps & Enhancements
Albion Mills S106 Affordable Housing
Amenity Improvements

Bold Street Renovation Scheme
Ffrances Passage

Great Places S106 Affordable Housing
Lancaster Square Routes
Luneside East

Morecambe Area Action Plan
Morecambe THI2 A View for Eric
Poulton Pedestrian Route

Sea & River Defence Works
Toucan Crossing King Street
West End Temp Car Park
Corporate Property Works

IT Systems, Infrastructure & Equip

Capital Contributions Income

Capital Grants Income

Total External Income from Grants & Contributions

Total Net Programme

2013/14
Gross
Budget

£
92,000
120,000
0
0
90,000
817,000
19,000
30,000
79,000
110,000
260,000
36,000
32,000
4,000
42,000
196,000
70,000
100,000
462,000
160,000
349,000
13,000
5,000
2,428,000
430,000
5,944,000

(38,000)
(1,518,000)
(1,556,000)

4,388,000

Actual to
Date

(102,104)
8,991
1,018,070

(55,555)
(1,124,488)
(1,180,042)

(161,972)

Commitments
(Outstanding
Orders)

70,353
71,163
1,231,171

o O O

1,231,171

Total

0
0

(5,122)
1,525,286
0
381,952
18,023

0

24,852
14,050

0

5,278
9,877
3,157

0

28,741
40,079
3,635

(31,751)
80,153
2,249,242

(55,555)
(1,124,488)
(1,180,042)

1,069,199

Variance
+Overspend /
(Underspend)

£
(92,000)
(120,000)
(5,122)
1,525,286
(90,000)
(435,048)
(977)

(3,694,758)

(17,555)
393,512
375,958

(3,318,801)



Page 198

Annex C

panss| J8)}9| UOIlBUIWIS) B @ pajeulwld) usaq sey juswaalbe ay) g apew usaq jou aAey Juswaaibe ue Jad se sjusw|eisul 81aym - UOIJeUIWId | Judw|e}su|
panssl si 18}}9| Japuiwal B @ apew usaq Jou sey Juswaalbe ue Jad se Juswielsul ue alaym - Bujulepp Juswijelsui
panssi s 1a)19| Japulwal e g 1qap 8y} Aedal 0} apew usaq sey juswaalbe ou aIaym - Japuiwady puodag
panss! SI 9210AUl Japulwal ¥ 1gap 8y} Aedal 0] apew usaq sey juswaalbe ou a1aym - Japuiway sl
gH Bulobuo wouy A1lonooal Jo 10adsold si alay) ¥ paulwis}ap usaq 1aA jou sey (gH) Hjeuag BuisnoH Joj wiejo e aiaym - Buipuad wie|
pabieyasip usaq sey Aoydnijueq ayy jyun papuadsns si 1gap ay} Jo A1oA09al 9 1dniyueq apew usaq sey Jolgap e alaym - Aoydnijueg
|jeadde ay} jo awo2ino ay} Buipuad papuadsns usaq sey Alanodal g JuswAediano ue Jo uoleald ay) jsulebe spew usaq sey [eadde ue ajoym - sjeaddy
}goq jyauag BuisnoH o3 Bunejas suonoy

L.¥'G99°L  [6LS OVl 20°'20€°L 92921 Wi'ZL L5121 €z.'9 9.%¥'G99°L BuipuejsinQ |ejoL
6Sv'CLZ°L [Lov'6El PSLLgL L €€.0l 0L1°L 6Sv'2LT')L sjyeusg BuisnoH
958°C 068'¢C 958°¢ 80UBUIBAOY)
¥61'02C 09808 919G 0L‘19 Zv9'ol LLS'Y 61022 seolnes Auedold
BuisnoH
€609 1% /EL°G /19 2609 o1belens 3 yjesH
uonesjsiuiLpe uj|SEL‘9GL LLLL 099'86 YZy'vs 868 9¢0'lL GEL'9G L S9JIAISS |ejuswWUOIIAUS
ov.l'9 09 £8¢€°9 162 0.9 Ao1j0d pue uonelsusboy
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
paaiby sjuaby (p1o sAep

suoseay juawijejsuj pansind Aianooau uol1399||09 06 19A0) 3q2Q

| uonay | PaA1RDRY Buiaq |eba 1oy j9eq HO uapuM | Buipueysino
Suoseay / Uoljay J3yjQ Uo SajoN VL0l 1Py10 juawied nsigqaq | (pas)iayey |03 (pas)ieyey | aq 03iqeq lejol 9JIAIS

S3JIAYIS A9 NaMV.L1 ONIFE NOILOV




Page 199

Annex D

Welfare and Housing Benefit Reforms

In response to various queries from Members and Committees, the following
overview has been prepared. This will be shortened in future reports, to focus on key
statistics only.

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

Council Tax Support

From 1st April 2013, the national scheme of Council Tax Benefit was
abolished and replaced with a localised Council Tax Support scheme. This is
funded by a cash-limited grant and therefore any increase in demand for
benefit over and above current levels will have to be funded by the Council
and maijor precepting authorities (County, Fire, Police).

The City Council decided not to reduce Council Tax Support levels for
2013/14, leaving entitlement at its previous level. However, the decision
comes at a cost and the Council is helping to fund the shortfall in grant for the
current year alongside other precepting authorities. In total for all authorities,
the shortfall is expected to be around £450K (less than anticipated).

To inform future decision-making, the Council has conducted a formal
consultation exercise throughout the summer, which closed on 13" October
2013. Results are currently being analysed and they will be reported to full
Council as part of the decision making process for next year’s scheme.

The Under Occupation Penalty or ‘Spare Room Subsidy’

Restrictions on housing benefit for claimants in social sector tenancies have
taken effect from April 2013. These affect working age customers living in
accommodation that is deemed to be too large for their needs.

The following size criteria reductions in Housing Benefit apply:
e 14% reduction where there is one bedroom more than is required
o 25% reduction where there are two or more bedrooms more than
required.

Latest information indicates that Lancaster has 608 affected customers
(reduced from 678 cases in July), creating a shortfall (additional rent
collectable) for Registered Social Landlords of £8K per week (£416K
annually). These cases include around 421 Council Housing cases, resulting
in additional rent collectable of around £5.5K per week (Note: Figures to 30
September).

The Benefit Cap

In March 2012 the Welfare Reform Bill introduced a Benefit Cap for working
age households. Households are defined to include the claimant and partner
and any dependants. The Benefit Cap has been set at:

o £500 per week (£26K per year) for couples (with or without children)
and lone parents.
e £350 per week (£18.2K per year) for single adults.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

Page 200

The Benefit Cap is administered by the Council, reducing Housing Benefit to
the value of the cap. A minimum weekly value of £0.50 Housing Benefit will
be left in payment to allow claimants to apply for a Discretionary Housing
Payment.

There are currently 31 cases in Lancaster (reducing from 39 cases reported in
July 2013, when the benefit cap was first implemented).

DWP wrote to all affected families to notify them of the cap, and home visits
were made by Visiting Officers starting in December 2012 to all affected
customers, ensuring that they were aware of this welfare reform and its impact
upon them. We have also been working very closely with Job Centre Plus
and they are available to discuss on-going issues. Any potential new cases
are referred to the Visiting Officer's in the Housing Benefit Team.

CAB offices in Lancaster and Morecambe offer help, advice and
budgeting/debt advice to customers affected by this reform in the local areas.
Some Registered Social landlords have also made resources available to
provide help to their affected tenants.

Discretionary Housing Payments

Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) are administered by the Council and
are paid to customers who are in receipt of or entitled to Housing Benefit
where there is a shortfall between the level of Housing Benefit and the amount
of rent charged.

From April 2013 Councils are no longer permitted to use DHP to meet the
costs of Council Tax; this is a consequence of the abolition of Council Tax
Benefit and its replacement with a localised scheme.

A panel of experienced senior officers sit to consider each case on its merits
determine the award. Discretionary Housing Payments are typically provided
for a temporary period to help people over a difficult period or to find
alternative accommodation.

To support welfare reform changes the Government has significantly
increased its Discretionary Housing Payments contributions to Councils for
2013/14. Lancaster receives £211K and to date has granted £82.5K covering
297 cases (192 successful applications). A further 22 cases are pending,
awaiting consideration.

Authorities across Lancashire are reporting a significant increase in DHP
applications and it is anticipated that pressure upon the scheme will increase
in the latter part of the financial year as rent pursuance action increases and
the effects of the benefit cap are felt.

Local Welfare Provision: The Care and Urgent Needs Support Scheme
The new Care and Urgent Needs Support Scheme administered by LCC
commenced on 2 April 2013 replacing those elements of the Social Fund no

longer administered by the DWP.

The function relates to the provision of financial assistance to customers who
have suffered a crisis (for example a fire, flood, theft etc.) and need urgent



5.3

6.1

6.2
6.3

7.2

7.3

8.2

8.3

Page 201

assistance or need support in establishing or maintaining a home (typically
with cost of white goods, furnishings etc.).

Across Lancashire expenditure has been around £101K. The low level of
expenditure is partly accounted for as a result of low demand, the use of food
parcels and recycled and low cost furniture.

Universal Credit and the Local Support Services Framework

DWP are currently piloting “Universal Credit” in four North West areas
including Ashton Under Lyne, Oldham, Warrington and Wigan. The national
roll-out scheduled for October 2013 has been delayed, and replaced with a
plan to roll out to a further 6 job centres. Lancaster is not included in this
latest list.

The target date for full implementation is 2017.

Under a Local Support Services Framework it is anticipated that the Council
will have a role to play in face to face contact, ensuring that support is
available to customers to claim online and in managing monthly payments.
This would extend to those customers with more complex needs.

Housing Benefit Processing

The Housing Benefit section is currently receiving an average of 110 new
claims per week. The caseload, as at October 2013 is running at 13,896
claims, a small decrease compared to July 2013 where the caseload was
13,965; this forms a reducing trend from July 2012 where the caseload was
14,082.

Current processing times for new claims in Quarter 2 are 20 days for new
claims and 12 days for changes in circumstances. The current local target is
23 days for new claims and 10 days for changes in circumstances.

Changes to the Housing Benefit rules and the introduction of the Council Tax
support Scheme have had a negative impact on some processing times at the
start of the financial year. However, as staff become more experienced in
dealing with the changes, we are confident that all targets will be met.

Potential Linkages with Council Tax Collection

To the end of September the Council Tax team has issued 7,990 first
reminders to late payers and 3,830 summonses for non-payment, very similar
statistics to the previous year.

Council Tax collection rates are down by 0.5% in comparison to the previous
year, but this is considered more a reflection of the opportunity for taxpayers
to pay by 12 rather than 10 instalments and the levy of additional charges on
long term empty properties, rather than any direct impact resulting from
welfare reform changes.

Wherever possible the team endeavour to make suitable arrangements with
taxpayers who make contact after receiving a recovery document and staff
have encouraged this new facility to pay over 12 months rather than 10, for
those customers who are struggling to pay their monthly instalments.



Page 202
Appendix D

2013/14 Treasury Management Progress Report to
30 September 2013

Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

Introduction

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires that regular monitoring
reports be presented to Members on treasury activities. These reports will normally be
presented after the end of June, September, December and March as part of the Council’s
performance management framework.

Council approved the 2013/14 Treasury Strategy, which incorporates the Investment
Strategy, at its meeting on 27 February 2013. This report outlines activities undertaken in
pursuance of those strategies during the financial year up to the end of Qtr 2.

Treasury management is a technical area. To assist with the understanding of this report, a
glossary of terms commonly used in Treasury Management is attached at Annex A. In
addition, the Councillor's Guide to Local Government Finance also has a section on treasury
and cash management and an updated Guide is now available through the Member
Information section on the Intranet.

Economic update (provided by Sector)

During the quarter ended 30 September: -

Indicators suggested that the economic recovery accelerated:;

Household spending growth remained robust;

Inflation fell back towards the 2% target;

The Bank of England introduced state-contingent forward guidance;

10-year gilt yields rose to 3% at their peak and the FTSE 100 fell slightly to 6460;
The Federal Reserve decided to maintain the monthly rate of its asset purchases.

Icelandic Investments Update

There was a fourth distribution from Landsbanki regarding the Council’'s investment,
representing 5.23% of the original claim, of which 53.9% has now been recovered.

The initial claim of £1.1m was converted into Icelandic Krona using the exchange rate on 22
April 2009 (191.08ISK:1GBP). Distributions to date have been based on this historic rate.
There has, however, been a dispute over which exchange rate should be used with the
Supreme Court now ruling that the exchange rate on the date of distribution should be used.
This exposes the Council to some further exchange rate uncertainties; the Icelandic Krona
has weakened against the other major currencies (GBP, USD, EUR) since April 2009,
although this could change in future.

The table below remains displays the outstanding balances.



Page 203

KSF Glitnir Landsbanki Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Deposit 2,000 3,000 1,000 6,000
Claim 2,048 3,173 1,121 6,342
GBP Payments received 1,618 2,508 585 4,711
Amounts still held in ISK 609 8 617
Total anticipated recovery
(%) 85.25% 100% 100%
Further payments due (%) 6.25% 0% 46%
Further payments due
(£000) 128 0 516 644
Total anticipated receipts 1,746 3,117 1,109 5,972

*These are earning interest but are also subject to currency fluctuations, these sums will be repatriated once Icelandic currency

controls allow.

There are no major changes to report. The Council still expects to recover around £6M,
equivalent to the value of the original investments. Furthermore, there is no substantive
progress to report as yet regarding the exempt matter first reported to Cabinet Members

back in July.

Current Borrowing Rates.

No new borrowing was undertaken during Qtr 2. Below is a graph of the PWLB rates for the

last six month ending 30 September 2013.

PWLE Rates - Last & months
5.5

5.0
4.5
4.0

3.5

Rate %

3.0

2.5

2.0

1.5

24.5yr - 25yr PWLE [new)

22-Mar  22-Apr 22-May  22-Jun  22-Jul  22-Aug

4.5yr - Syr PWLE [new) 9.5yr - 10yr PWLE[new )

22-Sep




Page 204

Officers continue to monitor potential saving opportunities associated with the early
repayment of existing debt. This takes into account the premiums or discounts associated
with early repayment and the projected cost of refinancing or loss in investment interest. At
present, there are no opportunities that could generate long term savings.

Investing Activities

As laid down in the approved Investment Strategy, the aim is to prioritise security and
liquidity of the Council’s investments. This is to ensure that the Council has sufficient cash to
support its business, but also to minimise any further chance of a counterparty failing and the
Council not being able to remove any cash deposited.

All investment activity has been in line with the approved Treasury Strategy for 2013/14. No
fixed term investments have been placed; surplus cash has been managed on a day to day
basis using the call accounts and Money Market Funds (MMF). A full list of the investments
at the end of Qtr 2 is shown below

Cumulative
Other Investments Opening Min Max Closing Indicative rate Interest
£
Call RBS £ 3000000 £ §32000 £ 3000p00 £ 932,000 0D.70% £ 7.B0Y
Call Barclays £ - £ - K - £ - 0.55% £ 182
Call: Lancashire County Council £ 10,080,000 £ 10080000 £ 12000000 £ 11410000 0.50% £ 2541
OMADF £ - £ - £ - £ - 0.28% £ 1585
Government Liquidity MMF £ - £ £ - K - 0.30% £ 1,404
Liquidity First MiF . £ 5570000 £ £ g,000000 £ - 0.39% £ 5918
Insight MiF £ 370000 £ £ 2712000 £ - 0.33% £ 3,834
Sub-total £ 18,630,000 £ 12342000 £ 44 516
Investment pattern for the prior 2 years
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
o 0 MMF
25,000,000 ~
° & DMADF
2 20,000,000 1, @ Call
®
8 15,000,000 q & Iceland
10,000,000 B Fixed
5,000,000
0
— — N o~ N N N N ™ ™ ™ ™
o o o o o o o o o o o o
N\ o o o o o N\ o o o o o
o N N < © 59 o N N < © 59
= = e e =~ e = = e e e =~
© © © © o ©o o o o o o o
Date

During the second quarter the Council has maximised its investment in the county call
account, as far as possible. Furthermore the account with RBS has been given preference,




Page 205

particularly over MMFs, due to the higher interest rate available. This consideration of return
is in view of the extent of RBS’ Government backing and the impact on security; it remains
part-nationalised but the position is closely monitored. If backing by the Bank of England is
removed, the bank’s associated credit ratings and other relevant information would take
precedence.

Summary of Budget Position and Performance

In terms of performance against external benchmarks, the return on investments compared
to the 7 day LIBID and bank rates over the year to date is as follows:

Base Rate 0.500%

7 day LIBID 0.362%
Lancaster City Council investments 0.556%

In terms of performance against budget, the details are as follows:

Budget to date:
Icelandic credits £18K
Cash interest £50K
Total £68K
Actual to date:
Icelandic credits to date £17K
Cash credits to date £45K
Total £62K
Variance £6K  adverse

The adverse variance is mainly due to delays in the receipt of a large capital receipt, which
has meant cash balances are lower than expected at this point in the year.

The return is just above base rate and is better than the 7 day LIBID benchmark, which is
positive given that the Council’s investments are in the main on instant access. In absolute
terms, the rate of return is very modest but given that the Council has continued to focus on
secure and highly liquid deposits, it is considered reasonable.

Risk management

There has been no material change in the policy or operation of the treasury function over
the quarter, in recognition of the considerable uncertainty that exists within the economy and
financial sector. The view is, therefore, that residual counterparty risk exposure for
investment remains low.

There is financial risk attached to the longer term debt portfolio, associated with interest rate
exposure but all of the debt is on fixed interest and there has been no change to this over the
quarter. Low investment returns mean that using cash invested to repay debt can appear
more attractive, but the Council is not yet in position to be following such a strategy.

Although further Icelandic investment recoveries are expected, there is still uncertainty over
extent and timing but these risks are now readily manageable.



Page 206

More specifically, some risks exist in relation to banking services. The Co-operative Bank,
used by the Council and many other local authorities as a general account for collecting
funds and making payments, has reported losses over the summer months. At the time of
producing this report, it had just been reported that the Co-Op Group’s proposal for resolving
its financial predicament had been rejected by a small number of major bondholders.
Instead, the bondholders’ alternative proposal is for their bonds to be converted into shares,
which would result in them having a controlling stake in the bank (and therefore the Co-op
Group would lose control). It is understood that if no rescue can be agreed voluntarily,
control of the bank would be seized temporarily by the Bank of England (BoE), under a
process called resolution. This could involve the BoE forcing losses on Co-op Group and
obliging the bank's bondholders to convert their loans to the bank into loss-absorbing shares
on terms regarded by the Bank of England as fair. In future, these sorts of powers and
arrangements are expected to be provided for under Banking Reform legislation, currently
working its way through Parliament. The overall aim is to keep an affected bank operating
as a going concern, but force its owners/investors to take the associated losses.
Developments are being closely monitored by Officers; overnight balances are being
minimised as much as possible, as a precaution. There are no investments placed with the
Co-op — and so the risks are different to the Icelandic position, as an example — but there are
uncertainties and it is unsettling, nonetheless. The Council’'s banking services contract is
due to run until March 2016.

Prudential Indicators

These indicators are prescribed by the Prudential Code, to help demonstrate that the Council
can finance its debt and have funds available when needed. The prudential indicators are
listed in Annex B; they have been updated to reflect the current capital position and they will
be referred onto Council in due course, allowing for further updates as need be to reflect
other budget changes.

Conclusion

Treasury activity during Quarter 2 followed in the same vein as Quarter 1. Monitoring
developments linked to transactional services (and the Co-op Bank) are high on the agenda,
however, given announcements after the period end. Although in principle there should be
little financial or operational risk to the Council, relevant legislative/regulatory provisions
linked to Banking Reform are in their infancy and are as yet untested.



Page 207

Annex A
Treasury Management Glossary of Terms

Annuity — method of repaying a loan where the payment amount remains
uniform throughout the life of the loan, therefore the split varies such that the
proportion of the payment relating to the principal increases as the amount of
interest decreases.

CIPFA — the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, is the
professional body for accountants working in Local Government and other public
sector organisations, also the standard setting organisation for Local Government
Finance.

Call account — instant access deposit account.

Counterparty — an institution (e.g. a bank) with whom a borrowing or investment
transaction is made.

Credit Rating — is an opinion on the credit-worthiness of an institution, based on
judgements about the future status of that institution. It is based on any
information available regarding the institution: published results, Shareholders’
reports, reports from trading partners, and also an analysis of the environment in
which the institution operates (e.g. its home economy, and its market sector).
The main rating agencies are Fitch, Standard and Poor’s, and Moody’s. They
analyse credit worthiness under four headings:
Short Term Rating — the perceived ability of the organisation to meet its
obligations in the short term, this will be based on measures of liquidity.
Long Term Rating — the ability of the organisation to repay its debts in the
long term, based on opinions regarding future stability, e.g. its exposure to
‘risky’ markets.
Individual/Financial Strength Rating — a measure of an institution’s
soundness on a stand-alone basis based on its structure, past performance
and credit profile.
Legal Support Rating — a view of the likelihood, in the case of a financial
institution failing, that its obligations would be met, in whole or part, by its
shareholders, central bank, or national government.
The rating agencies constantly monitor information received regarding financial
institutions, and will amend the credit ratings assigned as necessary.

DMADF and the DMO - The DMADF is the ‘Debt Management Account Deposit
Facility’; this is highly secure fixed term deposit account with the Debt
Management Office (DMO), part of Her Majesty’s Treasury.

EIP — Equal Instalments of Principal, a type of loan where each payment includes
an equal amount in respect of loan principal, therefore the interest due with each
payment reduces as the principal is eroded, and so the total amount reduces with
each instalment.

Gilts — the name given to bonds issued by the U K Government. Gilts are issued
bearing interest at a specified rate, however they are then traded on the markets
like shares and their value rises or falls accordingly. The Yield on a qilt is the
interest paid divided by the Market Value of that gilt.



Page 208

Eg. a 30 year gilt is issued in 1994 at £1, bearing interest of 8%. In 1999 the
market value of the gilt is £1.45. The yield on that gilt is calculated as 8%/1.45 =
5.5%.

See also PWLB.

e LIBID - The London Inter-Bank Bid Rate, the rate which banks would have to bid
to borrow funds from other banks for a given period. The official rate is published
by the Bank of England at 11am each day based on trades up to that time.

e LIBOR - The London Inter-Bank Offer Rate, the rate at which banks with surplus
funds are offering to lend them to other banks, again published at 11am each
day.

e Liquidity — Relates to the amount of readily available or short term investment
money which can be used for either day to day or unforeseen expenses. For
example Call Accounts allow instant daily access to invested funds.

e Maturity — Type of loan where only payments of interest are made during the life
of the loan, with the total amount of principal falling due at the end of the loan
period.

e Money Market Fund (MMF) — Type of investment where the Council purchases
a share of a cash fund that makes short term deposits with a broad range of high
quality counterparties. These are highly regulated in terms of average length of
deposit and counterparty quality, to ensure AAA rated status.

e Policy and Strategy Documents — documents required by the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management in Local Authorities. These set out the
framework for treasury management operations during the year.

e Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) — a central government agency providing
long and short term loans to Local Authorities. Rates are set daily at a margin
over the Gilt yield (see Gilts above). Loans may be taken at fixed or variable
rates and as Annuity, Maturity, or EIP loans (see separate definitions) over
periods of up to fifty years. Financing is also available from the money markets,
however because of its nature the PWLB is generally able to offer better terms.

¢ Quantitative Easing (QE) — is a monetary policy used to stimulate the national
economy. In very simple terms, the policy involves the central bank buying
“financial assets” - typically Government bonds - from commercial banks,
amongst others. This then increases those banks’ readily accessible money
supply, which then puts them in a better position to increase lending to
companies and individuals.

e Sector — Sector are the City Council’s Treasury Management advisors.  They
provide advice on borrowing strategy, investment strategy, and vetting of
investment counterparties, in addition to ad hoc guidance throughout the year.

e Yield - see Gilts

Members may also wish to make reference to The Councillor's Guide to Local
Government Finance.



Page 209
Annex B

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS - LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL

201213 201314 2014115 2015116 201617

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
AFFORDABILITY
Pl 1: Estimates of ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  Non - HRA 16.2% 12.4% 11.1% 11.2% 11.2%
HRA, 24.0% 23.3% 22.4% M.7% 2M1.7%
Dverall 19.3% 16.7% 15.7% 15.5% 15.5%
| Pl 2:  Actual ratio of financing cost to net revenue strearm Reported after each financial year end \
Pl 3: Estimates of the incremental impact of new Capital Investment decisions on the Council Tax £22.81 -£8.97 -£11.64 -£0.49 -E0.7S
ThIS.InC|UC|BS the impact of all elements offundmg,.mc:ludmg any increase in the need to borrow, 1.59% 475 50% 0% 04%
reguired to finance new schemes added to the Capital Programme
PI3A: llustrative Impact of Additional Borrowing £1 million Repayment Period
3 Years 10 Years 23 Years
Increase in Council Tax (£) £4.86 £265 £1.47
Increase in Council Tax (%) 2.48% 1.35% 0.95%
Pl 4: Estimatgs of the incremental impact of Capital Investment il il il il
on Housing Rents
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
PI5: Estimates of capital expenditure Mon - HRA, f323 58983 6173 3938 3,580
HRA, 359 4827 4521 4707 5,079
Tatal 8914 10,510 10,754 8545 2,059

| Pl 6:  Actual capital expenditure Reported after each financial year end \

PI7: Estimates of Capital Financing Reguirement Mon - HRA, 37 AE7 39045 39097 41 267 39856
HRA, 45514 44 473 43432 42331 41350
Tatal 83,081 A3 518 A3.429 A3 B5a 31,206

| Pl 8:  Actual Capital Financing Reguirement Reported after each financial year end

EXTERNAL DEBT

P19 Authorised Limit
Authorised Limit for Borrowing 100 100 93 93
Authorised Limit for Other Long Term Liabilities 1 1 1 1
Authorised Limit for External Deht 101 101 100 100
[P110: Esxternal Debt: Operational Boundary 83 83 g3 83
[PL11: Actual external debt Repaorted after each financial year end |
[P112: HRA limit on indebtedness 50,194 50,194 50,194 £0,194]
PRUDENCE

A ) ) ) The Council has adopted the updated Treasury
PI 13: Treasury Management: adoption of CIPFA code of Practice Management code of practice (2011},

Pl 14: Tlet debt and the capital financing reguirement
Anticipated indebtedness (operational boundary) 83,295 83,435 83,435 83,435
Anticipated investment 10,301 18,210 18,900 19,960
CFR 3513 33429 §3 6550 g1,206
Underfover borrowed {-/+) -10078 -18216 -8 EB7F -22.188




Page 210
Appendix E

Property Group Update

Quarter 2: July — September
2013

Report from: Senior Property Officer



Page 211

Introduction and Background

This report builds upon the information provided in the Quarter 1 update providing a general
update on key Property Group business issues for the second quarter of the financial year
2013/14. The intention here is not to provide in depth updates on all ongoing individual property
cases but rather to provide a general overview of Property Group’s progress in the areas identified
below along with summaries of other important issues relevant at the time of writing.

1. Corporate Non-Housing Property Portfolio 1% Year Delivery Plan
2. Capital Receipts (for further details see Appendix A)

3. Joint Property Review

4. Performance of Commercial Buildings

5. Other issues

i.  Lancashire Regeneration Partnership
ii.  Morecambe Property Holdings
ii.  Bailrigg Science Park

As these first two quarterly updates have now set the scene, in a bid to prevent repetition in
future reports it is proposed that from Quarter 3 onwards these reports will be condensed
to highlight any key changes and emerging property issues.

1. Corporate Non-Housing Property Portfolio 1% Year Delivery Plan

As detailed in the Quarter 1 update, it has been necessary for the Property Group to spend a
significant amount of time assessing, quantifying and programming individual projects. This
programming work provides firmer costs facilitating more accurate financial forecasting and
monitoring. As indicated in earlier reports flexibility is required throughout the delivery programme
because the initial unobtrusive condition survey costs were indicative and therefore the levels of
work required at each property could increase or decrease as detailed surveys and specification
work progresses. Furthermore, the need for specialist surveys and design works may become
apparent leading to additional cost implications.

The projects included in the 1% year delivery programme fall into the three procurement groups,
Minor Works (MW), Intermediate Works (IW) and Projects (P). In the main, the projects being
undertaken within the 1% year delivery programme are the schemes identified in the condition
surveys as the most urgent although some projects have been brought forward for economic
reasons. For example, where two individual projects require scaffolding at a particular building then
it makes financial sense to undertake both at the same time.

Property Group has been allocated £2.402M within financial year 2013/14 to undertake the 1% year
delivery programme (this excludes slippage from 2012/13). The intention is to manage the
programme of work within this sum by reallocating funding between the projects as variations to
the indicative budgets become clear. Officers will report any necessary changes retrospectively
through future quarterly updates.

The following tables provide a summary of progress to date. The nature of scheduled works is
as set out in the report to Cabinet back in April, unless indicated otherwise:



Page 212

Table 1 — Minor Works Project Progress

Total Indicative | Brought Forward Total Apbroved
Property/Project Works Indicative Works PP
st nd Tender (AMP)
1> Year 2" Year

Minor Works (MW)
14 Buildings £49k £49k £103k

(Start date 30™ September 2013 —
Project Duration 10 Weeks)

In total, 14 of the Minor works (MW) projects have been finalised. The Agreed Maximum Price
(AMP) approved with the contractor includes repairs brought forward from the 2™ year programme
for the economic reasons described earlier in this report.

Work has commenced on site for some minor works projects including Bolton le Sands toilets,

Morecambe promenade shelters, the King Street covered yard and some preparation work at
Williamson Park.

Table 2 — Intermediate Works (IW) Project Progress

Total Total
Indicative | Approved | Proposed
Works Tender | Start Date
1% Year (AMP)

Submit | Approve
Property/Project Design | Tender
Itender (AMP)

Intermediate Works (IW):
programmed works are at various
stages:

Partnering Contractor

White Lund Depot Work Package | 18/10/13 | 01/11/13 £231k TBA 05/11/13
Lancaster Cemetery Chapels 11/10/13 | 14/10/13 £80k TBA 28/10/13
Lancaster Town Hall Railings 23/09/13 | 30/09/13 £50k £47k 02/10/13
Lancaster Town Hall Paving 23/09/13 | 30/09/13 £30k £28k 07/10/13
Morecambe Town Hall 08/11/13 | 21/11/13 £53k TBA TBA
The Dukes Playhouse 08/11/13 | 21/11/13 £39k TBA 06/12/13
Palatine Recreation Ground 21/10/13 | 04/11/13 £26k TBA TBA
Totals £499k £75k

*TBA — to be advised or confirmed, subject to further information becoming available.

Work has already commenced on the memorial garden railings and paving projects at Lancaster
Town Hall to meet conservation requirements, with a view to completing by Remembrance Day.
The removal of the vegetation to the side elevation has revealed root damage to the low retaining
wall, which will require rectification at additional cost prior to replacement of the refurbished
railings.



Page 213

Table 3 — Projects (P) Project Progress

Submit | Approve Total Total
. . Indicative | Approved | Proposed
Property/Project Design | Tender Work Tend Start Dat
[Tender | (AMP) i ender art bate
1° Year (AMP)
Programmed Projects (P) are at
various stages:
Partnering Contractor
Williamson Park buildings 04/10/13 | 18/10/13 £473k 15/11/13
Assembly Rooms 04/10/13 | 28/10/13 £158k 10/11/13
The Storey 11/10/13 | 10/11/13 £233k 22/11/13
The Platform 04/10/13 | 18/10/13 £318k 10/11/13
Ryelands Park buildings 11/10/13 | 10/11/13 £45k 22/11/13
City Museum 25/10/13 | 08/11/13 £258k 22/11/13
Maritime Museum 25/10/13 | 08/11/13 £253k 22/11/13
26 St Georges Quay 25/10/13 | 10/11/13 £38k 22/11/13
Salt Ayre Sports Centre 25/10/13 | 10/11/13 £21k 22/11/13
Consultant Projects
Mitre House Car-park 05/06/13 | 08/08/13 £60k £82k 30/09/13
£1.857m £82k

Position Overall

Currently, indicative programmes and spend profiles suggest expected spend in this financial year
will be circa £1.977m, plus fees of circa £150k equating to £2.127m. Therefore, at this stage

potential slippage against the approved £2.402M is estimated to be in the region of £275k.

It should be noted that as yet no provision has been made for the following additional projects

raised in the Property Group Quarter 1 Update report:

e Lancaster Town Hall Banqueting Suite ceilings — A conservation & structural survey was
completed in September 2013 and the full extent of the deterioration is currently being
quantified and estimated. Progress on this project will be reported once full details are

known.

e Storey Institute Garden Walls — Again this project is currently being quantified and
estimates and progress will be reported once full details are known.

As at the 30™ September 2013 it is anticipated that the Minor Works projects can be funded form

the current 2013/14 Revenue Budget and therefore there is no related call against the Municipal

Buildings Reserve to date.




Page 214

2. Capital Receipts

Capital receipts totalling £9.443M are budgeted in the current year.

Against this, the capital receipts received to date are still only as follows:
o £21K for the Oxford Street garage, received in May.

Additional exempt information on the progress of capital receipts that are budgeted for during
2013/14 can be found at Annex A.

3. Joint Property Review (for Lancashire County and Lancaster City Councils)

The majority of the property related information and data for the joint property review has now been
gathered and work has begun working up a series of options based upon this data. As the data
compilation exercise has progressed, a number of priority areas have been identified within the
portfolios of both authorities. Some of these priority areas are solely for consideration by the
authority currently occupying the building in question, whilst others will require a joint approach by
both authorities. From a City Council Officer perspective the priority areas for which options are
currently being developed for further exploration and consideration include:

Cable Street

St. Leonard’s House
Palatine Hall

White Lund Depot
Lancaster Town Hall
Morecambe Town Hall
The Platform

It is anticipated that more detailed information about various options being worked up will be
available for the next quarterly update, and to feed into the budget process.

The work identified in the 1** Year Delivery Programme is being continually monitored against the
progress being made with the joint property review to ensure that so far as reasonably possible no
unnecessary work is undertaken. However, in some cases it will be necessary to make a
judgement and assess the urgency of any works against the likelihood and timescale of the
possible vacation of a building, as well as the potential impact on property values.

4. Performance of Commercial Buildings

Measures are being taken to improve management information and associated systems regarding
property. Progress will shape the format and content of future reporting.

The following table summarises the current position of the City Council’s commercial property
relating to the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) with regards to occupation,
lease obligations, income and running costs as well as the total required repair and maintenance
identified in the condition surveys undertaken in 2012, as discussed earlier.

Please note that as you would expect after only 3 months, the table has not substantially
changed since Quarter 1 but any the minor adjustments have been included in the table and
have been described in the subsequent text.



Page 215

Occupation by Floor Area Lease Income Running Costs |Annual Balance| cgz?\'f;;"
Property Name Total Let Vacant (9. ';ﬂ:);:?;emal Rent 2:2’:;2 (£ p.a.) (£p.a) (5 Year Total £)
(m2) (m2) (m2) (Ep.a) (Epa)
Cottage Museum 64 64 0 Compliance works| 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 44,194.00
only by tenant
5 Cheapside 243 0 243 Vacant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7 Cheapside 259 259 0 Full -45,000.00 -800.00 500.00 -45,300.00 0.00
9 Cheapside 111 111 0 Full -48,900.00 -400.00 200.00 -49,100.00 0.00
CityLab, 4-6 Dalton Square 1,307 692 615 Internal -66,300.00 -37,700.00 144,500.00 40,500.00 170,672.00
Bus Station Kiosk, Lancaster 24 24 0 Internal
Stagecoach Office, Lancaster 180 180 0 Internal -19,100.00 -120,000.00; 145,600.00 6,500.00| 25,990.00
County Information Centre, Lancaster 70 70 0 Internal
Edward Street Dance Studio 159 0 159 Vacant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 111,746.00
Alfred Street Workshop 7 44 44 0 Full
Alfred Street Workshop 8 44 44 0 Internal -10,800.00 -200.00 3,000.00 -8,000.00 4,700.00
Alfred Street Workshop 9 44 44 0 Full
1 King Street 77 77 0 Internal -10,800.00 -400.00 100.00 -11,100.00) 894.00
3 King Street 55 55 0 Internal -9,000.00 -400.00 100.00 -9,300.00 5,766.00
5 King Street 21 21 0 Internal
5A King Street o4 o4 0 internal -11,000.00 -200.00] 2,300.00 -8,900.00 2,012.00
5B King Street 24 24 0 Internal -6,500.00 -300.00] 0.00 -6,800.00 0.00
9B King Street 9B & Covered Yard 109 109 0 Internal -10,500.00 -600.00 700.00 -10,400.00) 10,008.00|
Assembly Rooms, King St. - Ludus 245 245 0 Internal -13,000.00 -400.00 10,500.00 -2,900.00 241,652.00)
(Rent Grant)
87 King Street 212 212 0 Internal -10,400.00 -500.00] 1,100.00 -9,800.00| 6,950.00
City Museum 1,075 1,075 0 Compliance works, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 968,342.00
only by tenant
Storey Institute 1,439 894 545 Internal -53,400.00 -51,600.00 189,300.00 84,300.00 517,362.00
26 Castle Park (formerly part of Storey) 234 234 0 Internal -7,500.00 -500.00 7,600.00 -400.00 12,790.00
67-71 Market Street 308 308 0 Internal -35,300.00 -1,500.00 1,400.00 -35,400.00| 4,611.00
Moor Lane Mills 3,112 3,112 0 Full -230,000.00 -14,300.00 13,000.00 -231,300.00) 0.00
Dukes Playhouse 1,198 1,198 0 Internal 1250000 -3,400.00 10,600.00 -5,300.00 93,704.00
(Rent Grant)
Moor Lane Methodist Church 267 267 0 Ful -8,000.00 -200.00| 200.00 -8,000.00 0.00
(Rent Grant)
4 Queen Street 319 319 0 Internal -200.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,300.00 25,344.00
Ryelands House 258 258 0 Internal -22,700.00 -45,000.00 69,300.00 1,600.00 61,016.00
Old Mans Rest, Ryelands House 230 125 105 Internal -13,500.00 -2,700.00 6,500.00 -9,700.00 188,002.00
26 St. Georges Quay 1,492 1,492 0 Internal -38,500.00 -6,200.00 7,200.00 -37,500.00) 37,995.00|
Maritime Museum 768 768 0 Compliance works| 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 318,743.00
only by tenant
St. Leonard's House 3,164 1,260 1,904 Internal -56,800.00 0.00 147,900.00 91,100.00 2,023,007.00]
Skerton Community Centre 186 186 0 Full -1,400.00 -50.00 0.00 -1,450.00 0.00
Stone Barn/Scout Hut King George V' 107 107 0 Full except roof -700.00 -50.00 0.00 -750.00 13,420.00
Depot Adjacent 46 Hala Road 28 28 0 Full -1,050.00 -50.00 0.00 -1,100.00 0.00
56-58 Euston Road 253 0 253 Vacant 0.00 0.00 3,600.00 3,600.00 0.00
Full (but with initial
60 Euston Road 74 74 0 works to be carried -8,000.00 0.00 0.00 -8,000.00 28,612.00
out by LCC)
Happy Mount Park Café 374 374 0 Full -19,200.00 -800.00] 0.00 -20,000.00| 0.00
Clock Tower Café 174 174 0 Full -3,800.00 -400.00] 0.00 -4,200.00 0.00
Stone Jetty Café 87 87 0 Internal -7,600.00 -800.00] 2,100.00 -6,300.00 42,022.00)
Regent Park Café 74 0 74 Vacant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,762.00
West End Gardens Café 139 139 o] Internal -5,300.00 -300.00 0.00 -5,600.00 7,004.00|
Yacht Lookout Tower 20 20 0 Internal -400.00 -100.00] 0.00 -500.00] 3,770.00
Palatine Hall 1,401 1,401 0 Internal -90,500.00 -12,200.00 12,400.00 -90,300.00| 28,408.00|
Lodge Street Musicians Co-op 660 660 0 Caretaking -200.00 0.00 500.00 300.00 0.00
agreement
57 Highfield Road 81 81 0 Internal -4,250 -50)| 0.00 -4,300] Council Housing
63 Highfield Road 66 66 0 Internal -3,600.00 -50.00 0.00 -3,650.00§ Council Housing
3 Langdale Place 99 99 0 Internal -5,100.00 -50.00 0.00 -5,150.00} Council Housing |
10 Lentworth House 34 34 0 Internal -2,500.00 -50.00 0.00 -2,550.00} Council Housing |
11 Lentworth House 32 32 0 Internal -3,000.00 -50.00 0.00 -3,050.00§ Council Housing |
14 Lentworth House 29 29 0 Internal -3,150.00 -50.00| 0.00 -3,200.00§ Council Housing
3 Owen Road 55 55 0 Internal -3,800.00 -50.00 0.00 -3,850.00§ Council Housing
5 Owen Road 60 60 0 Internal } .
T Owon Road 39 39 0 Internal -8,500.00 -85.00 0.00 -8,585.00] Council Housing
9 Owen Road 41 41 0 Internal . .
11 Owon Road 20 20 0 internal -8,200.00 -85.00] 0.00 -8,285.00] Council Housing
4-6 Ridge Square 111 111 0 Internal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00] Council Housing
8 Ridge Square 64 0 64 Vacant -3,000.00 -50.00 0.00 -3,050.00] Council Housing
10 Ridge Square 52 52 0 Internal -2,900.00 -50.00 0.00 -2,950.00] Council Housing |
12/14 Ridge Square 111 111 0 Internal -5,900.00 -80.00 0.00 -5,980.00} Council Housing |
Totals -931,750.00 -302,750.00 782,700.00 -451,800.00) 5,004,498.00|

-1,234,500.00
By Percentage 100%

Changes from Quarter 1 include the removal of the assembly rooms ground floor, which operates
as a market and is therefore not strictly speaking a commercial property under the management of
Property Group. For further information, ‘Ludus Dance’ who are situated on the first floor of the
assembly rooms and ‘The Dukes Playhouse’ which also includes Moor Lane Methodist Church
have been identified as receiving rent grants from the City Council in the lease column.



Page 216

Occupation

The current occupation across the City Council’s total commercial property portfolio is still 82%
(slightly better than Qtr 1; but rounds the same). The remaining 18% of vacant space now amounts
to the equivalent of 3862m2, the majority of which is attributable to:

e The Storey, which returned to City Council control in October 2012, has a vacant floor area
of 545m2. This would appear to be an increase from the 504m2 reported in the Quarter 1
report but this is actually a result of some necessary adjustments being made to the overall
floor areas to ensure that all of the common areas are accounted for.

e St. Leonard’s House currently has 1904m2 of vacant space (unchanged since Quarter1)
but as reported previously, the building requires considerable investment. Officers have
recently received the ‘Stage 1’ report regarding viable alternative uses undertaken by the
County Council’s regeneration partner Carillion, the results of which will be submitted for
consideration by Members in due course.

e The vacancy rate at Citylab is currently running at 47% (or 615m2). This represents a 3%
improvement over the 50% vacancy rate reported in the quarter 1 update. The letting of
No.4 is expected to go through shortly which will give a further boost to the vacancy rate in
quarter 3.

Despite some small improvements at both the Storey and Citylab these three buildings still account
for 77% of the vacant commercial portfolio. As mentioned above, recent developments at St.
Leonard’s House are encouraging and further options are being explored as part of the joint
property review. The remaining 23% is made up of a small number of buildings that are currently
between lets or to be sold. In general terms, while Property Group will continue in its efforts to
minimise vacancy rates, it should be remembered that supply is currently outstripping demand in
the commercial office rental market.

Lease Obligations

The column headed ‘Lease’ identifies the tenant obligations for repair and maintenance of the
buildings under the lease. The majority are internal repairing leases, where the City Council retains
responsibility for the external envelope of the building and the tenant accepts responsibility for the
interior. The remainder are mainly full repairing leases where the tenant accepts responsibility for
both the interior and exterior of the building.

Income and Running Costs

The table shows the current income due from each building, broken down between the rental
income and service charge.

The running costs shown include the costs the City Council incurs through ownership of the
buildings including gas, water, electricity, staff, etc, some of which are recharged to the tenant
through the service charge depending on the terms of the lease. These running costs do not
include management costs, i.e. the officer time incurred by Property group in managing the
buildings, nor do they include any financing costs in relation to the original acquisition or later
capital investment.

As a very simple measure therefore, the current figures indicate a starting surplus of £451,800 in
cash terms, which is equivalent to 37% of total income due.



Page 217

Condition Survey

This final column provides information taken from the condition surveys undertaken during 2012.
These figures show the total required maintenance over the next 5 years for each building. These
figures include both internal and external repairs and therefore responsibility for the £5m total is
shared between the city council and the tenants. The condition for a building with a full repairing
lease has been shown as nil but for internal repairing leases the condition requirement would need
to be broken down between internal and external repairs. Therefore this column should only be
used as an indication of the overall condition of the building.

5. Other Issues

i. Lancashire Regeneration Partnership

Lancashire County Council has entered into an agreement with a private sector provider to
form a Regeneration Property Partnership. The partnership has been procured in such a
way that it allows for other public sector bodies including Lancaster City Council, who were
named in the OJEU documentation, to benefit from these services.

The Lancashire Regeneration Partnership is a 10 year agreement. The successful partner
for the north of the county was Carillion. Carillion are a multi-national company and have a
strong Northwest/Lancashire presence with approximately £12m gross value added from
Carillion employees living in the region, supported by some 42 work locations

The main objectives for the regeneration property partnership are to:

e Use public sector assets as a lever for delivering sustainable regeneration;

e Support the pursuit of wider objectives by identifying and helping to deliver the
best possible solutions for surplus properties balancing financial, economic and
social returns;

e Ensure identification of surplus sites that are developed for the most appropriate
use to meet key objectives;

e Attract investment and jobs promoting economic development in the area.

It is anticipated that the regeneration property partnerships will bring the following
benefits:

e The partners will share the risks of achieving the above objectives;

e The partners will bring both capability and capacity in key areas in terms of
resources to deliver the objectives;

e The partnership will provide a legal and commercial vehicle to the County's
public sector partners without the need to undertake a separate procurement
process;

e The partnership will bring new ways of working, thinking and innovative models
for the delivery of the objectives.

e The partners will work together to unlock the economic regeneration potential of
the public sector assets and support ongoing property reviews.

e The regeneration partnership will work up and deliver development proposals
for identified sites/properties



Page 218

The regeneration partner will:

e Work with the councils to develop a strategy for the development and/or
disposal of a particular property or groups of properties. These may involve both
operational and investment properties;

e Act as a single point of contact for the procurement and delivery of a project;

e Integrate and manage a diverse range of supply chain sub-contractors

The partner will recover its costs and earn returns through the projects that it
successfully delivers thus being incentivised to work up proposals that result in
successful projects consistent with the aims/requirements of the councils.

ii. Morecambe Property Holdings

Earlier this year, the City Council was approached by a developer interested in working
together to provide a new store in Morecambe for a high profile retailer. Various sites and
delivery models were considered. Unfortunately, however, before the proposals could be
reported, they were withdrawn.

On a more positive note, Planning and Regeneration along with Property Group are now in
discussions with Carillion, Lancashire County Council’s regeneration partner regarding a
possible master planning exercise in the area. It is hoped that a master planning exercise
will result in a more cohesive approach being taken in this vicinity of Morecambe and will
reinvigorate interest from the likes of the high profile retailer referred to above. It should
therefore give a better context within which the Council may consider its own land and
property holdings. A report is being prepared for December Cabinet.

iii. Bailrigg Science Park

In 2009 the City Council utilised funding from the former North West Regional Development
Agency (NWDA) to purchase nearly 10ha of land between Bailrigg Lane and Lancaster
University to build the Lancaster Science Park. The land purchase was subject to a funding
agreement with the NWDA and a number of covenants in favour of the previous landowner
(Bailrigg Farm Trust). Due to various factors including the recession and abolition of the
NWDA, the site has yet to be developed. However, the land has the benefit of planning
permission for the Science Park and Lancaster University is now talking the lead role (in
partnership with the city and county councils) to develop and deliver a viable form of
development. This may involve transferring ownership of the site to the University.

The above proposal has created an opportunity for the City Council to work with the Bailrigg
Farm Trust on a potential joint disposal of land adjacent to the proposed science park.
Property Group is currently working with the Bailrigg Farm Trust's consultant on a draft
memorandum of understanding, for consideration by Cabinet in due course.



Page 219

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 220 Agenda Item 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 228

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 233

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 235

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



	Agenda
	6 Future of the Assembly Rooms
	Appendix A

	7 Chatsworth Gardens - Outcome of Developer Competition and Consideration of the Private Sector Led Proposal
	Appendix 1 - Council Ownership on Chatsworth Gardens
	Appendix 3 - Review of PlaceFirst Financial Model Appraisal
	Appendix 4 - Draft Heads of Terms
	Appendix 5 - Green Deal Communities Local Authority Fund - Application Pack

	8 Parking Strategy
	draft parking strategy
	parking action plan

	9 Delivering New Council Housing in the District
	10 Service Review- Management of Parks / Open Space / Public Realm
	11 Outline Proposals For Service Review: Salt Ayre Sports Centre/Leisure Services
	12 Outline Proposals for Service Review: Regeneration & Planning Service
	13 Corporate Plan 2013-14 - Half-yearly monitoring
	1a.Appendix A - Corporate Plan Monitoring.doc

	15 Corporate Performance Monitoring 2013/14
	Appendix A - Corporate Plan Performance Review Report.pdf
	Appendix B - Quarter 2 Trend Analysis.pdf
	App C Corporate Financial Monitoring Qtr2.pdf
	App D TM Progress Qtr2.pdf
	App E Property Group Update Q2 Cabinet & BPP FINAL.pdf
	Annex A  App E EXEMPT Property Group Update Q2 Cabinet & BPP FINAL.pdf

	16 The Storey (Creative Industries Centre)
	App 1 Nov 13 Storey Cabinet Report Letter Irvine Taylor.pdf
	App 2 Nov 13 Storey Cabinet Report Financial Appendix
	Background Doc Storey Nov Cabinet SCIC Liquidation.pdf


